b 45 47 @R

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONA

—F—NEH
ANNUAL REPORT 2016




2016F AR
Inside the 2016 Annual Report

10

20

35

41

42

46

211

EEER

Corporate Profile

FA R

Financial Performance

EERERE

Report of the Chairman

THARRE
Report of the Chief Executive Officer

2016 ¥ ERE

2016 Review of Operations

EERSRITHAEHN

Biographies of Directors and Senior Executives

EEER

Corporate Information

EEEREE

Report of the Directors

R E

Financial Section

EEEARAEMER

Corporate Governance and Other Information



RERIT(EER)BRAF

China CITIC Bank International Limited
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China CITIC Bank International Limited (“CNCBI”) is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited (“CIFH"”), which
in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China CITIC Bank Corporation
Limited since 27 August 2015.

By providing value-creating financial solutions to define and exceed both
the wealth management and international business objectives of Greater
China and overseas customers, CNCBI aspires to be the “China Bank of
Choice”, with the best international standards and capabilities.

CNCBI’s footprint in Greater China includes 34 branches in Hong Kong, as
well as branches and presence in Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen and Macau.
CNCBI also has overseas branches in New York, Los Angeles and Singapore.
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Our Mission

To be the China Financial Solutions Provider of Choice for
institutional and personal customers who aspire to realise
the growth potential in Asia.

We focus on value creation for our stakeholders. Core
to our offering is our intimate knowledge of and our
network capability in China, coupled with our customer-
centric execution of world-class quality.

Nurturing of talent, team spirit and sharing of ownership
and success are a key competitive advantage of ours.

ZioMB(E  Our Core Values

UERE Customer-centric

81 = EE Progressive

BESW Execution

SIE8E Value Creating

SESA Building People, Building Team

BIFHE Integrity
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Financial Performance

2016 F M BHE 2016 Financial Highlights
2E (BE®BT) For the year (HK$ million) 2016 2015 % change
F A B A Net interest income 4,129 3420 1207
IEF B A Non-interest income 2,284 2,411 -53
K Operating expenses (2,816) (2,564) +9.8
EXNBREEMERE Impairment losses on loans and advances

WEEEER and other accounts (553) (668) 172
Al Profit before taxation 3,053 2,601 +17.4
Fris i Income tax (505) (433) +16.6
fi% 5 JE {5 S48 A Profit attributable to shareholders 2,548 2,168 +17.5
REZLB (BEBT) At year end (HK$ million) 2016 2015 % change
ER R EBR Loans and advances 183,764 169,870 +8.2
EERE Total assets 306,417 282,535 +8.5
7 5k 485 Total deposits 246,168 231,072 +6.5
% R4 & Shareholders’ equity 25,781 21,744 +18.6
B ¥ b = Financial ratios 2016 2015
B AR R LR Capital adequacy 17.8% 16.5%
19 07 B M A A b R Average liquidity maintenance ratio 60.8% 61.8%
BEFL X Loans to deposits 74.7% 73.5%
B ST U B 3 Cost to income 43.9% 44.0%
PEIRT (B BR AR

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED



REREMGET (BERT)

Profit attributable to shareholders (HKS million)

EEAE (F8ERT)

Total assets (HKS million)

BRERER (BBET)

Shareholders’ equity (HKS million)

16 16 16
15 2,168 15 282,535 15 21,744
14 2,801 14 249,141 14 19,941
13 2,135 13 216,308 13 17,176
12 1,557 12 177,181 12 15,052
SEBMBHR 5 Year Financial Summary
EFEHZHE (BEER) For the year (HK$ million) 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
3 A B A Net interest income 4,129 3,420 4,157 3,331 2,339
FEF B U A Non-interest income 2,284 2,411 1,849 1,416 1,377
S Operating expenses (2,816) (2,564) (2,453) (2,089) (1,808)
BEREBAR Impairment losses (charged)/

H th BR TEOR B B 18 written back on loans and advances

(%) /B # and other accounts (553) (668) (181) (84) 1)
ot B 4 A Profit before taxation 3,053 2,601 3,374 2,554 1,866
BT 15 %1 Income tax (505) (433) (573) (419) (309)
A% B FE 1 3% A Profit attributable to shareholders 2,548 2,168 2,801 2,135 1,557
REEB (BBET) At year end (HK$ million) 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
S/ OYEE N Loans and advances 183,764 169,870 150,720 127,017 105,092
Rl (B B 1 Impairment allowance 950 696 538 476 546
BEHRE Total assets 306,417 282,535 249,141 216,308 177,181
TR B R EELE  Average interest earnings assets 278,223 248,689 225,872 182,077 169,560
T4 Total deposits 246,168 231,072 203,087 170,834 145,017
A% 5 2 Shareholders' equity 25,781 21,744 19,941 17,176 15,052
B R tb = Financial ratios 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
BEART R = Capital adequacy 17.8% 16.5% 17.3% 16.5% 18.2%
1907 B M 44 B R Average liquidity maintenance ratio 60.8% 61.8% = - -
2FEEHRBESLLE  Average liquidity - - 64.9% 55.3% 59.4%
EfFL xR Loans to deposits 74.7% 73.5% 74.2% 74.4% 72.5%
EXHEELBELE Loans to total assets 60.0% 60.1% 60.5% 58.7% 59.3%
GAETFEBELE X Collective assessment coverage 0.2% 0.2% 0.3% 0.3% 0.3%
B A ¥ U B 3 Cost to income 43.9% 44.0% 40.9% 44.0% 48.7%
E 5 & [ i) R Return on average total assets 0.9% 0.8% 1.2% 1.1% 0.9%
S5 A% B M 35 B R R Return on average shareholders' equity 10.3% 10.2% 14.9% 13.2% 10.8%
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Financial Performance

TR Deposits*
1. RERNE S By type 2016 2015
2K Current 9.4% 9.1%
HE Savings 19.6% 16.7%
E Fixed 71.0% 74.2%
CEl Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. BRI AE D By maturity 2016 2015
BIEs B8 On demand 29.0% 25.8%
D3 E A Less than 3 months 61.2% 61.1%
HiE3MEAETEF Over 3 months but less than 1 year 9.8% 12.9%
HBBIFENBSEF Over 1 year but less than 5 years - 0.2%
A5t Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. REWE S By currency 2016 2015
BT HKD 54.3% 50.8%
ey usb 29.2% 24.3%
Hity Others 16.5% 24.9%
& &t Total 100.0% 100.0%
4, GEREEBE®AE Number of deposit accounts 2016 2015
399,544 373,849
* UEPERAEER *  Based on customer deposits only
46.3%
49.4% 76:5%
W EAREBERITER
Personal & Business Banking Group
BERD M m TR mamo 03%
Total Deposits Certificates of Deposit Total Loans
Breakdown B HEi Breakdown
Others
NCIVSE R E e
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Wholesale & Cross-border Banking Group
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Financial Performance

BN Loan Portfolio
1. RIT¥E 5 By industry sectors 2016 2015
BREBEBHER Loans and advances for use in Hong Kong
TR kemA Industrial, commercial and financial:
MR Property development 7.4% 7.7%
MERE Property investment 13.6% 11.5%
&Rl Financial concerns 5.0% 4.0%
fRE L840 Stockbrokers 1.7% 2.1%
HERTEESH Wholesale and retail trade 9.3% 10.5%
Rk Manufacturing 5.5% 4.4%
B NIERRE Transport and transport equipment 1.6% 2.1%
IR L4 B Recreational activities 0.7% 0.6%
B R Information technology 1.9% 0.0%
HAh Others 5.3% 4.7%
A : Individuals:
BE EEEEEE Loans for the purchase of flats under the
[(FAABRE2ERE Home Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
R [HEBEEE Participation Scheme and Tenants Purchase
STEIRF] HER Scheme 0.0% 0.0%
BEHEMEEMENER Loans for the purchase of other residential properties 7.3% 7.3%
ERAREE Credit card advances 0.2% 0.3%
HAt Others 4.5% 4.6%
BE5mE Trade finance 5.8% 6.5%
AREBUINE T B E K R EE Loans and advances for use outside Hong Kong 30.2% 33.7%
A&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. RitES a5 By geographical spread 2016 2015
BB Hong Kong 51.1% 51.0%
Hh [ AT 3, Mainland China 36.3% 32.0%
EH USA 3.2% 1.5%
s Singapore 3.0% 7.2%
HAh Others 6.4% 8.3%
aaf Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. REHE D By maturity 2016 2015
BN EE Repayable on demand 0.7% 4.4%
L1 F Less than 1 year 54.9% 55.1%
Hid1 FEDRS5 F Over 1 year but less than 5 years 31.4% 27.8%
HBiEs F Over 5 years 10.9% 11.8%
T A HA Undated 2.1% 0.9%
&=t Total 100.0% 100.0%
4, REME D By currency 2016 2015
BT HKD 48.3% 42.0%
ET usD 42.4% 43.1%
HAth Others 9.3% 14.9%
=i Total 100.0% 100.0%
5. EXREREEAE Number of loan accounts 2016 2015
481,102 439,206
—E-RER
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chairman

To my great delight, in my first full financial year as Chairman of China CITIC
Bank International Limited (“the Bank”), the Bank and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) successfully returned to the growth path, delivering
a set of respectable results for 2016 despite persistent headwinds in the
operating environment and increasing market volatility caused by several
“black swan events”.

Profit attributable to shareholders increased by 17.5% year on year to
HKS$2.55 billion. More encouragingly, total assets exceeded HKS$300 billion
for the first time, reaching HK$306.42 billion at end-2016, up 8.5% from
a year earlier. Healthy growth was recorded for both total deposits and
customer loans, which were respectively 6.5% and 8.2% ahead of end-
2015 levels. For 2016, retail deposits rose by 11.0%, faster than the growth
in wholesale deposits. As a result, retail deposits accounted for 48.4% of the
Bank’s total customer deposits, representing a continued improvement in
deposit structure.

Last year the Bank strengthened its collaboration with parent bank China
CITIC Bank Corporation Limited ("CNCB"). With full support from CNCB, major
breakthroughs were achieved in various business areas such as merger and
acquisition loans, structured finance, leading syndicated loans and issuing
bonds for clients. The collaboration between CNCB and the Bank has and
will continue to broaden, from client referrals to servicing clients together,
from business expansion to risk management, and from building IT systems
to developing human resources, as the Bank fulfils its strategic function as
CNCB's overseas integrated financial services platform.

In September 2016 the Bank capitalized on the best market environment
and a window of opportunity to issue US$500 million of Basel Il compliant
undated non-cumulative subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities.
The issue was oversubscribed a few times, demonstrating the market’s
recognition of the Bank's strong credit profile and healthy operations.
The capital securities have enhanced the Bank's capital position and
sharpened its competitive edge, laying a firm foundation for future business
development.

Looking ahead into 2017, a period of uncertainty and instability looms
large as the incoming administration in the US has yet to fully unfold its
economic and foreign policies, and the impact of such policies on global
markets needs to be monitored. Meanwhile, the British government is
officially initiating the process of reshaping a new relationship with the
European Union, which itself is vulnerable to increasing risk of political
volatility as general elections will be held for key member states. In light of
many unknowns, China will have to spare no effort to maintain sustainable
economic growth by steadfastly accelerating supply-side structural reforms
and pursuing opening-up strategies such as“One Belt, One Road".

In spite of fluid global economic conditions, with sustained growth
of China’s economy and the opportunities arising from the country’s
continuous opening-up, | remain optimistic about the prospects of the
Bank. In response to changing circumstances, the Bank will continue to
undergo business transformation, developing both commercial banking
and investment banking businesses. On the back of strong support from
parent bank, and with product innovation, channel innovation and IT
innovation that can enhance service capabilities and risk management,
the Bank will strive to offer clients a comprehensive range of domestic and
cross-border financial solutions, achieving healthy long-term growth in the
years ahead.

Finally, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to my fellow Board
members, the Bank's management team and all staff for their contribution
to the Bank’s sustainable development. | also wish to thank our customers
gratefully for their continued trust and support, which is the linchpin of our
success.
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Mr. Zhang Xiaowei

President & Chief Executive Officer
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FREIRT (B BRAE
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

EEUTEBRZRELE 2FEREKBER
THERTE—SMBIGERS > in L 28E
ETBEHERE  BHFTHW BREENLRFE
B1I7T5%MRERHFER > E25.588Bx A
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Last year collaboration with parent bank, China
CITIC Bank, strengthened further with stronger
ties. Combined with the dedication and diligence
of the entire staff, this enabled China CITIC Bank
International to deliver a healthy 17.5% growth
in profit attributable to shareholders to HK$2.55
billion, while total assets exceeded HK$300 billion
to reach HK$306.42 billion.

Against a fast-changing and challenging operating environment, China
CITIC Bank International Limited ("CNCBI") and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) responded rapidly, returning to the path of healthy
profit growth in 2016 after a temporary setback in the preceding year. In
2016, CNCBI took full advantage of having China CITIC Bank Corporation
Limited ("CNCB") as parent bank to spur the collaboration with it on all
fronts, expanding both the customer base and scope for development,
which produced impressive results. 2016 was also a year when the Group
enhanced its technology infrastructure, with an upgrade of the core banking
system and installation of an advanced treasury system, commencement of
cross-border host-to-host business system connectivity with parent bank, as
well as the introduction of several mobile banking applications, which have
set the stage for the Group’s sustainable growth in the years ahead.
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BRIk EERE BETRERF PITEF BETRERFR BITEE BITTHRAEEFR
Mr. Michael Leung R IE B E BARBHERITLEEE NERBEELERAE
Chief Information and Mr. Bai Lijun Mrs. Helen Kan Ms. Margaret Man
Operations Officer Alternate Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director & Executive Director &
Acting Treasurer Alternate Chief Executive Officer Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Group Head of Personal & Group Head of Wholesale &
Business Banking Cross-border Banking
5. BEHMELLE 6. BAREE 7. BIRRZE 8 EfXE4%
BETRER  BREEERR B M B TRARRAERE e
7R 4 85 22 4 L Mr. Elton Tam Ms. Zoe Lau Mr. David Yau
Mr. Roy Huang Chief Financial Officer Director of CEQ Office Chief Auditor

Alternate Chief Executive Officer
General Counsel &
Group Head of Internal Control

9. BEELXE 0. ZHERE . XARxt
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Mr. David Kwan Mr. John Lee Ms. Rita Man
Chief Risk Officer Chief Personnel Officer Chief Compliance Officer
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Operating Environment

During the year under review, global financial markets were repeatedly
shaken by political events, most notably Britain's vote to leave the European
Union and the American presidential election, with wide fluctuations in
securities prices and currency values. The underlying economic growth
trends, however, were hardly affected. The US economy remained firmly
on a recovery path with continuous improvement in employment data
and accelerating inflation, prompting the Federal Reserve Board to raise its
benchmark interest rate by 25 basis points in December 2016, the second
hike since the financial tsunami. The expansion of the Eurozone at 1.7% for
2016 was weaker than a year ago, while the progress of reflation remained
lacklustre in Japan, and still sluggish global trade and investment flows
hindered the growth of emerging and developing countries.

For China, following a 6.9% rise in real GDP in 2015, a steady growth of 6.7%
was achieved last year primarily on the back of solid domestic consumption
and public-sector fixed asset investment. Nevertheless, amid mounting
concerns about an overheated housing market, aggressive credit growth
and more rapid liquidity outflow triggered by a weakening Renminbi
("RMB"), the government had to introduce various measures to arrest these
developments. In the absence of strong external and domestic demand,
the expansion of the Hong Kong economy also decelerated to 1.9% in real
terms for 2016, against 2.7% and 2.4% for 2014 and 2015 respectively. It was
not until the fourth quarter of the year that exports of goods and services, as
well as private consumption expenditure, seemed to display some signs of
stability.

As regards the domestic banking sector in Hong Kong, although interest
rates hovered around historical lows, loan demand stayed soft, with total
loans and advances of HK$8,023 billion at end-2016 being 6.5% ahead of the
amount at end-2015.The growth in total Mainland-related lending (including
trade finance) for the same period was 7.0%. However, the RMB customer
deposit base in Hong Kong shrank by 35.8% from end-2015 to RMB546.71
billion at the close of 2016. According to the HKMA, the aggregate pre-tax
operating profit of retail banks'Hong Kong offices recorded a growth of 8.7%
in 2016 compared with a year ago.

Financial Performance

For the year 2016, the Group’s performance was ahead of the industry as
a whole. Operating income increased by 10.0% year on year to HK$6.41
billion. Profit after impairment was up by 17.1% to HKS$3.04 billion, while
profit attributable to shareholders grew by 17.5% to HK$2.55 billion. Return
on average assets at 0.87% was four basis points higher than the previous
year, while return on average shareholders’ equity was 10.25%, edging up
one basis point year on year.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

The resumption of profit growth in 2016 was principally driven by a 20.7%
rise in net interest income to HK$4.13 billion. With closer collaboration with
parent bank, the Group continued to expand its cross-border financing
business, gaining ground in the structured finance and syndication market.
Net interest margin improved by 10 basis points year on year to 1.48% given
lower interest cost of customer deposits.

Non-interest income for the year amounted to HK$2.28 billion, which was
5.3% lower than a year ago. The drop was mainly due to reduced profit
contribution from Treasury and Markets (“TMG") activities. Apart from this,
loan fees and income from selling insurance products continued to post
excellent growth, while TMG's Debt Capital Markets (“DCM") operations got
off to a good start and have developed well.

As the Group continued to make substantial investments in technology,
total operating expenses rose by 9.8% year on year, which was slightly
below income growth. Cost to income ratio at 43.9% was at a level similar to
that of the previous year.

Financial Position

At end-2016, the Group's total assets stood at HK$306.42 billion, representing
an 8.5% increase from a year ago. Total deposits amounted to HK$246.17
billion, while customer loans including trade bills totalled HKS$183.76 billion,
up 6.5% and 8.2% respectively from end-2015. Loans to deposits ratio
therefore increased to 74.7% from 73.5%. The Group continued to adopt
a prudent loan classification policy. At end-2016, impaired loan ratio was
0.96%, seven basis points higher than a year earlier.

In January 2016, HK$1.8 billion of capital was injected into CNCBI by its
immediate parent company, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CNCB.
In addition, in September 2016, CNCBI successfully issued US$500 million
of undated non-cumulative subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities,
which helped to expand its capital base further. At end-2016, the Group's
total capital adequacy ratio increased by 124 basis points year on year to
17.75%. Its tier 1 capital ratio was 13.73% whereas its common equity tier
1 capital ratio stood at 10.81%. These levels remained comfortably above
regulatory requirements. Meanwhile, average liquidity maintenance ratio
was 60.8%, remaining at a very healthy level.

—B-AER
Annual Report 2016
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Business Review
Wholesale and Cross-border Banking Group

Wholesale and Cross-Border Banking ("WBG") showed a substantial increase
in its capability in structured finance and syndication business last year.
Together with CNCB, CNCBI acted as the joint global coordinator to lead a
landmark cross-border financing facility in support of a Chinese enterprise
to acquire an overseas company. This transaction was the biggest ever
overseas acquisition deal sealed by a mainland Chinese corporation and
also the largest ever syndicated acquisition loan in Asia. In keeping with
the Chinese government’s development strategies of developing “One
Belt, One Road” and encouraging Chinese enterprises to “Go Global’, WBG
has proactively supported CNCB's strategic customers to expand and
invest overseas. In June 2016, a strategic clients unit was established to
be solely responsible for dealing with the strategic and key customers of
CNCB. Meanwhile, investments in strengthening the capability of overseas
branches continued to increase in order to satisfy the growing demand of
the Bank's corporate clients for cross-border financial services. At end-2016,
WBG customer loans reached HK$140.57 billion, up 9.1% from a year ago,
while net interest income and non-interest income for 2016 grew by 12.7%
and 19.8% year on year respectively to HK$3.08 billion and HK$892 million.

Personal and Business Banking Group

Despite intense competition and challenging operating conditions,
Personal and Business Banking ("PBG") was able to take advantage of many
opportunities available in the market and sustain its growth momentum,
attaining historic highs in operating income as well as deposits and loans.
For 2016, operating income was HK$2.38 billion, up 19.6% year on year. At
end-2016, PBG customer deposits reached HK$113.91 billion while customer
loans amounted to HK$42.71 billion, representing increases of 11.0% and
4.8% respectively from a year ago, and the growth in interest-earning assets
was achieved without compromising on asset quality. On collaboration with
parent bank, remote account opening services were fully implemented
during the year, and the business generated would be accounted for by
both CNCBI and CNCB. This contributed to a marked increase in the income
from intermediary services. With a six-fold expansion in assets under
management for cross-border customers, the revenue of private banking
also surged by over 3 times. In addition, retail banking has been committed
to pursuing a mobile banking strategy. Last year, CNCBI launched Hong
Kong's first deposit account binding to the WeChat Pay Hong Kong Wallet,
affording customers the convenience of free WeChat Pay mobile payment
services.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Treasury and Markets Group

In light of highly volatile offshore RMB interest rates and exchange rates in
2016, the revenue of Central Treasury Unit ("CTU") eased slightly year on
year. Yet on a half-on-half basis, its performance in the second half of the
year was much stronger, with an increase of HK$174 million in revenue
when compared with the first six months. Benefitting from the general
trend of US interest rates and trading opportunities at various stages,
the income derived from bond investment enjoyed noticeable growth
year on year, with a 29% rise in interest income and a 3.6 times jump
in trading gains. TMG has successfully reduced its reliance on a single
product. In addition to boosting the sales of basic products, it crafted and
marketed risk management solutions for clients against the backdrop of
a depreciating RMB, and worked hard to promote its DCM business. As
such, TMG's marketing revenues in 2016 recorded a moderate year-on-year
increase. Notably, commencing operations in June 2016, the DCM unit,
despite intense market competition, managed to build a strong business
foundation and earn good reputation, completing 13 issuances in the year.
To increase the capability of product innovation and risk management, a
new generation trading and risk management system, MUREX, has been
brought into operation, which should help better fulfil the trading needs of
clients and further expand the client base.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Credit and Risk Management Committee and Audit Committee of the
Board are responsible for overseeing the risk management and internal
control of the Group. These committees are led by experienced and
independent directors. The Group strives to reinforce the risk management
system, practices and culture. The Risk Appetite Statement and risk
indicators continue to be strengthened in line with the Group’s strategic
direction. Furthermore, comprehensive bank-wide stress testing, capital
management and liquidity management continue to be enhanced with
regard to the evolving market environment.

Given the uncertainties of a turbulent global economy, the Group focuses
on conducting rigorous risk assessments and credit approval, proactively
managing and reviewing the loan portfolios, formulating prudent
investment strategies and strengthening capital and liquidity management
as befits the Group's risk appetite. In addition, the Group continues to
optimize the customer mix by targeting quality strategic key customers,
including cross-border collaboration customers, strategic customers referred
by parent bank and the CITIC Group, state-owned enterprises and central
government-owned enterprises.

—B-AER
Annual Report 2016
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

In terms of credit risk management, the Group is committed to upholding
stringent credit policies, as well as conducting in-depth credit assessments
of customers’ cash flow positions, loan purposes and industry prospects.
Moreover, the Group performs proactive monitoring of concentration risks,
customers, portfolios and industries that could be adversely impacted by
potential economic slowdown. The Group adopts a prudent provisioning
policy with HK$553 million of impairment made in 2016.

Foreign exchange and interest rate risks associated with cross-border
business have significantly increased. Market risk management continues
to play an important role. Clear risk limits have been set within a robust
management framework, whereby these limits are monitored daily, stress
tests are conducted periodically and close tracking is performed whenever
unusual events occur in the market. Further investigation will be conducted
in a timely manner, with appropriate measures to be implemented.

With respect to operational risk management, the Group continuously
strives to identify and minimize operational risks as much as practicable.
The Group's operational risk appetite is driven by its continuous pursuit of
delivering excellent customer experience through operational excellence. To
align with this, we are executing various programs to enhance operational
risk management effectiveness and introducing new internal control
measures to address emerging risks in response to a changing operational
environment.

Human Resources Development

Recruiting, training and retaining qualified personnel with sufficient
experience and knowledge is essential to the transformation and growth
of the Group's business. Human Resources Group always has to perform a
balancing act between sustaining a pool of critical talents and containing
staff cost, which is a significant component of the overheads.

We are pleased that for 2016, the Group managed to deliver impressive
financial results with only a 5% increase in permanent headcount, while
overall staff cost was kept within budget. Moreover, the voluntary turnover
rate fell by more than 20% compared with 2015. The Group has continued
to offer a range of financial and non-financial incentives to attract, retain
and motivate talents. Various staff retention and engagement initiatives,
spanning from awarding performance bonus to offering welfare, recreation,
leisure and team-building activities, were deployed. The Group has also
attempted to boost a sense of belonging through cooperation in non-
work areas. For instance, the “TeamPower Olympics” was a bank-wide staff
engagement initiative which mixed sports competition and fun games,
helping to build strong teamwork and nourish a can-do attitude among the
staff.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

The Group also stresses continuous employee development. We have
been providing various workshops to enhance the overall competence
and professional standards of the staff. During the year under review, the
"Effective People Manager Program” was offered to strengthen the people
management skills of our managers, while the “Leadership Development
Framework” was developed to lay the foundation for grooming future
leaders of the Group. An average of five training days per staff member was
maintained.

Outlook

While the world economy has to a large extent remained on an upward
trajectory with stronger growth momentum projected for 2017, policy
uncertainty is likely to be the principal overhang. Among advanced
economies, the US should stay in the lead in terms of GDP growth, especially
if the new administration implements substantial expansionary fiscal
policies as expected. However, this may exacerbate inflation pressure and
precipitate sharper monetary tightening by the Federal Reserve Board.
Moreover, a tide of protectionist sentiments is palpable among developed
nations and can escalate with more political changes in the Eurozone. If
such leanings are translated into dramatic policy shifts, they may not only
imperil the global trade sector profoundly and disrupt international fund
flows but also heighten geopolitical tensions, potentially derailing the fragile
global recovery in recent years and intensifying the volatility in financial
markets.

In the face of unsettled external conditions, China has prioritized “growth
with stability” as its primary policy goal for the year ahead. Such stability
is expected to be anchored in continuous supply-side structural reforms,
supportive fiscal stimulus and a prudent monetary policy. A gradual
slowdown in headline GDP growth will be acceptable as long as the initial
success in eliminating excess industrial capacity can continue, and there
is sustained progress in rebalancing the economy from being heavily
reliant on investment to being more driven by consumer spending, and
from clinging to low value-added industrial activities to developing high-
tech and advanced manufacturing together with the service sector. In the
meantime, the Chinese government is expected to manage credit growth
to preclude asset bubbles and stem a disorderly depreciation of the RMB
that may aggravate capital outflows.

—B-AER
Annual Report 2016
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Given increasing complexities and vagaries of the external economic
environment, the banks in Hong Kong will have to contend with another
challenging year in 2017. Yet with challenges come opportunities, in our
view. History shows that a steeper yield curve usually bodes well for banks'
profitability. Moreover, to battle against emergent protectionism, China is
set to step up efforts to implement various key strategic policy initiatives
(namely “One Belt, One Road”, “Go Global” and free-trade zones) that can
help cement its relations with regional and international trading partners.
While the Chinese government is wary of the pace of domestic credit
expansion, it appears to be more relaxed about mainland enterprises
seeking cross-border financing abroad, which should render Hong Kong a
prime beneficiary given the city’s status as the leading offshore RMB centre.
Further out, US President Donald Trump has recently ordered to review
the 2010 Dodd-Frank act, which may result in relaxation of some restrictive
financial requlations and have important implications for regulatory regimes
elsewhere.

Such market dynamics can arguably work in the Group’s favour as it
continues to expand its cross-border business on various fronts to fulfill
its role as parent bank'’s sole offshore international platform, and to strive
to become “the best overseas integrated financial services provider”. For
2017, a three-pronged strategy will be adopted, i.e. continued business
transformation, continued investment in technology and continued
enhancement of risk management.

Capitalizing on close collaboration with CNCB and connection with the
CITIC Group remains the bedrock of the Group’s endeavour to diversify
away from conventional banking operations to promote capital-light and
asset-light growth. With cross-border host-to-host connectivity successfully
established between CNCB and CNCBI last year, the onshore customers
of CNCB, including the CITIC Group, can conduct account enquiries and
internal transfers with their subsidiaries and associated companies in Hong
Kong, representing a crucial step in strengthening the ties among the three
entities. Meanwhile, CNCB and CNCBI acted as joint global coordinators
last year to help finance a mainland enterprise in the biggest ever overseas
acquisition in Chinese economic history, marking an important milestone in
their collaborative effort.

Going forward, arranging credit facilities for mergers and acquisitions,
coupled with structured finance relating to capital market activities and
funding mainland corporations’ overseas businesses and investments, will
remain the main focus of the Group’s credit business development. The
Group will also leverage its newly launched DCM operations to enrich the
range of treasury products available to both corporate and retail clients.
With ample room for developing a wider array of innovative products to
help clients manage their risks and hedge against interest-rate and forex
movements, the treasury business of the Group is poised to enjoy promising
prospects. Moreover, the Group will explore the possibility of establishing
new businesses, including financial advisory, custodian and asset
management services, with a view to providing clients with customized and
comprehensive financial solutions.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

To facilitate the evolving new business model, continued investment in
bolstering the technology backbone is essential. The current treasury
system adopted by the Group is a professional set-up used by investment
banks and global financial institutions, and the second stage of the upgrade
is scheduled for completion this year. Meanwhile, the existing equity trading
and wealth management systems will be replaced. In terms of service
delivery, electronic channels will be further developed, with more mobile
banking applications in the offing, which can enhance customer experience
and satisfaction, appeal to the digital generation of consumers and reduce
the costs of operating physical channels. The Group is also planning to
allocate more resources to boost its in-house IT capability, aiming to
reduce service outsourcing and develop proprietary cutting-edge financial
technology applications.

In addition to the support of technology, sound risk management is vital
to generating healthy growth. With more interest rate hikes anticipated for
the US ahead, the interest-rate differentials between the US dollar (“USD")
and the Hong Kong dollar ("HKD") may widen, sparking off a capital outflow
from Hong Kong. As such, the Group must give top priority to liquidity
risk management, closely monitoring the overall liquidity position and in
particular funding in USD and RMB. Meanwhile, as the Group continues
to promote digital banking, it will devote considerable effort to fortifying
cyber security. Moreover, given ongoing business transformation with an
emphasis on cross-border financing and the development of new products
and services, the Group will continue to enhance credit risk management,
and to uphold a robust risk culture with clearly defined values, ethics and
behaviours, ensuring that front-line staff remain both customer-oriented
and constantly mindful of anti-money laundering ("AML") controls and
compliance risks.

Compared with the past two years, the operating conditions in 2017 are
just as challenging, if not more. Nonetheless, empowered by a supportive
parent bank, the Group will soldier on in the face of overwhelming odds,
revamping its business model and reinforcing its core competitiveness to
achieve better results and deliver sustainable growth ahead.

—E-RER
Annual Report 2016

019



020

20162751

NCIDSSicps E vt

oKl

BALLT
HITHS - ATEEE
NEIREF LB

Ms. Margaret Man
Executive Director

Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Group Head of Wholesale &
Cross-border Banking ¥ i

016FMBRBLABABETHE - MMEA
REFBSEDE ERNELERBEREMELT
F-BREMB LT AARBEELITD
RERTMH - BEERAZRE EH142%F
4088 TT  ERIEFBRAERIF19.8%MFAEE
FiE c 2006 F AREFERERFHFRIBLIE
o WATFED B E9.1%H2.3% o A7) & BIE
ERMeENESE SENCLEBERE
HREEREBENNREA - AETHER
TERPEEENEE LS UREGINER
WEMHMK -

FENGRERERRERBEED

HRAERTEAPCEEEREEREANERLHE
O EmEESEZRAY  MEATERE
EMNAEEEREEBEMNS N 2016F 2 F)
MEREBSTELABEEREHRAPLBEERE
BAHEESEEER - FEBWALRTF B
138% ' IRE E KRB B KRIE EFA52% 0 A
FEENRET  c LEBEB/REEME  F{EIR
TEHERRNBERK G EREIT  BEZRIET
BERXE A RXPECLXREHE —BAEEREE
EEMEEEN  BPZEERIKE —X
BHNRTE)  BRALUAKRP RS EEFINE
TERAN—ZEHERZ  WEEMES AL

FREIRT (B BRAE
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

2016 Review of Operations

Wholesale and Cross-Border Banking
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Acted with CNCB as joint global coordinators to lead a
landmark financing facility for the biggest ever overseas
acquisition made by a Chinese enterprise

Enhanced structured finance and syndication capabilities
contributed to strong growth in fee income and total
operating income

Collaboration with CNCB and the CITIC Group was further
strengthened by host-to-host system connectivity

Market and political uncertainties, coupled with continued depreciation of
the RMB, resulted in unfavourable and unpredictable operating conditions
in 2016. Despite the market volatility, Wholesale and Cross-Border Banking
Group (“WBG") delivered strong growth for the year. Total operating income
grew by 14.2% year on year to HK$4.0 billion; specifically, non-interest
income was up impressively by 19.8%. Customer loans and customer
deposits as at end-2016 also recorded solid growth of 9.1% and 2.3%
respectively from a year earlier. Such a good performance was attributable
to enhanced structured finance and syndication capabilities, strengthened
collaboration with CNCB and the CITIC Group, as well as increased
investment in overseas operations.

Stronger Structured Finance and Syndication

Riding on a strong client network and extensive brand recognition of
both CNCB and the CITIC Group, together with the contribution of an
experienced structured finance team, WBG achieved significant growth
in the structured finance and syndication business in 2016. Fee income
surged by 138% year on year while there was a 52% jump in syndicated
loan balance with a wider net interest margin. Most notably, parent bank
CNCB and CNCBI acted as global coordinators to lead a few other banks to
complete a landmark financing facility in support of a Chinese enterprise
to acquire an overseas company. This transaction was the biggest ever
overseas acquisition deal sealed by a mainland Chinese corporation and
was also the largest ever syndicated acquisition loan in Asia. It was awarded
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WBG Customer Loans Breakdown 2016

18%

7%

17%

23%

“Asia Syndicated Leveraged and Acquisition Finance Deal of the Year” and
“Syndicated Deal of the Year” by the Asia Pacific Loan Market Association.
The important role played by CNCBI in this transaction enabled it to
establish a leading position in Asia’s syndicated loan market. Going forward,
WBG will continue to build up the Bank’s market position and reputation
as a “solutions bank” for onshore companies to collaborate with in their
expansion plans abroad via direct investments or strategic acquisitions.

Closer Collaboration with CNCB and the CITIC Group

WBG's sustained effort in working synergistically with CNCB's branches,
strong commitment to deploy resources to develop well-timed value-
added cross-border financial products and complete dedication to a
customer-centric approach to conducting business have all proved
rewarding. Collaboration with CNCB and the CITIC Group reached new
heights, as witnessed by a 63% year-on-year increase in revenues derived
from customer referrals, which accounted for 33% of WBG's total income. To
proactively offer a better customer experience to large onshore corporations
with significant demand for cross-border financial products and services, a
new team was set up in the middle of last year with the mandate to handle
mega projects and service the strategic customers of both CNCB and the
Bank.

On technology, through the combined efforts of CNCB, the CITIC Group and
CNCBI, a new account aggregation service effected by host-to-host system
connectivity was introduced to allow onshore companies to better manage
the account activities of their subsidiaries in Hong Kong. This service has
enabled WBG to continue to upgrade the platform of delivering its services.
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Continued Growth in Overseas Branches

WBG has succeeded in strengthening the management teams of both the
New York Branch and the Los Angeles Branch in the US, in line with the
objective of bolstering its overseas operations and improving the service to
customers with businesses in different geographical locations. In 2016, these
two branches enjoyed 56% and 76% year-on-year growth in their customer
loans respectively. Moreover, in accordance with the Bank’s strategy to
expand its cross-border business with the companies in mainland China as
well as in the countries along “One Belt, One Road", WBG has extended its
structured finance and treasury business coverage to all overseas branches,
including Singapore and Macau. As such, it has created a well-established
network with broad capabilities to service those corporate customers of
both CNCB and CNCBI which have operations in different regions.

Sound Risk Management

A key to WBG's growth strategy is the promotion of effective risk
management. While implementing expansion plans, it would ensure that
the business activities conducted were in conformity with the Bank's overall
strategies and risk appetite. Despite a persistently challenging external
environment, asset quality remained healthy last year. WBG was able to
strike a balance between driving earnings growth and curbing credit risk,
reducing impairment losses by 27.0% compared with the preceding year.

2017 Outlook

Our base-case scenario for this year is that global economic growth will
accelerate moderately while China’'s economy will stay largely stable, giving
rise to an environment that is more conducive to banks’ operations with
increasing business opportunities. However, it is important to note that the
downside risks to this scenario are particularly high given that the new US
administration may adopt some bold policies that can impact negatively on
the global economy.



201625 [E1E

B FEE - PEAAERROANBERERRE
HIFEER LERRBNERRE A8t
SRR ERINRBINERPKME — LR
HoMEPBEINERFEER  ERHEHRA
BRARNBEREBHBOERERBOFR -
BrR—TE ARBFERZESHPRBMA
REVEFIE AR R - AR BEHI 59 1t
RIFZERPINER - BERNL - BRER
FERITETESRENBEMBES DR QAR
BEEBBORORE - EERETEBRFL

ERBERTEOAIET @ 2R REBERE
BRI EER D MARERITERNBOERZ
DITWHEREEREEMZIRNEHELS
THERE XK -

RERK  RAIMBEEGRGEETRE
BEE - MABRRBEALAERNT - WER
EHAFBEER XBEINRBIRAL
B FRESNEERGSEREEEMNE
RBA: AKZEAZEFPER  RWBEDN
TR ZEEEERGBER - AAIRBREBS
RETVARBEBRD ) FRAEZHHES
REREES  RATHELEXNER -

2016 Review of Operations

Meanwhile, China’s cross-border direct investments, both inbound and
outbound, will continue to grow. In particular, outbound direct investments
are expected to surge further as mainland enterprises step up their efforts
to seek overseas expansion. Together with a sustained recovery in China’s
trade sector, this should result in a further rise in the demand for the
products and services of WBG. On the other hand, measures undertaken by
the central government to discourage capital outflows caused by continued
depreciation of the RMB may dampen such demand and affect business
flows. As a result, close collaboration with CNCB and the CITIC Group will
remain the core strategy of WBG. In sympathy with the key economic
development initiatives of the Chinese government, WBG will continue to
leverage the extensive branch network of CNCB in the mainland and the
wide global business coverage of the CITIC Group to develop its businesses.

Looking ahead, WBG will keep upgrading its operations, investing in
technology and attracting new talents to ensure long-term sustainable
growth. It will focus on improving its income structure by means of realizing
better return on assets and increasing fee income from a diversified product
mix. It will also strive to strengthen its balance sheet by attracting stable
deposits from a larger and broader customer base. WBG is confident of
maintaining its growth momentum, continuing to achieve encouraging
progress in various businesses and making significant contribution to the
Bank.

—B-AER
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Personal and Business Banking

REWA23.8FB T - BF LF119.6% » BRIE LT

EEFREENS #1130 18T AR
11.0%

Operating income hit another record high of HK$2.38

billion, up 19.6%

Customer deposits grew to a new high of HK$113.91 billion,
up 11.0%

Personal & Business Banking Group ("PBG”") continued to gain business
growth momentum despite a dynamic and challenging market
environment. Operating income for the year achieved another record high
of HK$2.38 billion, representing a 19.6% growth against 2015. Profit before
taxation also set a new record of HK$965 million, up 25.1% year on year.

PBG's customer base was strengthened through deeper collaboration with
parent bank CNCB, penetration into local affluent markets, more acquisition
of business banking customers and stronger growth of high net worth
customers. PBG Wealth Management also posted strong results.

At end-2016, customer deposits reached a new high of HK$113.91 billion,
representing an increase of 11.0% versus end-2015. PBG exercised prudent
credit risk management when looking for high-quality loans. Customer
loans grew 4.8% year on year to reach HK$42.71 billion as at end-2016.
Benefitting from growth in both deposits and loans, 2016 net interest
income rose by 19.4% year on year. Meanwhile, non-interest income in 2016
rose by 19.9% year on year to HK$790 million. Total operating expenses
increased by 16.9% versus 2015, which was a result of our commitment to
investing in advanced technologies to enhance PBG's infrastructure systems
and e-channel capabilities. Loan impairment losses were further reduced
to HK$33.4 million in 2016 on the back of prudent credit risk management,
with net impairment ratio remaining at a healthy rate of 0.08%.
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First Business Banking Center in Central

BEREBEBRITHORNFR

Strengthened Cross-Border Collaboration

Private banking business experienced rapid growth due to close connection
with the branches of parent bank CNCB, which facilitated the provision of
personalized services to high net worth cross-border customers. Operating
income of private banking hit an all-time high, surging over 3 times from
2015, while its customer assets under management and the number
of customers as at end-2016 rose by 38.7% and 172.9% respectively as
compared to end-2015.

Enhanced Distribution Channels

PBG continued to enhance its e-capabilities to provide borderless banking
services. With the aim to improve customer experience for both local
and cross-border customers, our strategic alliance with Tencent has been
further strengthened through the signing of a new merchant agreement
to benefit from WeChat marketing programmes. In September 2016, CNCBI
became the first Bank in the market to offer WeChat peer-to-peer (“P2P")
service via deposit account binding. Later in the year, PBG also opened the
first business banking centre in Central to provide a full range of banking
services catering to the borrowing and investment needs of business
banking customers.

—E-RER
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Increased Innovative Products

PBG designs various product mixes to match customers’ savings, borrowing
and investment needs. In 2016, PBG launched five new Premium Financing
products which helped to drive lending balance and revenue. In addition,
PBG established relationships with three new fund management companies
and introduced over 30 new funds/fund share classes. Remarkably, PBG was
one of the first banks to launch mutual recognition funds in the market. PBG
also became one of the top retail banking distributors with three equity-
linked investments (“ELI") issuers on the shelf after adding Credit Suisse to
the platform. To respond to customer needs and market sentiment, we
expanded our bond business by launching over 50 bonds during 2016,
which led to a 41.8% year-on-year increase in bond fee income. To satisfy
customers’ various protection needs, PBG also launched a wide range of
insurance products, including Personal Accident Plan, ManuEssential Care,
ManuPrestige/ManuPrestige Protector, ManuSilver Care, ManuAmber Care
and 8-Year Saver Endowment Plan.

Prudent Asset Quality Management

PBG adopts rigorous credit risk management procedures to ensure that
asset quality remains at healthy levels. As a result, coupled with the help of
effective collection efforts, PBG was able to achieve lower delinquency rates.
Loan impairment losses in 2016 were HK$33.4 million, 10.8% lower than that
of 2015. Net impairment ratio remained low at 0.08% in 2016. In addition,
residential mortgage delinquency ratio remained at a low level against
industry benchmark.

Wide Market Recognition

PBG's efforts have been well-recognized by various industry players. Last
year it was awarded several prizes, including “Company for Financial Planning
Excellence of the Year 2016" presented by the South China Morning Post/
Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong Financial Planner Awards, “The
Most Favorite Mobile Banking Services Award” in the Banking & Finance
Award 2016 organized by Sky Post, “The Best Fin Tech (Emerging Solutions)
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Certificate of Merit” in Hong Kong ICT Awards 2016, and two prizes by Metro
Finance, namely “Metro Finance Hong Kong Leaders’ Choice Awards 2016 —
Excellent Brand of Private Banking and Excellent Brand of Mobile Banking".

2017 Outlook

Going into 2017, the global environment is filled with uncertainties with
Britain’s exit from the European Union (“Brexit”) and the new US presidency
creating volatility in the market. On a positive note, the world economy
seems poised for mildly stronger growth. Among developed countries, a
faster expansion of the US economy is likely to offset slightly slower growth
of the Eurozone, while a rebound in commodity-exporting emerging
markets may compensate for a further slowdown in China’s growth
momentum.

However, better prospects for oil and other commodities, as well as the
USD's appreciation made possible by more frequent rate hikes in the US, will
likely create greater business risks in 2017. Formal talks for the UK to leave
the European Union, key ballots in major European countries, the looming
threat of protectionism created by the new US government, and economic
adjustments in mainland China will also cast uncertainty over the global
economic outlook. Under such circumstances, the business operating
environment will remain challenging.

PBG will continue to enhance its competitive edges by capitalizing on close
collaboration with parent bank CNCB. The close integration of our cross-
border infrastructure will enable us to sustain quality growth and earnings.
We will focus on reinforcing our core businesses by providing customers
with total banking solutions in wealth management and SME business
activities.

Customer experience is our top priority. PBG will further invest in digital
and internet banking platforms to enhance customer experience and
convenience for our increasingly mobile and tech-savvy customer base. PBG
is always committed to raising our bar in staff competence and governance
excellence. We believe that we are well-positioned to grow further as we
partner with our clients to help them achieve their future financial success.

—E-RER
Annual Report 2016
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Treasury and Markets
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Investment income in 2016 grew strongly due to

successful exploitation of interest-rate trends and trading
opportunities

The Global Markets team overcame the reliance on a single

product to improve its marketing revenues in 2016

The volatility in offshore RMB exchange rate and interest rates, together with
Britain’s decision to leave the European Union (“Brexit”) and the uncertainty
clouding the US presidential election, resulted in a challenging operating
environment in 2016. Despite these headwinds, Treasury and Markets
Group ("TMG") registered strong growth in investment income by taking
advantage of the USD and CNH interest-rate trends and capturing trading
opportunities. Meanwhile, the Global Markets team overcame the reliance
on a single product and offered effective solutions to satisfy customers’
needs for risk hedging, financing and investment, achieving a moderate
growth in marketing revenues when compared to the previous year.

Rewarding Investment and Prudent Liquidity Management

The fixed income market saw wide fluctuations in 2016. While the world
economy was struggling to gain growth momentum, deflationary concerns
were exacerbated by an unexpected Brexit in the middle of the year,
which drove US Treasury yields to all-time lows and caused the Federal
Reserve’s rates normalization plan to come to a standstill. TMG proactively
and cautiously expanded the size of CNCBI's bond portfolio in view of such
market conditions, which increased the Bank's accrued interest income and
provided it with capital gains on disposal during the third quarter. In the
fourth quarter, volatility intensified when a new US president was elected.
TMG reacted prudently and promptly by reducing the Bank's interest-rate
exposure. As a result, bond investment-related income for 2016 increased
significantly year on year, as interest income grew by 29% while trading
income surged by 3.6 times.
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In view of the uncertainties and volatilities in financial markets last year,
TMG kept a prudent stance in managing liquidity risk. Average liquidity
maintenance ratio and loans to deposits ratio were maintained at healthy
levels of 60.8% and 74.7% respectively at end-2016. In particular, the off-
shore RMB loans to deposits ratio was well controlled at 35.7%, which
mitigated the volatility in short-term interest rates. The launch of a new
internal pricing framework is expected to further drive desirable balance-
sheet behaviour. On the group level, overseas funding arrangement has
been established with a focus on prudent liquidity risk management, as
the balance sheet of overseas branches and their transaction volumes
have become increasingly material. This has laid a solid foundation for the
Group’s balance sheet to grow in a healthy and efficient manner ahead.

TMG's marketing team worked closely with both WBG and PBG to provide
financial solutions to help the Bank's clients manage their forex and interest-
rate exposures against extreme market volatilities resulting from RMB
depreciation, Brexit and the US presidential election. Yield enhancement
products were offered to them to capture opportunities arising from this
volatility, while RMB-related structured deposits were launched to take
advantage of the high interest-rate environment.

—E-RER
Annual Report 2016
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The Global Markets team overcame the reliance on a single product by
strengthening the sales of flow products and successfully launching
effective solutions which suited clients’ risk hedging needs to cope with
RMB depreciation. Combined with efforts to set up the Debt Capital Markets
("'DCM") business and diversify the product range, the Global Markets team
achieved sales revenues that were slightly ahead of the previous year.

TMG's DCM business was established in June 2016 to enhance its client
service capability, and has already secured a good foundation despite fierce
market competition. Since the launch of the business, DCM successfully led
13 deals in 2016.

TMG expanded its fixed income trading capability in 2016 to cater for the
bond investment needs of the Bank’s clients. Bond transaction volumes of
the Bank increased by fivefold last year compared to 2015, with the sales
volume attributable to retail clients also being boosted substantially.

TMG continued to invest in infrastructure and successfully completed the
installation of the first phase of the treasury system MUREX last year. This
has increased the Bank's treasury product range in order to better serve
clients’ needs and strengthened its risk management capability. In addition,
the Bank has started the development of an electronic platform for dealing
in treasury products which is targeted to roll out in 2018 for relationship
managers in PBG to facilitate automation in the execution of treasury
products. The ultimate aim of this electronic platform is to allow the Bank’s
clients to fulfill most of their treasury needs online, thereby enabling the
Bank to increase the scalability of its treasury business with a significantly
broader client base.



201625 [E1E

RL2017F ZEKLERRDATARR
BEBETERREMSHERER - FEI
EREXEARRSIBRRAR - BUNBOS
PEXAREE TR BEBESERT
B - HRNEHORNE M B BTG RAEE
w5 MERBBEETEME - ERARE
SMEERFE IS KA S E TR - FEFEM
EMmHBH - BXBENARELRESER
AT AZEE #ABHFWEENEXELZE
®cEBEEMERRAFEEEY  SEAEK
AEF SHRTEEERE -

HILER  ERTEKDSATEPENT
RETHF RAEEMEERANTR - KU
HOBE R BRI R E K o AR 2 5 R A 5 2R
FERXHHE -

MERREMESHERITHERITERAR
tE AIELASENHRME  ARGEES
HIEEBEHREAT SRR T RN X HE K
g BOHIREPRERARIMETR -

AN MERIRRMGEHNE T HEBEER
MIHERD  EOATTHMEXRBERES
BRREP  XARXZEKENXZE -
BILERXHEEN  UEXEBEBEAMSE
BEER -

BEINHRRIEES - BELREKTGH
REEZIBEIMTSERPM - ZEBHEHE
e "REPEAXTRAIEEZ(EE-

2016 Review of Operations

Looking ahead, a lack of visibility in the macro environment continues to
pose challenges to TMG in 2017. Policy risks related to Trump's presidency
and likely changes to the European political landscape will induce growing
uncertainties. Volatility is expected to rise owing to the theme of global
liquidity moving from emerging markets to developed markets, with
the RMB forex and interest-rate markets under particular focus. China’s
overheated housing sector and potential trade conflicts with the US are also
causes for concern. Bond yields and interest rates may rise, but at the same
time liabilities cost may also increase as short-term deposits are rolled over,
presenting challenges to the Bank's net interest margin.

Meanwhile, volatilities in financial markets should heighten the hedging
needs of the Bank’s clients and stimulate their demand for treasury products
to hedge forex and interest-rate exposures. There will also likely be more
trading opportunities associated with such volatilities.

With increased synergy derived from close collaboration with parent bank
CNCB, TMG will continuously focus on cross-selling opportunities arising
from the DCM business in an effort to provide not only off-balance sheet
but also on-balance sheet treasury solutions to clients.

Furthermore, enhanced institutional sales capability of TMG will help the
Bank extend its treasury business to cover clients in the financial sector,
generate more trade flows for the trading team, strengthen its trading
capability and bolster the DCM business.

Despite various challenges posed by the external environment, TMG will
continue to monitor market developments closely, and prudently seize
opportunities to add value to clients and the Bank.

—B-AER
Annual Report 2016
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Corporate Social Responsibility

FTEI3FERML2,0008 B THEE
[ TouchEnglish | EBEEREEE

A total of HK$20 million has been earmarked for the
development of e-learning platform TouchEnglish over a 3-year
span with a view to enhancing the English proficiency of more
than 10,000 students from underprivileged backgrounds

China CITIC Bank International Limited (“CNCBI") and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) have been eager to uphold the spirit of good
corporate citizenship. While considerable effort has gone into conducting
banking business and providing quality and innovative services, the Group
has also been keen to drive worthy causes to serve the underprivileged
community.

The Group in 2016 broke new ground in the area of corporate social
responsibility (“CSR”). In view of the myriad opportunities brought forth by
the Internet+ era, CNCBI extended its pioneering spirit in mobile banking
to the area of CSR and focused resources on building e-learning platform
TouchEnglish in an effort to facilitate effective learning for the benefit of as
many students from underprivileged backgrounds as possible. Meanwhile,
a CSR Committee was assembled to include management staff from various
CNCBI departments with the aim of bringing together the individuals’
professional strengths and networks to enhance the governance of related
initiatives while helping the philanthropic spirit to permeate the Group.

E-learning Platform Shows Promise

Convinced that knowledge changes the future and that today's education
shapes tomorrow's society, the Group has always prioritised underprivileged
students’ education in its CSR development.

In 2008, the Group collaborated with St. James’ Settlement to undertake the
“CITIC Bank International Knowledge Angel Project”, which provided free
tutorials to students from underprivileged backgrounds. The project was
expanded in 2012 into the 3-year “CNCBI Knowledge Angel Academy”. Over
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the 8 years' span, 1,300 students reaped the benefits. At the Academy’s end
in 2015, more than half of the participants showed improvement in the
major subjects of Chinese language, English language and Mathematics.
More than 20% of the Primary 6 participants secured sought-after places
at English-medium-instruction secondary schools. Encouragingly, this
percentage was higher than the competition rate of such school places in
Hong Kong.

Building on the foundation of the Academy, CNCBI sought to transform
traditional learning in a bid to increase the breadth and depth of related
undertakings, with a HK$20 million pledge over a 3-year span for the
launch of TouchEnglish in partnership with resourceful e-learning veteran
e-Learning Consortium. This learning-effective platform is expected to help
at least 10,000 students from underprivileged backgrounds to improve their
English skills with pleasure and greater effectiveness and increase their self-
confidence, achieving cost-effectiveness at the same time.

A gamified programme with an emphasis on happy learning, TouchEnglish
engages students in daily 30-minute learning by giving them games and
tasks with the aim of increasing their English proficiency in a progressive
manner. The programme pushes the envelope of traditional learning
models by increasing students’ English learning interest via a stimulating
e-learning platform. It embodies a people-oriented concept which seeks to
close the learning gaps among different participants as they are assigned
games and tasks in accordance with their individual ability and progress.
The programme also facilitates parent-school collaboration by providing
parents and teachers with learning reports, helping the students to make
steady progress.

In order to gauge the effectiveness of the e-learning platform and ensure
the smooth running of TouchEnglish, a pilot programme was launched
from March to July 2016 with the participation of 900 underprivileged
students from 4 primary schools. The students achieved tremendous results
after that short period of time in terms of learning interest, competence in
English and self-confidence:

e An average of about 1,200 questions, the equivalent of the amount
contained in over 10 supplementary exercise books, were answered by

each of the students

e Anincrease of more than 20% in English proficiency
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e 50% of the students conquered their fears of learning English

e The percentage of students satisfied with their English skills rose to 74%
from 37%

TouchEnglish was launched officially at the start of the 2016 academic
year. As at end-2016, more than 9,000 students from more than 20 primary
schools have already enrolled successfully in the free programme.

Sustained Contribution to Community Well-being

The Group spares no effort to support good causes in addition to
the strategic focus on education for students from underprivileged
backgrounds. In August 2016, CNCBI acted as the principal patron of
the China Post Tour Concert 2016 by Hong Kong Children’s Symphony
Orchestra and gave away 300 complimentary tickets to the 4 primary
schools participating in the TouchEnglish pilot programme. It was
hoped that the students’ horizons would be broadened by immersion
in an exploratory journey of quality music which would also give them a
memorable summer holiday.

Staff of the Group also showed equal enthusiasm about taking part in
worthy causes. For instance, CNCBI had for 7 consecutive years supported
environmental group Green Power’s annual Green Power Hike. Last year
CNCBI sponsored about 50 staff members to form 12 corporate teams
for the 10km, 25km and 50km hikes with all the proceeds going to the
organisation’s local environmental education programmes. During the year
under review, the Group's staff also contributed to the services supported
by The Community Chest by participating in the organisation’s Green Day
donation drive.

Enhancing CSR Governance

In 2016, CNCBI established its CSR Committee, which is chaired by the
Director of CEO Office. Committee members include management staff
who are in turn responsible for such functions as the approval, governance
and assessment of various CSR initiatives, as well as encouraging staff
participation. This is to ensure that resources are appropriately and
effectively used in CSR undertakings which are in line with the Group's core
values and development strategies.

Token of Acknowledgement

CNCBI received The Hong Kong Council of Social Service's 10 Years Plus
Caring Company Logo and a Bronze Award from The Community Chest
of Hong Kong's Corporate and Employee Contribution Programme for its
continuous contribution and commitment to the underprivileged.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. Sun Deshun

(Chairman)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 15 March 2013 and further elected
Chairman on 15 May 2015. Mr. Sun is an Executive Director and President of
China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited and a Non-executive Director of CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Sun has more than 30 years of
experience in the banking industry in China. Before joining China CITIC Bank
Corporation Limited in 2011, he had served in Bank of Communications as
Vice President of its Beijing Management Department and President of the
Beijing Branch. Prior to that, he had worked in the Haidian Office, Haidian Sub-
branch, Beijing Branch and Head Office Data Centre (Beijing) of The Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China in various positions including Assistant
President and Vice President of its Beijing Branch and General Manager of the
Head Office Data Centre (Beijing). He had also worked in The People’s Bank of
China. Mr. Sun graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics
with a Master's Degree in Economics. He was named a “Senior Economist” by
The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China.

Mr. Zhang Xiaowei

(Executive Director, President & Chief Executive Officer)

Appointed Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank on 22 October
2012. Mr. Zhang is presently an Executive Director, President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Bank. He is also Chairman of CITIC Bank International
(China) Limited. A veteran banker with 32 years of experience in the banking
industries in Mainland China and Hong Kong, Mr. Zhang was formerly a
Non-executive Director of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited and had
held various senior positions at Agricultural Bank of China and Bank of
Communications. He was also Vice President of the Hong Kong Branch of
Bank of Communications and President of the Hong Kong Branch of China
Merchants Bank. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Zhang was an Executive
Director, General Manager and Alternate Chief Executive Officer of Wing
Lung Bank. Mr. Zhang holds a Bachelor's Degree in Economics from the
Beijing Economics Institute and a Master's Degree in Monetary and Banking
from the Graduate School of The People’s Bank of China. He was appointed
Vice President of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers in August 2013.

Ms. Margaret Man

(Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Group Head of Wholesale
and Cross-border Banking Group)

Appointed Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Bank on 28
June 2012. Ms. Man is also Group Head of Wholesale and Cross-border
Banking of the Bank, and Vice Chairman of CITIC Bank International (China)
Limited. Ms. Man has about 31 years of experience in the banking and
finance industry. She had held a number of senior positions including
Division Chief of The People’s Bank of China and Deputy Managing Director
of China Venturetechno International Co Ltd. Ms. Man graduated from
Shanxi Financial and Economics University with a Bachelor's Degree in
Economics and further studied for a Master's Degree in Banking and Finance
at the Graduate School of The People’s Bank of China.
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Biographies of Directors

Mrs. Helen Kan

(Executive Director, Alternate Chief Executive Officer and Group Head of Personal
& Business Banking)

Appointed Director and Alternate Chief Executive Officer of the Bank
on 15 March 2013. Mrs. Kan is also Group Head of Personal & Business
Banking of the Bank. She has 30 years of experience in the banking and
finance industry. Over the years, Mrs. Kan had held various senior positions
across a broad spectrum of banking and finance exposures in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and other global markets. Prior to joining the Bank, she
was Standard Chartered Bank’s Global Head of Distribution in charge of the
strategic development and performance of distribution channels across 33
geographic locations covering a global customer population in excess of 14
million. Mrs. Kan holds an Honours Degree in Management and Economics,
and a Master's Degree in Laws from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Fang Heying

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 24 March 2016. Mr. Fang is currently
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of China CITIC Bank Corporation
Limited. He is also a Non-executive Director of CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited and a Director of CNCB (Hong Kong) Investment Limited.
Mr. Fang joined China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited in 1996 and was
formerly the President of Suzhou Branch, President of Hangzhou Branch
and Business Director of Financial Markets. He served as a Vice President
of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited since November 2014. Mr. Fang
graduated from Hunan College of Finance and Economics with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Finance and obtained an Executive Master's Degree in Business
Administration from Peking University.

Mr. Zhang Qiang

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 15 April 2013. Mr. Zhang is currently Vice
President of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited, Director of CNCB (Hong
Kong) Investment Limited and CNCB (Hong Kong) Capital Limited. He
joined China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited in 1990 and has held various
senior positions, including General Manager of Credit Department, Business
Department and Corporate Banking Department, and President of Jinan
Branch and Qingdao Branch. Mr. Zhang has over 28 years of experience in
the banking industry in China. He graduated from Zhongnan University of
Finance and Economics (now known as Zhongnan University of Finance,
Economics and Law) with a Bachelor's Degree in Economics and obtained a
Master's Degree in Finance from Liaoning University. Mr. Zhang was granted
the title of “Senior Economist” by CITIC Group Corporation.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. Tang Shisheng

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on 13
November 2013. Mr. Tang is Chairman of Hodojou Technology Co., Ltd.,
Executive Director of Beijing Sinosoft Co., Ltd., and Independent Director
of Geo Jade Petroleum Corporation, Wison Engineering Services Co. Ltd.
and Chongging Three Gorges Bank Co.,, Ltd. He has extensive experience in
finance and securities industries. Mr. Tang graduated from Hunan College
of Finance and Economics with a Bachelor's Degree in Finance. He received
his Master's Degree in Economics and Doctor's Degree in Economics
respectively from the Graduate School of The People’s Bank of China and
the Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. Mr. Tang was
granted the title of “Senior Economist” by The People’s Construction Bank of
Chinain 1993.

Ms. Tsang King Suen Katherine

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the
Credit & Risk Management Committee of the Bank on 1 December 2016.
Ms. Tsang is a well-recognised member of the Asian financial and business
community. Fortune Magazine (China) named her as No. 6 China’s Most
Influential Businesswomen in 2012 and she was on the top 25 list from
2070 to 2013. Ms. Tsang is the founder of Max Giant, a group of asset
management companies with a focus on China. She is also an Independent
Non-executive Director of Gap Inc. (listed in New York), a member of the
Advisory Council for China of the City of London, and an honorary board
member of Shanghai Jiao Tong University. Ms. Tsang was formerly with
Standard Chartered Bank for over 20 years with her last role as Chairperson
of Greater China before she retired in August 2014. She attained her
Bachelor of Commerce Degree from University of Alberta, Canada.

Mr. Wang Guoliang

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on 12 August
2016 and elected as Chairman of Audit Committee on 2 November 2016.
Mr. Wang is a professor-level senior accountant and is currently Outside
Director of State Grid Corporation of China and Independent Non-executive
Director of China Taiping Insurance Group Limited. Mr. Wang worked
as Chief Accountant of China National Petroleum Corporation and was
Chairman of Bank of Kunlun. He has extensive experience in finance and
accounting. Mr. Wang graduated from Harbin University of Commerce
with a Bachelor's Degree in Economics. He received his Master's Degree in
International Economics from Hebei University.

Mr. Wu Jiesi

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on 5 August
2013. Mr. Wu is Chairman of Shenzhen Fuhaiyintao Asset Management
Co., Ltd. He is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Beijing
Enterprises Holdings Limited, China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company
Limited and The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited,
and Non-executive Director of Shenzhen Investment Limited and Silver
Base Group Holdings Limited. Mr. Wu has extensive experience in corporate
management, investment and finance. He holds a Doctor’s Degree in
Economics from The Research Institution of The People’s Bank of China. Mr.
Wu conducted post-doctorate research work in theoretical economics at
Nankai University and was conferred a professorship qualification by Nankai
University in 2001.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Mr. Roy Huang

(Alternate Chief Executive Officer, General Counsel and Group Head of Internal
Control)

Joined the Bank in November 2004 as Senior Vice President, General
Counsel and Head of Compliance. Mr. Huang is currently an Alternate Chief
Executive Officer, General Counsel and Group Head of Internal Control of
the Bank as well as Group General Counsel of CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited with his scope of responsibility encompassing the
management of legal and internal control affairs. Mr. Huang has more than
35 years of legal and regulatory experience in Hong Kong and the United
States. Before joining the Bank, Mr. Huang was partner-in-charge of legal
affairs Asia-Pacific at Andersen Worldwide. Mr. Huang graduated from The
University of California, Berkeley, with an Artium Baccalaureus in History and
Georgetown University Law School with a Juris Doctor Degree.

Mr. Jeffery Bai

(Alternate Chief Executive Officer and Acting Treasurer)

Joined the Bank in December 2015 as Acting Treasurer and appointed
Alternate Chief Executive Officer of the Bank on 20 April 2016. Mr. Bai
is responsible for the Bank's Treasury & Markets Group with a view to
strengthen funding and liquidity management, in addition to a focus on
driving CNCB- and CITIC group-related collaboration for enhanced business
development for the Bank. He joined China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
from Bank of Beijing in 2006 and advanced his banking career in financial
markets. In 2009, he took up an additional role in corporate governance
and projects at the Chairman Office of CITIC Group, assisting the Group's
Chairman with business affairs. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Bai's was
CNCB's Deputy General Manager of the Office of the Board of Directors and
Supervisors. Mr. Bai holds a Bachelor of Economics Degree from the School
of Economics at Nankai University in Tianjin and a Master of Finance Degree
from the School of Finance at Renmin University of China in Beijing.

Mr. John Lee

(Chief Personnel Officer)

Joined the Bank in July 2006 as Senior Vice President. Mr. Lee is now Chief
Personnel Officer of the Bank and Head of Group Human Resources of CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited. He started his banking career
at Standard Chartered Bank in an information technology function and
served for 20 years in various management positions in several business
and support functions, including consumer banking, human resources,
and post-merger integration in Asia Pacific. Before joining the Bank, Mr.
Lee headed the people development function in The Mass Transit Railway
Corporation Limited (now known as MTR Corporation Limited). Mr. Lee
holds a Bachelor's Degree in Economics from Carleton University, Ottawa,
Canada, and a Master's Degree in Business Administration from Oklahoma
City University, Oklahoma, the United States.

Mr. Michael Leung

(Chief Information and Operations Officer)

Joined the Bank in December 2013 as Chief Information and Operations
Officer responsible for managing the Bank's information technology and
operations. Mr. Leung has over 30 years of experience in technology and
operations management from various local and international organisations
including Bank of America (Asia), Standard Chartered Bank, Dao Heng Bank,
IBM, Price Waterhouse, and Philips Telecommunication and Data Systems.
Before joining the Bank, Mr. Leung was Deputy Chief Executive and Chief
Information Officer of China Construction Bank (Asia). Mr. Leung holds
a Bachelor’s Degree in Electronics from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong, a Postgraduate Diploma from the Graduate School of Retail Bank
Management at The University of Virginia in the US, and a Master's Degree
in Engineering from Netherlands Universities Foundation.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Mr. Elton Tam

(Chief Financial Officer)

Joined the Bank in December 2014 as Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Tam also
serves as Group Chief Financial Officer of CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited. Mr. Tam has more than 30 years of experience in
accounting and financial management. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr.
Tam was General Manager and Group Financial Controller of Dah Sing
Bank, Limited. Before that, he had held various senior finance positions
at Standard Chartered Bank Group across different business areas such
as consumer banking, treasury and wholesale banking in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and Taiwan. Mr. Tam graduated from The University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Social Science Degree, The Chinese University
of Hong Kong with a Master of Science Degree in Finance, City University
of Hong Kong with a Doctor of Business Administration Degree and
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics with a Doctorate Degree
in Economics. He is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the
UK and The Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales. He is
also a qualified member of Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
of China, American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Chartered
Professional Accountants of Canada.

Mr. David Kwan

(Chief Risk Officer)

Joined the Bank in 2009 as Head of Credit Risk Management and was
appointed Deputy Chief Risk Officer in 2013. Mr. Kwan is currently the
Bank's Chief Risk Officer responsible for managing all key risks of the Bank.
Mr. Kwan has more than 30 years of banking experience. Prior to joining
the Bank, he was Head of Corporate Credit Risk, Regional Risk Office
(Asia) of ABN-AMRO Bank NV (Hong Kong Office). Over the years, he had
accumulated a wealth of experience in risk management from a fruitful
career at banking institutions including BNP Paribas Hong Kong, HSBC and
Rabobank Hong Kong Branch. Mr. Kwan received his education in Canada.
He holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from University of Prince Edward Island,
Master of Business Administration Degree from Dalhousie University and
Post-baccalaureate Diploma in Computing Science from Simon Fraser
University. He subsequently obtained a Bachelor of Laws (LLB) Degree from
Manchester Metropolitan University, United Kingdom.

Ms. Zoe Lau

(Director of CEO Office)

Joined the Bank in August 2007 as Senior Vice President and Head of Wealth
Management & Strategic Planning. Ms. Lau is currently Director of CEO
Office of the Bank and is responsible for coordinating various corporate
initiatives and activities for the Chief Executive Officer, as well as overseeing
the Bank's brand management, corporate communications and investor
relations. Ms. Lau has over 20 years of experience in the areas of cards,
payment services, wealth management and strategic planning with major
multinational banks in Hong Kong. Ms. Lau had also worked extensively in
the advertising and marketing industry in Canada and Hong Kong. Before
joining the Bank, Ms. Lau was Head of Marketing, Greater China, American
Express Hong Kong. Ms. Lau holds a Bachelor's Degree of Social Sciences
from The University of Hong Kong.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Ms. Rita Man

(Chief Compliance Officer)

Joined the Bank in February 2005 as Senior Counsel. Ms. Man is currently
the Bank’s Chief Compliance Officer and is responsible for managing the
overall compliance function in the Bank. Ms. Man has more than 30 years of
experience in the legal, compliance and banking areas. Ms. Man started her
career as a management trainee in a leading bank in Hong Kong and gained
comprehensive banking experience in a span of 10 years. Ms. Man spent
the following 10 years as a lawyer in private practice, offering professional
legal service in banking, financing and litigation to various banks in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. Ms. Man holds a Bachelor's Degree in Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws from The University of Hong Kong, and a Bachelor’s
Degree in Laws from Peking University. She was admitted as a solicitor of
the High Court of Hong Kong.

Mr. David Yau

(Chief Auditor)

Joined the Bank in November 2014 as Chief Auditor of the Bank. Mr. Yau has
more than 20 years of experience in the finance industry. Before joining the
Bank, he was a Partner and China National Financial Services Risk Solutions
Leader for Enterprise Risk Service of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. He had
held senior management positions with Fortis Group, ABN AMRO Group,
Deutsche Bank Group, Normura International (Hong Kong) Limited and
Bankers Trust Company Hong Kong. Mr. Yau is a Fellow Member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales and The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in Australia. He graduated from The University of Manchester with a
Bachelor's Degree in Economics.
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Corporate Information

Board of Directors

Chairman
Mr. Sun Deshun

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Xiaowei (President & Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Margaret Man (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)

Mrs. Kan Ng Chau Yuk Helen (Alternate Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fang Heying
Mr. Zhang Qiang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tang Shisheng

Ms. Tsang King Suen Katherine

Mr. Wang Guoliang

Mr. Wu Jiesi

Audit Committee

Mr. Wang Guoliang (Chairman)

Mr. Fang Heying

Mr. Wu Jiesi

Registered Office

61-65 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 3603 6633

Fax: (852) 3603 4000
www.cncbinternational.com

Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers
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Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Principal place of business

China CITIC Bank International Limited (the “Bank”) is a licensed bank
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office at
61-65 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The Bank has branches outside
Hong Kong and operating in Macau, the Cayman Islands, Singapore, New
York and Los Angeles.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the
provision of general banking and related financial services, primarily in Hong
Kong. Particulars of the Bank's principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016
are set out in note 21 to the financial statements.

Financial statements

The consolidated profit of the Bank and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2016 is set out under the consolidated income statement on
page 56.

Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

Share capital

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Bank issued a total of
1,800,000,000 ordinary shares at HK$1.00 each to its holding company, CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited, on 26 January 2016 (2015: Nil).
Details of the share capital of the Bank are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.

Additional equity instrument

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Bank priced its
US$500,000,000 Basel Ill compliant Undated Non-cumulative Subordinated
Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities with the legal binding subscription
agreements signed on 29 September 2016 (2015: Nil). Details of the
additional equity instrument of the Bank are set out in note 30 of the
financial statements.

Equity-linked agreements

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Bank has not entered into any
equity-linked agreement.
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Report of the Directors

Directors

(a) Directors of the Bank
As at the date of this report, the Board of Directors of the Bank comprises:

Chairman
Mr. SUN Deshun

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Xiaowei (President & Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Margaret MAN (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)

Mrs. KAN NG Chau Yuk Helen (Alternate Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. FANG Heying (appointed on 24 March 2016)
Mr. ZHANG Qiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. TANG Shisheng

Ms. TSANG King Suen Katherine (appointed on 1 December 2016)
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung Paul

Mr. WANG Guoliang (appointed on 12 August 2016)

Mr. WU lJiesi

In accordance with Article 97 of the Bank's Articles of Association, all present
Directors shall retire from office by rotation at the next Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election save for Mr.
TSANG Yiu Keung Paul as mentioned below.

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this report,
there are movements in the Directors of the Bank as follows:

Mr. CAO Guogiang (resigned as a Non-executive Director on 24 March 2016)

Mr. Rafael GIL-TIENDA (resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director
on 1 December 2016)

Besides, Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung Paul has tendered resignation from the Board
which will take effect from 1 April 2017.

All these resigned and to-be resigned Directors of the Bank have no
disagreement with the Board and nothing relating to the affairs of the Bank
needed to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Bank.

—E-XFR
Annual Report 2016

043



044

(b) &1THIB A T ESE
HE206F12A3BLEFEARBERARESE A
HE  ATTEBHRNER L BTk
BiE  THEERTETHBARIMNES -

HE016F12A3BEFEARBERREER
B AITHBRANEMESEE s 2L
HREBESAE  BEBURSA C SUREE -
FERTTAE ~ BRI A - THESLE  REXE
£ BHREEMEREE - MATTHE AR
EBAES I RERFS LT MHEELE

ESHEG

AT~ AEAHER AR~ B ARRERME A
AR F RIS AFEAEMERE - BERT 7 A
AATHEBMEBEKR > MATESRERE
FNEEXREZFAEAEANRS - KHFHA
#) o

AT - HEMERAR - WBARHERMBA
AR A HE AN R (A B FE] S 4 AR S BTS2 AE ]
R BMEARTTEFAEBREANTTHEMNEM
ENRAR AN B 7 M AR o

EEEY

RAEEAR » WEST S EAITEEMRAE(TE AR
DEBEE RITHRAERNEL

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Directors

(b) Directors of the Bank’s subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this report,
Mrs. KAN NG Chau Yuk Helen, Ms. Margaret MAN and Mr. ZHANG Xiaowei,
who are Directors of the Bank, are also directors in certain subsidiaries of the
Bank.

Other directors of the Bank’s subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2016 and up to the date of this report include Mr. GAO Zongze,
Mr. HSU Hsien Hao Fred, Mr. Roy HUANG, Mr. IU Man Chung Ronald, Mr. KAN
Ying Tim, Mr. KWAN Kin Fai David, Mr. LEE Sik Sang John, Mr. LEUNG Kin Man
Michael, Mr. TAM Yat Kung Elton and Mr. WONG Man Kin Jack. Ms. CHAN
Sze Oi Rebecca and Mr. TSE Kwok Chun Jim were ex-directors of the Bank's
subsidiaries.

Directors’ interests

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance in relation to
the Bank's business to which the Bank, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director of the
Bank and the Director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

At no time during the year or at the end of the year was the Bank, or any
of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any
other body corporate.

Management contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole

or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered into or
existed during the year.
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Report of the Directors

Permitted indemnity provision

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this report,
a permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors of the Bank is
in force.

Compliance with Banking (Disclosure) Rules

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 have
complied with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Banking
(Disclosure) Rules.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment as auditor of the Bank upon expiration of
its current term of office at the close of the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board
ZHANG Xiaowei
Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
China CITIC Bank International Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China CITIC Bank International Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 56 to 188, which comprise the:

consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016;
. consolidated income statement for the year then ended;
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

Impairment of loans and advances to customers and other accounts; and
. Fair value measurement of financial instruments and impairment of available-for-sale debt securities

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Independent Auditor's Report

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Impairment of loans and advances to customers and other accounts

Key Audit Matter
Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2016, the Group recorded a total
impairment allowance of HK$S950 million on loans and
advances, with HK$627 million arising from individual
impairment allowances and HK$323 million arising from
collective impairment allowances.

In addition, the Group recorded individual impairment
allowances of HK$147 million on other accounts resulting
from failure in settlement of expired or unwinding derivative
transactions with customers.

We focused on the impairment of loans and advances to
customers and other accounts due to the materiality of
the balances and because the impairment calculations are
inherently subject to management’s judgement.

In determining individual impairment allowances, management
made judgements as to whether there is objective evidence
that individually significant loans or other accounts are impaired.
This involved management'’s assessment of borrowers’ financial
situation. When management determined that objective evidence
of impairment existed, an individual impairment allowance was
calculated based on management’s best estimate of the shortfall
in expected recoverable cash flows, which may include an
estimation of the net realisable value of any underlying collateral or
guarantees.

In determining collective impairment allowances,
management used models based on historical loss experience
and current economic conditions. Judgements are made
in grouping portfolios of loans of similar nature and in
determining the required input parameters to the models,
including the selection of macro-economic factors, period of
historical loss rates and loss emergence periods.

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures in relation to impairment on loans and
advances to customers and other accounts included the
following:

e Assessing and evaluating management’s controls over
identification of potential impaired loans, which includes
ad-hoc and periodic loan account reviews, post-draw
down monitoring and an early alert mechanism;

e  Forindividual impairment allowances of loans and
advances to customers and other accounts, on a sample
basis, assessing management’s estimation of recoverable
cash flows, which included validation of collateral
valuation supportable evidence and the basis for the
estimation of sources of recoverable cash flows;

e For collective impairment allowance, evaluating
the consistency in the application of the collective
impairment assessment model and the key parameters,
evaluating the management judgement applied in
determining the assumptions used in the key individual
parameters, including macro-economic factors, periods
of historical loss rates and loss emergence periods used.
In addition, testing the completeness of underlying
loan data and validating extraction of data for collective
impairment allowance calculations via reperformance.

Based on the procedures we performed, we found that the
Management's key judgements used in assessing the existence
of impairment indicators and the key assumptions adopted
in estimating the impairment allowances required were
supported with the evidence we gathered and consistent with
our expectation.
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Independent Auditor's Report

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Fair Value measurement of financial instruments and impairments of available-for-sale debt securities

Key Audit Matter
Refer to note 36 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group has recorded HKS$63,786 million of financial assets
and HK$3,996 million of financial liabilities measured at fair value
as at 31 December 2016, amongst which, aggregated amount
of HK$25,102 million and HK$3,996 million financial assets and
financial liabilities were classified as level 2 or level 3 in the fair
value hierarchy respectively.

We focused on the fair value measurement of the financial
instruments classified as level 2 and level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy since their valuations were based on models which
involved management’s judgements.

In particular, judgements were involved in determining the
appropriate valuation techniques for the specific types of financial
instrument and selection of appropriate valuation inputs including
discount rates, bond prices, exchange rates and credit spreads.

We also focused on the impairment assessment for available-
for-sale debt securities. The cumulative loss that had been
recognised in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified
to the income statement when there is objective evidence
that an available-for-sale debt security is impaired. Judgement
is required in determining whether an objective indicator
of impairment exists for a particular security which included
management’s assessment of the financial soundness of the
issuer and economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the security. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group did not record any impairment loss on its investment in
available-for-sale debt securities.

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures in relation to fair value measurement
of level 2 and level 3 financial instruments and impairment of
available-for-sale debt securities included the following:

e FEvaluating the appropriateness of management's selection
of the valuation models for determining the fair values for
different types of financial instruments;

e Assessing and evaluating the controls over key treasury
reconciliations, standing data maintenance over the market
data and parameters input to the valuation models;

e Assessing and evaluating management’s key assumptions
and judgement, such as discount rates, bond prices,
exchange rates and credit spreads applied in the valuation
models based on our industry knowledge and market
practice;

e Developing our own expectation of independent valuation,
on a sample basis, over selected financial instruments and
compared against management's results;

e Testing, on a sample basis, the appropriateness of
classification of level 2 and level 3 financial instruments;

e Evaluating the appropriateness of key valuation
adjustments applied by management and validating the
computation of such key valuation adjustments;

e Assessing key judgements applied in impairment
assessment of available-for-sale debt securities, including
challenging management’s assessment of the financial
soundness of issuers and quality of the debt securities
based on our industry knowledge and market practice.

Based on the procedures we performed, we found that the
data, parameters and methodologies used in the Management's
fair value measurement level 2 and 3 financial instruments and
impairment assessment for available-for-sale debt securities are
supported by the evidence that we gathered.
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Independent Auditor's Report

Other Information

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Independent Auditor's Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

e  (Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Ng Wai Ying.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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HZE2016F12 A31HILFZ (LABEE A EE6T)

Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2016 2015
P 5T BET T BT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FLE A Interest income 4(a) 7,061,528 6,568,868
FEXH Interest expense 4(b) (2,932,702) (3,148,559)
B E WA Net interest income 4,128,826 3,420,309
EHNMAsRA Fee and commission income 1,571,349 1,124,194
ERMAESH Fee and commission expense (75,114) (55,779)
FERARBEESRA Net fee and commission income 5 1,496,235 1,068,415
FRZHWA Net trading income 6 617,530 1,231,547
R R Net hedging gain 7 126 999
] & B A F S Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities 8 129,729 59,715
HEfbgalg A Other operating income 9 40,380 50,028
KA Operating income 6,412,826 5,831,013
KT Operating expenses 10 (2,816,189) (2,564,206)
I BRIR B ZE S AT Y AR 208 R Operating profit before impairment 3,596,637 3,266,807
BERRBRREMIRE Impairment losses on loans and advances and
RIERE other accounts 12 (552,959) (667,677)
REER Operating profit 3,043,678 2,599,130
DE YRR T Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property
Wzt (E18) and equipment 15 (730)
HEMEEH W= Revaluation gain on investment properties 22 9,546 3,046
BAnzEA Profit before taxation 3,053,239 2,601,446
FTiSH: Income tax 13 (504,998) (433,239)
EEERF Profit for the year 2,548,241 2,168,207
BERRERAER Profit attributable to shareholders 2,548,241 2,168,207

6185 F 188 A MM LB AN K — B D

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The notes on pages 61 to 188 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

HZE2016F12A31HIEFE (BB AR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2016 2015
P EE BT T BT
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
WEERZF Profit for the year 2,548,241 2,168,207
AEEHMEEEKE Other comprehensive income for the year 14
HETEEFIEZRER Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
income statement:
HEFINM B T A RIREIEERERA  Exchange differences on translation of financial
PE 3 Z=5R statements of overseas subsidiaries (93,590) (98,176)
WemE Cash flow hedges
—FREREHRTAERAREBED - effective portion of changes in fair value of
& hedging instruments recognised during the year 1,279 -
—ERIEERIA — transfer from deferred tax (211) -
1,068 -
AIHHEES Available-for-sale securities
—AREBEEHNE - change in fair value 58,846 (58,804)
—hERREKER — transfer from income statement on disposal (121,883) (58,110)
— R R FIIA — transfer to deferred tax 12,780 18,306
(50,257) (98,608)
AEEHMEEKE Other comprehensive income for the year (142,779) (196,784)
REEZEINEHAEE Total comprehensive income for the year 2,405,462 1,971,423
BERRENEE K SALE Total comprehensive income attributable to
shareholders 2,405,462 1,971,423
Fo61BEIF 188 E MM B AT ERE —IB M - The notes on pages 61 to 188 form part of these financial statements.
S
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2016512 A31 B (LA HE B8 AT)

Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

At 31 December 2016

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2016 2015
B EE BET T BT
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
BE ASSETS
Re RERT ‘:F'ﬁh\-fEﬁ& Cash and balances with banks, central banks and

Efh & mER S other financial institutions 16 27,540,433 20,322,734
EIRTT « PRERT &Ei\ﬁﬂ Placements with and advances to banks,

& AHETE M TT T S BN central banks and other financial institutions 17 22,889,713 30,390,640
RHRBREE Trading assets 18 5,581,720 4,277,539
ZEER LA EMARTE Loans and advances to customers and other accounts 19 191,286,538 173,479,925
At E E A Available-for-sale securities 20 58,204,271 53,151,487
I EIS LT Property and equipment 22

—EYE — Investment properties 138,490 185,944

—Hibz — Other premises 369,479 326,300

— &G - Equipments 387,907 330,973
AT UL EI R IR Tax recoverable 27(a) 187 33,114
RIERIAE & Deferred tax assets 27(b) 18,217 36,312
EEHE Total Assets 306,416,955 282,534,968
BERER LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
afE Liabilities
RIT R EH A mEER Deposits and balances of banks and other

TERKREEE financial institutions 23 5,256,660 2,658,301
BFEEFER Deposits from customers 24 235,574,700 220,683,709
RHEMEaE Trading liabilities 25 3,996,444 3,555,614
BB ITERE Certificates of deposit issued 26 10,593,445 10,388,272
NERFHTE Current taxation 27(a) 195,405 61,910
EERIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 27(b) 1,520 1,717
HtbB =R Other liabilities 10,138,928 12,365,023
BEBER Loan capital 28 8,705,837 8,766,217
=Rt Total Liabilities 274,462,939 258,480,763
R Equity
&7 Share capital 29(a) 9,366,271 7,566,271
1 Reserves 16,414,493 14,177,766
HEIMERTE Additional equity instruments 30 6,173,252 2,310,168
AR Total Equity 31,954,016 24,054,205
EEkEEEE Total Equity and Liabilities 306,416,955 282,534,968

EEER2017F3 A2 BRI IRESAM o
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2017.

RANE
ZHANG Xiaowei
HITEE  ITRFTHAEH

Executive Director, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Fo1HE|E

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

88 R MR B A B TS R — BB 1D ©

BAL

Margaret MAN
HITEFFHETTEARH
Executive Director and
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

The notes on pages 61 to 188 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Equity

HZE2016F12 A31 AL FRE (LB RER) For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
B
BRIZ
EXZE  WEER  ReWE  REE{ EE-& Additional
i BE  HAGE i iRER i equity
Bx  EARE  -BEE  buhange  Propey  Cashflow  Investment D Reguatoy  REEA  BEEE  intuments  EGEE
Share Capitll ~ General  differences  revaluation  hedging revaluation  Statutory  general Retained Total (K30 Total
capital reserve  fesee  resewe  feseve fesee resenve  feseve resene profits  reserves  [note30) equity
Bt BT BBt BETn BETn BETn BBTn A%Tn A%Tn BETR BT AT AR
HKS1000 HKS1000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
R016E1 518 At 1 January 2016 7,566,271 6,589 100,000 (622) 55 - (11,718 58,943 149500 13875019 14177766 2,310,168 24,054,205
BEGENREES Changes in equity for 2016:
RERRH Proffor theyear - - - - - - - - S s 25480 -5
TEEEM2ENA Qther comprehensive income for the year - - - (93,590) - 1,068 (50,257) - - - (1479 - (14279
TEERENGEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (93,590) - 1,068 (50,57) - - 25841 2405462 - 2405462
ErREERG Issue and allotment of shares 1,800,000 - - - - - - - - - - - 1,800,000
BN -ERER Issue of Additonal ier 1 CapitelSecuriies
(‘AT Capital Securites') - - - - - - - - - - - 3863084 3,863,084
TR -RETEERS Distibution payment for
AT Capital Securities - - - - - - - - - - - (168,735) (168,735)
L] Tensferfom retaned profs - - - - - - - (5,098) - 636 (16875 168735 -
Ra16E12831R At 31 December 2016 9,366,271 6,589 100,000 (04212) 55 1,068 61,975) 53,845 149500 16259623 16414493 6173252 31954016
RasEIA1R At lnuay 2015 1566201 6% W0 s 5 SREDBE M) NEBE LIN0 308 25130
BENISEERSD Changes in equityfor 015:
KER R Profitfor the year - - - - - - 6807 2168207 - 6807
REREMRENE Other comprehensive income for the year - - - (9176) - - (9,608) - - (19784 - (19784
TEERENGEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (98,176) - - (98,608) - I8807  19M14B B AP
B RETERRE Ditibution payment for
AT Caoltal Securities - - - - - - - - - - (168,567) (168,567)
Bl Tensferfom retaned profs - - - - - - - 310 - mE sse) 1683 -
B0ISE12R31R At 31 December 2015 7566271 6,589 100,000 (622) % - (11,118 98943 149500 13875019 14177766 2310168 24054205
Fo1 B F 18BN T B AN IEHRE—245 - The notes on pages 61 to 188 form part of these financial statements.
—RER
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HZE2016F12 A31HILFZ (LABEE A EE6T)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2016 2015

P EE BET T BT

Note HK$’000 HKS'000

ARREEBENESFHE Net cash flow used in operating activities 32(a) (1,988,285) (10,065,266)
RE(AR)REEKHN Cash flow generated from/(used in)

RERE investing activities

EERFESRE Dividends received from equity securities 6,098 6,294

- YN E & Purchase of property and equipment (193,912) (118,486)

HE Y KBTS IR Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 100 63
ARREXEBNREFHE Net cash used in investing activities (187,714) (112,129)
KB, (AR)BEEBH Cash flow generated from/(used in)

ReReE financing activities

%éTTHXZKFﬁ/ﬁE‘ FRIE Proceeds from shares issued 1,800,000 -

{TEAIN— B R B A FT1B A Proceeds from Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities issued 3,863,084 -

Ezﬁﬁféﬁl\—%&éfzm =g Distribution paid on Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities (168,735) (168,567)

FTIHEBE AT B Interest paid on loan capital (496,495) (496,115)
RE (AR BEERN Net cash generated from/(used in)

R&FE financing activities 4,997,854 (664,682)
RERBAESLEEM OGB4 )FHE  Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,821,855 (10,842,077)
HM1E1ENESRESEEEE Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 51,695,416 62,537,493
MR12A31ENEBERIBELLEEEE Cashand cash equivalents at 31 December 32(b) 54,517,271 51,695,416

61 AT F 188 A MM B AN IR AR -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The notes on pages 61 to 188 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(a)

General information

The principal activities of China CITIC Bank International Limited (“the
Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”), which
materially affect the results or comprise the assets and liabilities of the
Group, are the provision of banking and related financial services.

China CITIC Bank International Limited is a licensed bank incorporated
and domiciled in Hong Kong, and has its registered office at 61-65 Des
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been continuously applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs"), Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Bank. Note 3 (a) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from the initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.

—E-XFR
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RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of preparation

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements is the historical cost basis, except that the
following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained
in the accounting policies set out below:

financial instruments classified as trading, designated at fair
value through profit or loss and available-for-sale (see note 2(e)

(i)
- investment property (see note 2(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires that management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have a significant effect on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 41.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(c)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received

or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will

flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the income statement as

follows:

(i

Interest income

Interest income for all interest-bearing financial instruments is
recognised in the income statement on an accruals basis using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, call and similar options) but does not consider
future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or
received between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts. Cash rebates granted in relation to
residential mortgage loans are capitalised and amortised to the
income statement over their expected life.

Interest on impaired loans is recognised using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(c)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income is recognised when the
corresponding service is provided, except where the fee is
charged to cover the costs of a continuing service to, or risk
borne for, the customer, or is interest in nature. In these cases,
the fee is recognised as income in the accounting period in
which the cost or risk is incurred and is accounted for as interest
income.

Origination or commitment fees received/paid by the Group
which result in the creation or acquisition of a financial asset
are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate. When a loan commitment is not expected to
result in the draw-down of a loan, loan commitment fees are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the commitment period.

Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase contract
Finance income implicit in the finance lease and hire purchase
payments is recognised as interest income over the period of
the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of return on the outstanding net investment in the leases
for each accounting period. Commission paid to dealers for the
acquisition of finance lease loans or hire purchase contracts is
included in the carrying value of the assets and amortised to
the income statement over the expected life of the lease as an
adjustment to interest income.

Rental income from operating lease

Rental income received under operating leases is recognised
in the income statement in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when
the share price of the investment is quoted ex-dividend.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(d)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows, and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as
a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in the income statement. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as
an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of
the entity are allocated for as if the group had directly disposed of
related assets or liabilities. This way means that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
orloss.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any (see note 2(1)),
unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale) (see note 2(s)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(e)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments

(i

(i)

Initial recognition

The Group classifies its financial instruments into different
categories at inception, depending on the purpose for which
the assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred. The
categories are: fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, available-for-sale securities and other financial
liabilities.

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value, which
will normally be equal to the transaction price plus, in the
case of a financial asset or financial liability not held at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset or issue
of the financial liability. Transaction costs on financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed immediately.

The Group recognises financial assets and financial liabilities
on the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised using trade date accounting. Other financial assets
and financial liabilities are recognised using settlement date
accounting. From these dates, any gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recorded.

Categorisation

Fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets and liabilities held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or
loss upon initial recognition, but excludes those investments in
equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Trading financial instruments are financial assets or financial
liabilities which are acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of trading, or are part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking. Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
(note 2(g)) are accounted for as trading instruments.



B TSR MY

2

(e)

FTEEHBE ()

SRIA (&)

(ii)

78 ()

BEBEARRAREE (B)
WEBANEMR - AEE A R FEL
REIARFCRMIAETEREBER
ARRA B :

- AREARERERAABEEEE
2 BENERAHENEEXE

&

— {FHEER - RELZBRMNSHE
RIS Al FORER SRR D

— ABNAERBEEENSHIE
TA - MELiETAES R
ANFRNRSRE LR AR
it 5 5

— ARERARELEBRAITET
AftemIERSH -

ZHER THEREENCRAESRK
RABEIEK - 2R BENEPER
AEBELNHMT AKER - £l
EABEE - FHEMERRSR
FERRE(E HNER ST ARER
A o

BN RMRIA

BN ENIRIESREEE XA HEE
NREEERBTHIZRBERENIEDT
TEREE MR T@ASERAE
FREHARNHEME R R/FIEX S A
& )R EERAHERR 2 E R
BRESARBRALEBEXAIHEE
o HOAEEAREERREEEX
MR E (AEERBBCME
EWEERRSN) B BRI HEE -
ERNEEREIZEREFERR

BHAMAERT - BRETRAMER
TR BB -

ERREUREBERF XL - 12#
HRARERERRE (10F) (25K
w2()) &58k -

Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(e)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Categorisation (continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (continued)

The Group has the option of designating its financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition when:

- the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and
reported internally on a fair value basis

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise

- the asset or liability contains embedded derivatives that
significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise
be required under the contract; or

- the separation of the embedded derivatives from the
financial instrument is not prohibited.

Financial assets and liabilities under this category are carried at
fair value. Changes in the fair value are included in the income
statement in the period in which they arise. Upon disposal or
repurchase, the difference between the net sale proceeds or the
net payment and the carrying value is included in the income
statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market, other than (a) those that the Group intends to
sell immediately or in the near term, which are classified as held
for trading; (b) those that the Group, upon initial recognition,
designates as being at fair value through profit or loss or as
available-for-sale; or (c) those for which the Group may not
recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than
because of credit deterioration, which are classified as available-
for-sale. Loans and receivables mainly comprise loans and
advances to customers and placements with and advances to
banks, central banks and other financial institutions.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any (see
note 2(1)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(e)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Categorisation (continued)

Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale securities are non-derivative financial assets
that are designated as available-for-sale or are not classified in
any of the other two categories above. They include financial
assets intended to be held for an indefinite period of time but
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes
in the market environment.

Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value. Unrealised
gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity, except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary items such as debt
securities which are recognised in the income statement.

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
measured reliably, and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity securities, are
carried at cost less impairment losses, if any (see note 2()).

When the available-for-sale securities are sold, gains or losses
on disposal include the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying value, and the accumulated fair
value adjustments which are previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified from equity to the
income statement.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than trading liabilities and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(e)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period without any
deduction for estimated future selling costs. Financial assets are
priced at current bid prices, while financial liabilities are priced
at current asking prices.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a quoted
market price on a recognised stock exchange or a price from a
broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded financial instruments,
or if the market for them is not active, the fair value of the
instrument is estimated using valuation techniques that provide
a reliable estimate of prices which could be obtained in actual
market transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated
future cash flows are based on management’s best estimates
and the discount rate used is a market rate at the end of the
reporting period applicable for an instrument with similar terms
and conditions. Where other pricing models are used, input is
based on market data at the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when
the financial asset together with substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership, have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the Bank or the counterpart.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(e)

(f)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(vi)  Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined)
instrument that includes both the derivative and a host
contract, with the effect that some of the cash flows of the
combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone
derivative. The embedded derivatives are separated from the
host contract and accounted for as a derivative when (a) the
economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative
are not closely related to the host contract; and (b) the hybrid
(combined) instrument is not measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.

When the embedded derivative is separated, the host contract
is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies of
financial instruments (see note 2(e)(ii)).

Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

Securities sold subject to a simultaneous agreement to repurchase
these securities at a certain later date at a fixed price (repurchase
agreements) are retained in the financial statements and measured in
accordance with their original measurement principles. The proceeds
from the sale received are reported as liabilities and are carried at
amortised cost.

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repurchase
agreements) are reported not as purchases of the securities and
not recognised on the statement of financial position, but the
consideration paid is recorded as receivables, and are carried in the
statement of financial position at amortised cost.

Interest earned on reverse repurchase agreements and interest
incurred on repurchase agreements are recognised as interest income
or interest expense, respectively, over the life of each agreement, using
the effective interest rate method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(9)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Hedging
Hedge accounting recognises the offsetting effects on profit or

loss of changes in the fair values of the hedging instrument and

the hedged item. The Group assesses and documents whether the

financial instruments that are used in hedging transactions are highly

effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged

items attributable to the hedged risks both at hedge inception and

on an ongoing basis. The Group discontinues hedge accounting

prospectively when (a) the hedging instrument expires or is sold,

terminated or exercised; (b) the hedge no longer meets the criteria for

hedge accounting; or (c) the Group revokes the designation.

(i)

Fair value hedge

A fair value hedge seeks to offset the risks of changes in the fair
value of a recognised asset or liability that will give rise to a gain
or loss being recognised in the income statement.

The hedging instrument is measured at fair value, with fair value
changes recognised in the income statement. The carrying
amount of the hedged item is adjusted by the amount of the
changes in fair value of the hedging instrument attributable
to the risk being hedged. This adjustment is recognised in the
income statement to offset the effect of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised; the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting; or the Group revokes designation of the hedge
relationship, any adjustment up to that point, to a hedged item
for which the effective interest rate method is used is amortised
to the income statement as part of the recalculated effective
interest rate of the item over its remaining life.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(9)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Hedging (continued)

(i)

(iif)

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualified as cash flow hedges is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity. Any gain or loss in fair value relating to an
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain or loss at that time remains in equity until the
forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the income
statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected
to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was recognised in
other comprehensive income is immediately reclassified to the
income statement.

Hedge effectiveness testing

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group carries out
prospective effectiveness testing to demonstrate that it expects
the hedge to be highly effective (prospective effectiveness)
at the inception of the hedge and throughout its life. Actual
effectiveness (retrospective effectiveness) also needs to be
demonstrated on an ongoing basis.

The documentation of each hedging relationship sets out how
the effectiveness of the hedge is assessed. The method which
the Group adopts for assessing hedge effectiveness will depend
on its risk management strategy.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(9)

(h)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Hedging (continued)

(i) Hedge effectiveness testing (continued)
For fair value hedge relationships, the Group utilises the
cumulative dollar offset method or regressive analysis as
effectiveness testing methodologies.

For prospective effectiveness, the hedging instrument must be
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes
in fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk during
the period for which the hedge is designated. For actual
effectiveness, the changes in fair value or cash flows must offset
each other in the range of 80% to 125% for the hedge to be
deemed effective.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or
held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(j)) to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include land and buildings held
for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial position
at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in
the income statement. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 2(c)(iv).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest is
classified and accounted for as an investment property on a property-
by-property basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for as if it were held
under a finance lease (see note 2(j)(ii)), and the same accounting
policies are applied to that interest as are applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in note 2(c)(iii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(i)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Other premises and equipment

In preparing these financial statements, advantage has been taken
of the transitional provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16,
Property, plant and equipment, issued by the HKICPA, with the effect
that other premises which are carried at revalued amounts in financial
statements relating to periods ended before 30 September 1995 have
not been revalued to fair value at the end of the reporting period.

The following items of property and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any (see note

2(0):

- buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land
classified as held under operating leases (see note 2(j)(iii))

- other items of equipment.

Changes arising in the revaluation of properties held for own use
are generally dealt with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the property revaluation reserve.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, and
are recognised in the income statement on the date of retirement
or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
revaluation reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to the
income statement.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of items
of property and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives as
follows:

- Freehold land is not depreciated.

- Leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

- Buildings are depreciated over 30 years or the unexpired terms
of the land leases, whichever is shorter.

- Furniture, fixtures and equipment are depreciated over a term
of 3to 10 years.

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts, and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.
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()

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases and hire purchase contracts

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,

is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement

conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period

of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a

determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of

the arrangement and applies regardless of whether the arrangement

takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)

(i)

(iif)

Classification of leased assets

Assets that are held by the Group under leases and which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee are classified as operating leases.

Finance leases

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the net investment in the lease is included in
the statement of financial position as loans and advances
to customers. Hire purchase contracts which have the
characteristics of finance leases are accounted for in the same
manner as finance leases. Impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note 2(1).

Operating leases

Where the Group leases out assets under operating leases,
the assets are included in the statement of financial position
according to their nature and, where applicable, are depreciated
in accordance with the Group's depreciation policies, as set out in
note 2(j). Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note 2(l). Revenue arising from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
revenue recognition policies, as set out in note 2(c)(iv).

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the
income statement in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(k)

U]

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group may take
possession of assets held as collateral through court proceedings
or voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers. Where it is
intended to achieve an orderly realisation of the impaired assets
and the Group is no longer seeking repayment from the borrower,
repossessed assets are reported in “Other assets”. The Group does not
hold the repossessed assets for its own use.

Repossessed assets are recognised at the lower of the carrying
amount of the related loans and advances and fair value less costs to
sell at the date of exchange. They are not depreciated or amortised.

Impairment losses on initial classification and on subsequent
remeasurement are recognised in the income statement.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amount of the Group's assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence that financial assets are
impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events which has an
impact on the future cash flows of the assets that can be estimated
reliably:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower
- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the borrower

- the disappearance of an active market for financial assets
because of financial difficulties

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount is reduced to the
estimated recoverable amount by means of a charge to the income
statement.
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U]

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of
loans and receivables whose recovery is considered doubtful but
not remote, which are measured at amortised cost. In this case, the
impairment losses are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against loans and receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
borrower/investment are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in the income statement.

(i) Loans and receivables

Impairment losses on loans and receivables are measured as
the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these assets). Receivables
with a short duration are not discounted if the effect of
discounting is immaterial.

The total allowance for credit losses consists of two
components: individual impairment allowances and collective
impairment allowances.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues
to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
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U]

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i

Loans and receivables (continued)

The individual impairment allowance is based upon
management’s best estimate of the present value of the cash
flows which are expected to be received discounted at the
original effective interest rate. In estimating these cash flows,
management makes judgements about the borrower’s financial
situation and the net realisable value of any underlying collateral
or guarantees in favour of the Group. Each impaired asset is
assessed on its own merits.

In assessing the need for collective impairment allowances,
management uses statistical modelling and considers
historical trends of factors such as credit quality, portfolio size,
concentrations and economic factors. In order to estimate
the required allowance, the Group makes assumptions both
to define the way the Group models inherent losses and to
determine the required input parameters, based on historical
experience and current economic conditions.

The accuracy of the impairment allowances the Group makes
depends on how well the Group can estimate future cash
flows for individually assessed impairment allowances, and
the model assumptions and parameters used in determining
collective impairment allowances. While this necessarily
involves judgement, the Group believes that the impairment
allowances on loans and advances to customers are reasonable
and supportable.

Any subsequent changes to the amounts and timing of the
expected future cash flows compared to the prior estimates that
can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the write-
down, will result in a change in the impairment allowances on
loans and receivables and be charged or credited to the income
statement. A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the
loans and receivables’ carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

When there is no reasonable prospect of recovery, the loan and
the related interest receivables are written off.

Loans and receivables with renegotiated terms are loans that
have been restructured due to deterioration in the borrower’s
financial position and where the Group has made concessions
that it would not otherwise consider. Renegotiated loans and
receivables are subject to ongoing monitoring to determine
whether they remain impaired or past due.
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U]

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(iif)

Available-for-sale securities

When there is objective evidence that an available-for-
sale security is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been
recognised in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified
to the income statement. The amount of the cumulative loss
that is recognised in the income statement is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in the income
statement.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities
are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in the income statement.

For available-for-sale equity securities, when there is objective
evidence be observed for an impairment, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the cost of the
equity securities and the fair value of the impaired asset. All
subsequent increases in the fair value of the impaired asset are
treated as a revaluation and recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity, such impairment
losses are not reversed through the income statement.

Non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property and equipment (other than properties carried at
revalued amounts)

- investments in subsidiaries and associates.
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U]

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Non-financial assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units), and then
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset is not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
or value in use (if determinable).

Reversal of impairment losses

In respect of assets, an impairment loss (except for
impairment on goodwill) is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
income statement in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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(m)

(n)

(o)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iv)  Interim financial reporting and impairment
The Group prepares an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first
six months of the year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the year (see notes 2(I)(i)
to (jii)).

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(i) Staffretirement scheme
The Group operates a defined contribution provident fund and
a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme. Contributions are charged
to the income statement as and when the contributions fall
due.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(o)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits; that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(h), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax rates
that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(o)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investment in subsidiaries, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred income tax assets are recognised on the deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, only to
the extent that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in
the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.

Additional income tax that arises from the distribution of dividends
is recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if, and only if, the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(p)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Translation of foreign currencies

0]

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the
functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong Dollars (HK$'000),
which is the Bank’s functional currency and the Group's
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
into functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into
Hong Kong dollars using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value
through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments are
included in gains less losses from trading securities or financial
instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss. All
other exchange differences relating to monetary items are
presented as gains less losses from dealing in foreign currencies
in the income statement. Differences arising on the translation
of available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the investment revaluation reserve.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statements of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to the income statement when the
profit or loss on disposal is recognised.



B TSR MY

2 FESHEE(F)

(q MBREHR EHERIBFRE

(i)

(ii)

M ERZE
MHERANRKEER —HEEEHA
TRERERES T AN GRS B HE
%5 BT A (AERA) ARERZ S
A (BRA) BENERE -

AEBBRGEP ZUEER - V18
BEERZAABERERBELTR
A HIATEMBEIET - EREN
DBERERZRFZAAEBE 7
ERARER  HI2RERRBEL
BERXZPARBOREEAETE + &
8 HI2REFTRHERKHERN
TR IBHERKE T AT X8
LE BT S BRI R Z DAEH R A - TAE
ZBERTHEERMEL AR - &
TRV T AR ZMBER - RfEE
HERZAAREE  DRENMERHK
BRARERA R [HMABEI AT
ZIBEBANA

EEWARERBRN WS KA
o OHRSMBERBTERA I
S INE QFERFFR AR AT REBLIE IR
BHRAEEER  RbRAKEE
RN ERETBBRITHZERIIA
[EtRE] eE  BVaHR T
R - S IRIBRE2(0) () HERE
1o

B E R BRE

A AEBIANTTARD EENEN
EEARYEERT - MBETEED
EHIR AT e @ R Bz INR - I
F{EL A SEMfEEt - B E AR H
BETENBEIRERS - WREH
RREEESEA  AIREFETEEX
h BV R BRI 24

fief 5 48 R e SN EY AT BEME R K - 3K
EEEH A WBEEL A MGG
FeRZEBRERXAARG BN
R R an SN R A A BE M AR B BR
Oh o BRFRRKZRARKEMED
TAMBETFERTNEEERS T
ERBERUBEE  BRELERS
SN AT BEIEARAE BIBR SN

Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

0]

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the holder) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee to customers,
the fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred
income within other liabilities. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction for
similar services when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate differentials
by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated rates that
lenders would have charged had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where the Bank issues a financial guarantee to its
subsidiaries, the fair value of the guarantee is estimated and
capitalised as the cost of investment in subsidiaries and deferred
income within other liabilities.

The deferred income is amortised in the income statement over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 2(q)(ii) if and when (a) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee,
and (b) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in other liabilities in
respect of that guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Bank has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event. It is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)  Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group
(i) hassignificant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others)

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member)

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by that person in
their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(s)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale if it
is highly probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use, and the asset (or
disposal group) is available for sale in its present condition. A disposal
group is a group of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a
single transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sales plan involving loss of control
of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the above criteria for classification as
held for sale are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a
non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement
of the non-current assets (and all individual assets and liabilities
in a disposal group) is brought up to date in accordance with
the accounting policies before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale, and until disposal, the non-current
assets (except for certain assets as explained below) or disposal
groups are recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this measurement
policy so far as the financial statements of the Group and the Bank
are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) and investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be measured in accordance
with the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in the
income statement. As long as a non-current asset is classified as held
for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s management
committee members for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group'’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Changes in accounting policies
New and amended accounting standards adopted by the Group

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective for the financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2016:

- Accounting for acquisition of interests in joint operations —
Amendments to HKFRS 11

- Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and
amortisation — Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

- Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle, and

- Disclosure initiative — amendments to HKAS 1.

Amendments to HKFRSs or HKASs as stated above effective for the
current accounting period of the Group do not have a material impact
on the Group.

The Group has not applied any new standards or interpretations not
yet effective for the current accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(b)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Future accounting development but not effective for the year
ended 31 December 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a few amendments and new standards which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2016 and which have not
been adopted in the consolidated financial statements. These include
the following which may be relevant to the Group:

ERbiEEs
AR AR R
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
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HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ 2018F 1 H1H
1 January 2018
HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ 2018F1 A1 H
1 January 2018
HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’ 2019F1 ATH
1 January 2019
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HKFRS 9, Financial instruments’

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final HKFRS 9, Financial
Instruments, which is the comprehensive standards to replace HKAS
39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement ("HKAS
39", and includes requirements for classification and measurement
of financial assets and liabilities, impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting.

The classification and measurement of financial assets will depend
on the entity’s business model for their management and their
contractual cash flow characteristics and result in financial assets
being classified and measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI") or fair value through profit or
loss. The classification of financial liabilities is essentially unchanged,
except that, for certain liabilities measured at fair value, gains or losses
relating to changes in the entity’s own credit risk are to be included in
other comprehensive income.

The impairment requirements apply to financial assets measured
at amortised cost and FVOCI, lease receivables, certain loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts. At initial recognition,
allowance (or provision in the case of commitments and guarantees)
is required for expected credit losses (“ECL") resulting from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (“12 month ECL").
In the event of a significant increase in credit risk, allowance (or
provision) is required for ECL resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of the financial instrument ("lifetime ECL").
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(b)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Future accounting development but not effective for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (continued)

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (continued)

The assessment of whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition is performed for each reporting period by
considering the probability of default occurring over the remaining
life of the financial instrument, rather than by considering an
increase in ECL. As a result of the final HKFRS 9, the recognition and
measurement of impairment is intended to be more forward-looking
than under HKAS 39.

The general hedge accounting requirements aim to simplify hedge
accounting, creating a stronger link between it and risk management
strategy and permitting the former to be applied to a greater
variety of hedging instruments and risks. The standard does not
explicitly address macro hedge accounting strategies, which are
being considered in a separate project. To remove the risk of any
conflict between existing macro hedge accounting practice and the
new general hedge accounting requirements, HKFRS 9 includes an
accounting policy choice to remain with HKAS 39 hedge accounting.

The classification and measurement and impairment requirements are
applied retrospectively by adjusting the opening balance sheet at the
date of initial application, with no requirement to restate comparative
periods. For hedge accounting, based on the analysis performed to
date, the Group expects to exercise the accounting policy choice to
continue HKAS 39 hedge accounting and therefore is not currently
planning to change hedge accounting, although it will implement
the revised hedge accounting disclosure required by the related
amendments to HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”.

The mandatory application date for the standard as a whole is
1 January 2018, but it is possible to apply the revised presentation
for certain liabilities measured at fair value at an earlier date. The
Group is currently assessing the potential impact of HKFRS 9 on the
financial statements and intends to provide reliable estimates once it is
practicable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(b)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Future accounting development but not effective for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (continued)
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers’

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue.
This will replace HKAS 18 which covers contracts for goods and
services and HKAS 11 which covers construction contracts. The new
standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognised when
control of good or service transfers to a customer. The Standard
permits either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach for the adoption.

At this stage, the Group is in process to make more detailed
assessments of the financial impact and expects that the standard
will not have significant impact, when applied, on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years commencing on or after
1 January 2018. At this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

HKFRS 16, Leases’

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all lease being recognised on the
balance sheet, as the distinction between operating and finance lease
is removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The
only exemptions are short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the Group's
operating leases. However, the Group has not yet determined to what
extent these commitments will result in the recognition of an asset
and a liability for future payments and how this will affect the Group’s
profit and classification of cash flows.

Some of the commitments may be covered by the exemptions
for short-term leases and leases of low-value leases and some
commitments may relate to arrangements that will not qualify as
leases under HKFRS 16.

The new standard is mandatory for financial year commencing on
or after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend to
adopt the standard before its effective date.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK (IFRIC) interpretations that are not
yet effective that would be expected to have a material impact on the
Group.

—E-XFR
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(a)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

FMEWARFEXH 4 Interestincome and interest expense
FEWA (@) Interestincome
2016 2015
BETT BETIT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
EWES Listed securities 327,449 209,114
LT HES Unlisted securities 613,429 481,089
TEERTT R H At & B Y Balances and placements with banks and
EEMTER other financial institutions 385,991 748,931
B EM (M) Advances and other accounts (Note) 5,734,659 5,129,734
JEIE A A BEFTAEREN Interest income on financial assets that are not
SEEEMNFBHRA at fair value through profit or loss 7,061,528 6,568,868
FIE X H (b) Interest expense
2016 2015
BT T BT
HK$'000 HKS'000
HE - RITEHAMAMS BEER Deposits from customers, banks and
TRk EM other financial institutions and others 2,252,360 2,496,671
BT FIGE Certificates of deposit issued 176,278 148,579
BETERKER Loan capital issued 504,064 503,309
IR R R BEFTAEBEN Interest expense on financial liabilities that
SHBEMNFETH are not at fair value through profit or loss 2,932,702 3,148,559
MIEE Note:

B E2016F12A3 1B ILFE

R EMABERE

Included in the above is interest income on impaired financial assets of

© B & E B FEET FI BB #542,133,0007T (2015
F: H%194350007T) - AR EREEFRER
BT IR 8 B 1 FI S A A #528,404,0007T (2015
F 1 B#12,5750007T) (FEE19(b)) °

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

HK$42,133,000 (2015: HK$19,435,000), which includes interest income on the
unwinding of the discount on loan impairment losses of HK$28,404,000 (2015:
HK$12,575,000) (note 19(b)) for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FEARAESKBA 5 Net fee and commission income
2016 2015
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
ERMASWA Fee and commission income:
EREBAS Bills commission 117,530 116,360
EAREBKRA Card-related income 28,807 31,172
—MREIRTTARTE General banking services 126,747 118,286
N Insurance 542,598 314,895
KRENEBEREE®R Investment and structured investment products 94,600 150,913
BER - -BIXLBMEER Loans, overdrafts and facilities fees 660,355 391,955
Eh Others 712 613
1,571,349 1,124,194
ERNAEIE Fee and commission expense (75,114) (55,779)
1,496,235 1,068,415
Hep Of which:
FEAMRESRA C(TeFE Net fee and commission income (other than the
R EERNEN S5 amounts included in determining the effective
2NN /NI A IEET N interest rate) relating to financial assets and
ExErNenEERAE liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss:
—BRARASIKA - Fee and commission income 806,692 539,487
- ERARAETE — Fee and commission expense (21,584) (16,898)
785,108 522,589
BERZ WA 6 Nettradingincome
2016 2015
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEIMNEW IR EE Gains less losses from dealing in foreign currencies 441,529 1,106,972
BEX S5 RGHEEWREE Gains less losses from trading securities 11,748 6,368
BETAET AW HEER Gains less losses from derivatives (17,493) (70,911)
R ABEERNBWA Interest income on trading assets 181,746 188,618
617,530 1,231,547
— N3 093

Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FRE Uk 7  Nethedging gain
2016 2015
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
NAEESFE(EE) WS Net hedging (loss)/gain on fair value hedges
— B E e € RIEE - Net gain on hedged items attributable to 40,836 27,141
RS the hedged risk
— ¥R T B FEEE - Net loss on hedging instruments (40,872) (26,142)
(36) 999
RemEsihFlas Net hedging gain on cash flow hedges 162 -
126 999
HETHEEESF RS 8 Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities
2016 2015
BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RS R N FEMH NS Net revaluation gain transferred from reserves 121,883 57,247
FENEENFWE Net gain arising in current year 7,846 2,468
129,729 59,715
H & WA 9  Other operating income
2016 2015
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
Al E R R AF AR B A Dividend income from available-for-sale equity securities
— kM ~ Listed 198 394
—3E kM - Unlisted 5,900 5,900
6,098 6,294
WEMEHES WA Rental income from investment properties 6,842 7,242
WEEZ L - B%301,0007T less direct outgoings of HK$301,000
(20154 : ##5281,0007T) (2015: HK$281,000)
HAh Others 27,440 36,492
40,380 50,028

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ReEXH 10 Operating expenses
2016 2015
BET T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
(a) BIRA (a) Staff costs
e MHME TR Salaries and other staff costs 1,663,335 1,409,925
RRE A (FIFE3T) Retirement costs (note 31) 91,652 82,115
1,754,987 1,492,040
(b) HE (b) Depreciation
W RS EITE (MF5E22) Depreciation of property and equipment (note 22)
—IRIBEEHERENEE - Assets held for use under operating leases 19,423 19,503
—HihEE - Other assets 130,797 115,632
150,220 135,135
() Hfh&EZH (c) Other operating expenses
L EYS S R Property and equipment expenses
(TEEE) (W) (excluding depreciation) (Note)
—mEHRE — Rental of properties 271,407 262,451
—Hfth - Others 230,444 212,601
2% BR AT B Auditor's remuneration 6,791 8,927
EEE Advertising 56,596 64,586
BB - EIRI M SUER Communication, printing and stationery 98,167 87,522
FREREEER Legal and professional fees 49,186 34,016
) Others 198,391 266,928
910,982 937,031
e HAKE Total operating expenses 2,816,189 2,564,206

BaE

Hi e E S HeEREEEHEL NNREKER
DR AR B E S B 15,228,0007T
(20154 : 7B#1,9310000) REMEEMRESL H
(BREMERS) B%258344,0007T (20154 © 8

MEXH

#250,108,0007T) °

Note:

Included in other operating expenses are minimum lease payments under
operating leases of HK$5,228,000 (2015: HK$1,931,000) for the hire of
equipment, and HK$258,344,000 (2015: HK$250,108,000) for the hire of other
assets (including property rentals).

—E-XFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

11 EEME 11 Directors’ remuneration
RIEE S CRAED) (F622F) 238315 & The Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383 of the
NE [ BEEENRER ] EZRMEENE Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and the Companies
=T (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation is
set out as below:

2016 2015
BETT BETIT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
o Yokn Directors’ fees 4,166 4427
e ZELREWHRZE(MEEOZEG))  Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind (notes (i) to (iii) 19,106 31,039
BB TEAL Discretionary bonuses 17,742 13,809
RIRGHEIHE R Retirement scheme contributions 1,281 1412
42,295 50,687

MI5E Note:

() EVNEEREEEEZIRRRE

(i WBERBHEE RBETHES)  »
016F TN FEBHITESNRCERHA
BEE0TT (20154F « B #2,738,0007T) ©

(i) RFBEREEEE ([F181)) 8B/ AL
TS —EHEMN G ERE - BEENSH
BURR T E BRI FASEFEENREE
BEAE - BIEERERNSEME - 722016
F B 85 #18,000,0007T (20154F « 78 #
18,000,0007T) ELEHRME B TAA - W B1E
ME B NEE -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(i)

(i)

Benefits in kind mainly include housing allowance and insurance
premium.

Under the retention incentive scheme (using a deferred mechanism),
cash benefits amounting to HKSNIil (2015: HK$2,738,000) were paid to
the Executive Directors of the Group in 2016.

Under the long-term incentive scheme (“LTI"), eligible persons
are granted a number of Appreciation Rights. Payment for each
Appreciation Right is determined by the appreciation in the Group's
net asset value over a three-year performance period. In 2016,
HK$18,000,000 (2015: HK$18,000,000) was accrued in the staff costs,
including the amount payable to the Directors based on management’s
best estimation.
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(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements

EXRRBRREMRBRERBE 12 Impairment losses on loans and advances and other
accounts
2016 2015
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB E R Impairment losses charged
—ERREBR — Loans and advances 354,489 468,602
— HEAhBRIE — Other accounts 198,470 199,075
552,959 667,677
BER LB L EMIRIE Impairment losses on loans and advances and
B EE (BT5E19(b)) other accounts (note 19(b))
— BRI FF M - Individual assessment 603,169 617,744
— 1R FHE - Collective assessment (50,210) 49,933
552,959 667,677

Hep (FaE19(b)):

of which (note 19(b)):

— R ~ Additions 735,692 804,004
— [o] % — Releases (139,875) (106,019)
— el &R — Recoveries (42,858) (30,308)

552,959 667,677

REWBERARHFES

REWRBERATHAME

13 Income tax in the consolidated income statement

(@) Income tax in the consolidated income statement

2016 2015
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
REAFHIE - FBFEH Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
FERERE(FFE27() Provision for the year (note 27(a)) 437,512 344,233
BEFEHRBEG(QR), HIiR (Over)/under-provision in respect of prior years (2,407) 61
435,105 344,294
REABIE — /I BIIE Current tax - Overseas
FRNER Provision for the year 37,422 71,109
BEFERIBEERR Under-provision in respect of prior years 1,925 6,656
39,347 77,765
ERERIE Deferred tax
s =R E A (MIFE27(0)) Origination of temporary differences (note 27(b)) 30,546 11,180
504,998 433,239
016 FEEHEFEMEIE T NEE HETE The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2016 is calculated at 16.5%
o B A L B &16.5% (20154 © 16.5%) =t (2015: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation
& o SFIND TR B A RIa TR IE B IR R AR RS for overseas branches and subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate

BISR A0 % BT R R R -

current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.

—E-XFR
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13 #HZEWBRATHAER (&) 13 Income tax in the consolidated income statement
(continued)
(b) FIBEBXHEETEFIRERARETER RN (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at
HERR applicable tax rates
2016 2015
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
BiADRR Profit before tax 3,053,239 2,601,446
RAE BB R E A Notional tax on profit before tax,
FEREERAE calculated at the rates
WA @A BB EBIE applicable to profits in the countries concerned 489,485 420,496
Al HIR S B FR a2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 25,108 18,202
JEFERFHIM AT B & Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (8,519) (10,370)
BEFEHRIELEE(RIE), IR (Over)/under-provision in prior years (746) 6,717
) Others (330) (1,806)
BERBIESTH Actual tax expense 504,998 433,239
14 HE2EkS 14 Other comprehensive income

AREMEE RS SARBONREALE

Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive

income
2016 2015
BAgE  HEXE BREATE  WHEE  AELL RIRIE
Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax Before tax Tax Net-of-tax
amount expense amount amount expense amount
BETr  E%Tn  B%Tx  B%TT  BETr %t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BEENIERFN Exchange differences on translation of (93,590) - (93,590) (98,176) - (98,176)
BHRBRNELEER financial statements of overseas subsidiaries
REmEHH Cash flow hedges
~-BeREHHMARBE - net movementin cash flow hedging 1,279 (211) 1,068 - - -
BiE%E reserve fair value reserve
i hEES Available-for-sale securities
—AtHEESARBE - net movement in available-for-sale (63,037) 12,780 (50,257) (116914) 18,306 (98,608)
HERE fair value reserve
E2Eks Other comprehensive income (155,348) 12,569 (142,779) (215,090) 18306 (196,784)

098] HIFIRIT (EIBR) BIR AR
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

15

Segment reporting

Segment information is prepared consistently with reportable
segments. Information is regularly reported to the chief operating
decision-maker, including management committee members, to
allocate resources to the segments and to assess their performance.
The Group has identified the following four main reportable
segments:

Wholesale and cross-border banking business includes wholesale
banking business in Hong Kong and overseas branches, and China
banking. Wholesale banking mainly comprises corporate lending and
syndicated loans, trade financing and cash management. Overseas
branches include the management office unit in Hong Kong and
the branches operated overseas. China banking mainly includes a
subsidiary bank in China and the China banking management office
in Hong Kong.

Personal and business banking mainly comprises deposit account
services, residential mortgages, other consumer lending, credit
card services, and Small and Medium Enterprises ("SMEs") banking
business, wealth management services and private banking.

Treasury and markets covers the provision of foreign exchange
services, money market activities, the management of investment
securities and central cash management.

Others mainly comprises unallocated revenue and expenses, head
office, and corporate expenses.

For the purpose of segment reporting, the allocation of operating
income reflects the benefits of funding resources allocated to the
business segments based on the internal funds transfer pricing
mechanism. Cost allocation is based on the direct costs incurred
by the respective business segments and the apportionment of
overheads on a reasonable basis to the business segments. Rental
charges at the market rate for the use of bank premises are reflected
as inter-segment income for the ‘Others’ segment and inter-segment
expenses for the respective business segments.

—E-XFR
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15 2BER (&) 15 Segment reporting (continued)
(@) TWEHDH (@) Reportable segments
2016
AFR BAR
BRER BB RIT HER
Wholesaleand  Personal and RETE
cross-border business  Treasury and Hitr ne
banking banking markets Others  Consolidated
BETT BT BETT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRBKA (K1) Net interest income/(expense) 3,080,961 1,592,121 (612,425) 68,169 4,128,826
H ﬁ%%%l&)\/ ) Other operating income/(expenses) 872,446 789,951 543,317 (51,443) 2,154,271
HERHHEEABRZE  Netgain on disposal of
available-for-sale securities 19,155 - 110,574 - 129,729
FE TN Operating income 3,972,562 2,382,072 41,466 16,726 6,412,826
f\w’&i‘i i Operating expenses (519,982) (705,162) (91,794) (1,499,251) (2,816,189)
Wz B4 (ZH),/ A Inter-segment (expenses)/income (434,956) (678,908) (138,239) 1,252,103 -
MR REEER 2 L8 Operating profit/(loss) before impairment
%‘a%ﬂ/ (E#8) 3,017,624 998,002 (188,567) (230,422) 3,596,637
EFRBFREMBERE  Impairment losses (charged)/written back on
1),/ B # loans and advances and other accounts (321,918) (33,395) (198,470) 824 (552,959)
LR/ (B8) Operating profit/(loss) 2,695,706 964,607 (387,037) (229,598) 3,043,678
HEMERSEF Net (loss)/qain on disposal of
(B18),/ Mz property and equipment (22) (62) - 99 15
REMESHKE Revaluation gain on investment properties - - - 9,546 9,546
BADER, (BE) Profit/(loss) before taxation 2,695,684 964,545 (387,037) (219,953) 3,053,239
FiER: Income tax - - - (504,998) (504,998)
AEERF/(HE) Profit/(loss) for the year 2,695,684 964,545 (387,037) (724,951) 2,548,241
HitpEpEA Other segment items:
nE Depreciation 11,263 18,732 495 119,730 150,220
PHEE Segment assets 157,373,422 43,454,369 126,017,263  (20,428,099) 306,416,955
FTHEE Segment liabilities 151,281,845 120,341,297 24,246,000 (21,406,203) 274,462,939
REEEENERRE Capital expenditure incurred
during the year 9,276 17,669 3,650 163,317 193,912

100] HIERIT(BEIFR)BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

15 Segment reporting (continued)

(@) Reportable segments (continued)

2015
YNSIPN BAR
BIRER HBRIT HER
Wholesaleand  Personal and RE MG
cross-border business  Treasury and Hit e
banking banking markets Others  Consolidated
BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BRBUWA () Net interest income/(expense) 2,733,891 1333,658 (688,288) 41,048 3,420,309
Hipsg ‘*Mﬁz)\ Other operating income 714,954 658,904 903,096 74,035 2,350,989
HERRHEZESFFHRE  Netgain on disposal of
available-for-sale securities 29,121 - 30,594 59,715
A Operating income 3,477,966 1,992,562 245,402 115,083 5,831,013
mex Operating expenses (483,698) (674,460) (73,257) (1,332,791) (2,564,206)
DEE 2L () /WA Inter-segment (expenses)/income (343,018) (509,169) (114,049) 966,236 -
MK REERER 2 Operating profit/(loss) before impairment
wFl/ (&8) 2,651,250 808,933 58096 (251,472) 3,266,807
ERRBALEMBERE  Impairment losses (charged)/written back on
(Bf) /1ol loans and advances and other accounts (441,416) (37,423) (199,075) 10,237 (667,677)
BEEN,/(B8) Operating profit/(loss) 2,209,834 771,510 (140,979) (241,235) 2,599,130
PENERSEFEE Net loss on disposal of property and
equipment (16) (446) - (268) (730)
BEMESHKE Revaluation gain on investment properties - - - 3,046 3,046
BanaEs/ (B8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 2,209,818 771,064 (140,979) (238,457) 2,601,446
g Income tax - - - (433,239) (433,239)
REERR/(B8) Profit/(loss) for the year 2,209,818 771,064 (140,979) (671,696) 2,168,207
Hiv»#EE - Other segment items:
neE Depreciation 16,283 21,449 323 97,080 135,135
NHEE Segment assets 142,886,647 41,393,989 114,204,905 (15,950,573) 282,534,968
P& f Segment liabilities 144,383,771 108,699,516 22,794,559 (17,397,083) 258,480,763
KEEEEMNERHY Capital expenditure incurred during the year 6,884 28637 1304 81,661 118486
—NER
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PR - IR EREXEXIHEENE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

15 Segment reporting (continued)

(b) Geographical information

The geographical information analysis is based on the location of the

principal operations of the subsidiaries, or in the case of the Bank itself,

of the location of the branches responsible for reporting the results or

booking the assets and liabilities.

2016

"ERA
(XHl) BEBEREE
BiAD R HWEE weE Operating Contingent
Profit Total Total income/ liabilities and
before taxation assets liabilities (expenses)  commitments
BET T BETT BETT BETT BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 2,766,150 286,012,805 254,868,685 5,728,199 85,365,815
B A Mainland China (66,184) 12,704,912 11,103,444 212,615 2,106,058
e United States 219,745 9,862,043 9,641,057 257,558 1,701,100
#hns Singapore 86,651 17,215,939 17,114,713 141,716 29,873,335
HAth Others 46,873 2,662,933 2,612,354 73,096 2,861,463
D HEBFEITE B Inter-segment items 4 (22,041,677)  (20,877,314) (358) -
3,053,239 306,416,955 274,462,939 6,412,826 121,907,771

2015

gl A/
(XH) SBaBERAE
Gay=pi gl BEE BEE Operating Contingent
Profit Total Total income/ liabilities and
before taxation assets liabilities (expenses) commitments
BETT BETT BETT BB BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
N Hong Kong 2,080,855 253,413,493 230,208,316 4,927,034 71,903,142
T B At Mainland China 99,502 12,502,237 10,705,457 299,632 2,297,992
EJE United States 122,093 5,877,070 5,774,995 147,153 1,360,777
Nk Singapore 254,147 23,224,884 22,948,195 396,017 22,944,961
HAth Others 44,845 1,939,101 1,895,252 61,687 2,309,279
DESFETER Inter-segment items 4 (14,421,817) (13,051,452) (510) -
2,601,446 282,534,968 258,480,763 5,831,013 100,816,151

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED



B TSR MY

16

17

RERERT  PRETREMESH
BENEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

16 Cash and balances with banks, central banks and other
financial institutions

2016 2015

BET T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

Re Cash in hand 343,773 228,554
ERRIRITHAETE Balances with central banks 2,169,326 1,263,157
EIRTTETR Balances with banks 13,024,014 7,881,427
TEMERRENGETF Balances with other financial institutions 12,003,320 10,949,596
27,540,433 20,322,734

HZE20165F12 831 H B FEFE R RIBFTSF4HN
V& & I FN BS B BR 1 B e 58 2 7B 151,081,770,000
7 (2015%F : B#825,506,0007T) ©

ERIT > PR|ITREb S BBEBER
FRREBK

Included in the balances with central banks that are subject
to exchange control and regulatory restrictions, amounting to
HK$1,081,770,000 at 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$825,506,000).

17 Placements with and advances to banks, central banks
and other financial institutions

2016 2015
BET T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
ERITHER Placements with banks 22,275,290 27,348,928
HEIRITHIE R Advances to banks 614,423 3,041,712
22,889,713 30,390,640

E|HiH - Maturing:
—1MEARA — within 1 month 6,663,169 13,676,427
ek EN S — between 1 month and 1 year 16,226,544 16,694,838
—1451% - after 1 year - 19,375
22,889,713 30,390,640

HZE20165F %0155 12 A31H - AEEEIR
TREME MBI WERBERR
INE R 2 S B FUR B E R R E R -

There were no impaired advances to banks and other financial
institutions at 31 December 2016 and 2015, nor were there any
individually assessed impairment allowances made for them on these
two dates.

—E-XFR
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18 XEAREE

Notes to the Financial Statements

18 Trading assets

2016 2015
BET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEBES Debt securities 1,321,751 212,827
"EES Investment funds 1,078 1,489
RS RERS Trading securities 1,322,829 214,316
PTAETEMERAARBAEMEIZ(D)) Positive fair values of derivatives (note 37(b)) 4,258,891 4,063,223
5,581,720 4,277,539
L EBRBWRITHEBNT Issued by:

AT 148 Sovereigns 500 46,669
WITREM S ghILE Banks and other financial institutions 1,153,365 84,969
1% Corporate entities 168,964 82,678
1,322,829 214,316

B ETHHEE DA Analysed by place of listing:
REB LT Listed in Hong Kong 693,889 57,788
REBAIMD R FT Listed outside Hong Kong 74,656 32,896
LT Unlisted 554,284 123,632
1,322,829 214,316

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

19 BEFEFRRBIAKRHEMERE 19
(a) EFERRBIRKEMERERHEER (a)

Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

Loans and advances to customers and other accounts less

impairment allowances

2016 2015
BET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEER LB ERE Gross loans and advances to customers 183,764,241 169,869,738
B ZEME (FIEE19(b)) Impairment allowances (note 19(b))
— &R 5 H ~ Individually assessed (627,498) (296,732)
—4& A — Collectively assessed (322,864) (399,376)
182,813,879 169,173,630
FEETH B R H fh BE18 Accrued interest and other accounts 8,620,610 4,506,138
TRE S (FIFE19(b)) Impairment allowances (note 19(b))
— (BB EFA (B EE) — Individually assessed (Note) (147,951) (199,843)
8,472,659 4,306,295
191,286,538 173,479,925
BEERLRBAREDEE Included in loans and advances to customers are:
B 5EE Trade bills 2,191,085 5,205,237
BB ZEE (BMT5E19(b)) Impairment allowances (note 19(b))
— &R FF & - Individually assessed - (139
—&RE - Collectively assessed (1,762) (690)
2,189,323 5,204,408

Wi

R2016F SR ETEEREIRRTFERS4E
B BT 4R B B 5147,182,000T (20154F ¢« B EE
199,075,0007T) KRB B 5 A E IR B Y

ERIREZERER

Note:

In 2016, an impairment provision of HK$147,182,000 (2015: HK$199,075,000)
was included in the individual impairment provisions of the other accounts,

this was provided for the failure in settlement of expired or unwinding
transactions of certain derivative products.

ZER-RFRH
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19 EFERKBRK

HAbfRE (&

(b) FFERRBREHMGRBRMEEFNEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

19 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)

(b)

Movement in impairment allowances on loans and advances to

customers and other accounts

2016 2015
@RIt GETME [ERE AT
Individually ~ Collectively #%  Individually  Collectively k]
assessed assessed Total assessed assessed Total
BETT BMIr  BY%Tx AT B¥Tr  A%Tx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
M A1R At 1 January 496,575 399,376 895,951 164,648 373,664 538,312
FEWRRIIZEFHMERE  Impairment losses charged to
(FtzE12) the income statement (note 12) 735,692 - 735692 747,697 56,307 804,004
FEWRROENFEEE  Impairment losses released to
(FtsE12) the income statement (note 12) (132,523)  (50,210)  (182,733)  (129,953) (6374)  (136,327)
paski=E /e Amounts written off (334,175) (30,876)  (365,051) (297,176) (30,595) (327,771)
WEIAEFED R EN Recoveries of loans and advances
ERRBR written off in previous years 38,284 4,574 42,858 23,934 6,374 30,308
ERREBENEEE Unwinding of discount on loan
Gy impairment losses (note 4) (28,404) - (28,404) (12,575) - (12,575)
W12A31H At 31 December 775,449 322,864 1,098,313 496,575 399,376 895,951
Mk B (MEE190) Deducted from (note 19(a)):
REETRER Loans and advances to customers 627,498 321,102 948,600 296,593 398,686 695,279
Hib R Other accounts 147,951 - 147,951 199,843 - 199,843
U ES Trade bills - 1,762 1,762 139 690 829
775,449 322,864 1,098,313 496,575 399,376 895,951

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(c)

BIEDTHNEFERRBRK ()
U MREBEITRETHN M RRIER SR
EER((2ER]) MRANDEREEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

(continued)

Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

Loans and advances to customers analysed by industry sectors
The following economic sector analysis is based on categories and
definitions used by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority ("HKMA").

Hj °
2016 2015
EFERK REEF EPERK EAEESS
BYREE BRREXR BREE BERRBX
Gross loans Impaired loans Gross loans  Impaired loans
and advances and advances andadvances andadvances
to customers  to customers to customers to customers
BET T BT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TEem Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERRE - Property development 13,578,793 - 13,160,361 -
—MEKRE — Property investment 25,060,936 26,095 19,535,863 30,297
—SRE - Financial concerns 9,171,320 - 6,742,829 -
— R4 - Stockbrokers 3,131,047 - 3,511,763 -
—WBENTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 17,002,524 110,678 17,915,876 162,104
—RlEE - Manufacturing 10,063,497 3,769 7,493,445 10,472
— B MBI R — Transport and transport equipment 2,946,243 - 3,492,239 2,325
— IRELTTE B - Recreational activities 1,205,638 - 954,102 -
— & B — Information technology 3,451,364 - 14,755 -
—HAl - Others 9,831,651 249,577 7,987,067 249,305
{EPN Individuals
-BEIREEEER — Loans for the purchase of flats under
2l [RAZE the Home Ownership Scheme,
HM2EEEEIR Private Sector Participation
[HEEEEE Scheme and Tenants Purchase
HEFER Scheme 11,464 - 8,760 -
—BEEMEEMEY - Loans for the purchase of
&% other residential properties 13,407,510 23,517 12,404,811 4,788
—ERARBNR - Credit card advances 445,821 550 426,795 439
— HAh, - Others 8,304,307 21,245 7,850,685 16,204
EEBFANER M Gross loans and advances for
BB use in Hong Kong 117,612,115 435,431 101,499,351 475934
EH5RE Trade finance 10,644,560 683,469 11,061,512 605,279
BB AIME AR Gross loans and advances for
ERNBRER use outside Hong Kong 55,507,566 647,766 57,308,875 425,472
REERR#TEE Gross loans and advances to customers 183,764,241 1,766,666 169,869,738 1,506,685
T RER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

19 BEFERKRBFRREMERE (& 19 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

(d) BEFEFERRBR

(continued)

(d) Impaired loans and advances to customers

2016 2015
BETT BEET T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
REREFER B Gross impaired loans and advances to customers 1,766,666 1,506,685
BB ZAEE — B ET (S Impairment allowances — Individually assessed (627,498) (296,732)
1,139,168 1,209,953

HEERNBRAH(ERE Gross impaired loans and advances as a %

BB gasEnamn =X of total loans and advances to customers 0.96% 0.89%

BEEREBHREFEZREEREFREN Impaired loans and advances are individually assessed loans which
BB - UEERRETENERK - exhibit objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.
AE R L R EEEHE ST E AR R E R E Individually assessed impairment allowances were made after taking
ERRBEFABEAROAIZREBRS into account the realisable value of collateral in respect of such loans
#5578,847,0007T (20154 : 7 ¥433,215,000 and advances of HK$578,847,000 (2015: HK$433,215,000) of the Group.
TL) c BRI BRI EREEDNER This collateral mainly comprised mortgage interest over residential or
BRERNEREERSFRAEK - commercial properties and cash with the Group.

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(e)

EFERRBRREMERE (£

BERERIBARENNERERE
REFERRBFEELRREHERAHRE
HERHH D BNRENHEBLEFHRE
BB AT - ELEANNRYIEEE
—MRAREISE0F - AR AEERREER
ABLEABEE - RBERERDBNRE
HEWHSERENTERRERENT

Notes to the Financial Statements

19 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

(continued)

(e) Netinvestment in finance leases and hire purchase contracts

Loans and advances to customers include net investment in motor

vehicles, and equipment leased to customers under finance leases

and hire purchase contracts which have the characteristics of finance

leases. These contracts usually run for an initial period of 20 years or

above, with an option of acquiring the leased asset at nominal value.

The total minimum lease payments receivable under finance leases

and hire purchase contracts and their present values at the year end

are as follows:

2016 2015
BREAE SEEE
HRRE BREHAE ERE =EHRE
Present value FFRMEEE  Present value Bt
of the Total of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BET T BT T BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1R Within 1 year 43,152 50,112 79,414 90,354
1FE5F After 1 year but within 5 years 78,201 97,568 119,257 141,482
5% After 5 years 210,608 237,374 272,067 302,897
331,961 385,054 470,738 534,733
TELERE Impairment allowances:
— & RIFT 1 ~ Individually assessed (2,592) (3,172)
— 4R EFHE — Collectively assessed (423) (5,358)
R EEE & I3k Net investment in finance leases
BRI EF5E and hire purchase contracts 328,946 462,208
ZE—RNEFER
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20 AEHEERESH 20 Available-for-sale securities
2016 2015
BET T BET T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FENTEHE Certificates of deposit held 15,922,277 12,375,180
BBBS Debt securities 29,074,574 22,261,330
BES(BEIINEESTIE) Treasury bills (including Exchange Fund Bills) 13,111,688 18,420,015
B S Equity securities 95,732 94,962
58,204,271 53,151,487
NEBREMBTHENT Issued by:

BT 78 Sovereigns 14,664,781 19,381,998
RIT M EM S RS Banks and other financial institutions 33,673,029 26,391,962
1 Corporate entities 7,812,716 7,377,527
NEHERE Public entities 2,053,745 -
58,204,271 53,151,487

RETH B AT Analysed by place of listing:
REB L™ Listed in Hong Kong 7,174,894 5,209,473
MREAIMEE ETH Listed outside Hong Kong 7,190,902 5,215,093
JEFT Unlisted 43,838,475 42,726,921
58,204,271 53,151,487
BRI EEEESFN AR EE Fair value of individually impaired debt securities 27,631 91,364

110 HERIT (B BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

21 Subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of the principal subsidiaries
at 31 December 2016 which materially affect the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless
otherwise stated.

SR BEBE ERERESR BERTRABERE FEROBEDZ
NEBE Place of incorporation/ Kind of legal FTEEK Particulars of issued  Proportion of shares
Name of company operation entity Principal activities share capital held by the Bank
ERARERLR B BREARA YERA BT 100%
Carford International Limited Hong Kong Limited Liability ~ Property holding HK$2
Company
PERTER(RE)ERAF mEARAMBE(HE])  AREEAR  #7 ARH1,000000,0007C  100%
(T ERTER(RE)))
CITIC Bank International (China) People’s Republic of China Limited Liability ~ Banking RMB1,000,000,000
Limited ("CBI (China)") ("mainland China") Company
PERRRBEERA A BA BREEAR  RREER 75 #5,000,0007 100%
CITIC Insurance Brokers Limited Hong Kong Limited Liability  Insurance broker HK$5,000,000
Company
CKWB-SN Limited FEs,/ B8 BEREALDR BOEBRBENRE F2in 100%
Cayman Islands/Hong Kong ~ Limited Liability  Issue of structured notes  US$1
Company and investments
CKWH-UT2 Limited Mels/ &4 BREARR BAKERE E8T 100%
Cayman Islands/Hong Kong  Limited Liability  Issue of US$1
Company subordinated notes
BRAEAMBARRA B BREMEAR HEREE 7 #200,000,0007C 100%
HKCB Finance Limited Hong Kong Limited Liability ~ Consumer financing HK$200,000,000
Company
ERBEART(RBA)BERRAR  FE BREERR  HKEBARE AHS5,0007T 100%
The Hongkong Chinese Bank Hong Kong Limited Liability ~ Nominee services HK$5,000
(Nominees) Limited Company
RERT(ER)BRAF BA BREARA RS 75#3,000,0007T 100%
The Ka Wah Bank (Trustee) Limited ~ Hong Kong Limited Liability ~ Trustee services HK$3,000,000
Company
EBREBERAA BE BREMERR RIBRE BT 100%
Viewcon Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Limited Liability ~ Mortgage financing HKS2
Company
ZE-RER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

22 YIERRE 22 Property and equipment
& BEE
HERRE
REWE Hiy# Furniture, ERE
Investment Other fixtures and Computer M
properties premises equipment equipment Total
BT BT BT BT BT T
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
RASEE : Cost or valuation:
R2016%E1 A1H At 1 January 2016 185,944 632,009 910,161 403,345 2,131,459
0 Additions - - 69,379 124,533 193,912
BFNE Reclassification (57,000) 57,000 - - -
k= Disposals - - (13,129) (10) (13,139)
BHAER Surplus on revaluation 9,546 - - - 9,546
[E 5, % Exchange adjustments - - (5,196) - (5,196)
M2016%F12H31H At 31 December 2016 138,490 689,009 961,215 527,868 2,316,582
LB EMR AR The analysis of cost or
HEIWOT valuation of the above
assets is as follows:
B Cost - 671,412 961,215 527,868 2,160,495
HE Valuation
— 19854 - 1985 - 17,597 - - 17,597
—2016% -2016 138,490 - - - 138,490
138,490 689,009 961,215 527,868 2,316,582
20151 A1H At 1 January 2015 182,898 632,009 867,523 357,260 2,039,690
E 0 Additions - - 72,108 46,378 118,486
e Disposals - - (22,497) (293) (22,790)
SHAH Surplus on revaluation 3,046 - - - 3,046
fE H R Exchange adjustments - - (6,973) - (6,973)
72015%12A318 At 31 December 2015 185,944 632,009 910,161 403,345 2,131,459
LHEENR AR The analysis of cost or
EEIFOT : valuation of the above
assets is as follows:
(DN Cost - 614,412 910,161 403,345 1,927,918
HE Valuation
— 19855 -1985 - 17,597 - - 17,597
— 20154 -2015 185,944 - - - 185,944
185,944 632,009 910,161 403,345 2,131,459
ZFHINE - Accumulated depreciation:
201651818 At 1 January 2016 - 305,709 690,762 291,771 1,288,242
REEHE T I00b) Charge for the year (note 10(b)) - 13,821 85,534 50,865 150,220
BR 5 i [ 8¢ Written back on disposals - - (13,043) (10) (13,053)
0E 5 A Exchange adjustments - - (4,703) - (4,703)
7A20165E12H831H At 31 December 2016 - 319,530 758,550 342,626 1,420,706
B2015F1 A 1H At 1 January 2015 - 292,090 640,652 248,015 1,180,757
REEHE (KFE10()) Charge for the year (note 10(b)) - 13,619 77,467 44,049 135,135
B 5 i [ 8¢ Written back on disposals - - (21,704) (293) (21,997)
0 5 A= Exchange adjustments - - (5,653) - (5,653)
2015%12A318 At 31 December 2015 - 305,709 690,762 291,771 1,288,242
BRTEFE ¢ Net book value:
M20165F12H31H At 31 December 2016 138,490 369,479 202,665 185,242 895,876
2015812 A31H At 31 December 2015 185,944 326,300 219,399 111,574 843,217

112 HERTT (R BRA R
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(a) REWEAABEFE

(i)

TREFREER  AEERELEME
HEEURABEFENREDE R
B(RAEMBHREERN 13712
REBEAEIDPBEA=ARLEBEERE
e RABEFENBRDBRRE
AR A ERA B\ ABEN AT SR
MEBZUHORE :

FR-SERA-BENTERER
B I5 B SH0 5 R E GRS
AL -

FR-REAVEENEABE MG
EEN CREFTEER) - &
TRAEXEMIFATEENH
& - BRAEMGEEIEMY - &
H AR EBERBIE

B —DABEATEMIATEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Property and equipment (continued)

(@) Fair value measurement of investment properties

(i) Fairvalue hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s

investment properties measured at the end of the reporting

period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-

level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, ‘Fair value

measurement’. The level into which a fair value measurement

classified is determined with reference to the observability and

significance of the input used in the valuation technique as

follows:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets

for identical assets at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques based on observable inputs,

which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant

unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs

for which market data are not available.

Level 3 - Fair value measured using significant unobservable

HIEIBRETE © inputs.
3
Level 3
2016 2015
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
REMEQAABENETEM Recurring fair value measurement using
FAHERNE significant unobservable input
REYZE Investment properties
— & — Held in Hong Kong 99,601 147,001
— BB AN R — Held outside Hong Kong 38,889 38,943
138,490 185,944
—ENEH 113
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22 MERSZE (E)

(a) REMEAIAEBENE (B)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

DIEEER (E)

H E2016F #2015 128318 » EF1
WMANE 2R 2 W EERE KR BURES
WmEEAREL - NEBBUREEN R
LEHRERAAEBEERAEERNE
i °

H20165F 128318 - X8R E 8l = 6D
TERAEENREMESHRE -
MEGMBERUNAHAMEBEEAREER
e (BB BRELER) F1357 A
AREBEEFEIHSAREENER A
B8N 5= B 1) E 14 B ik 5 7B 159,546,000
70 (20154 © & 878 #3,046,00070) W
BEAREFAREBERKERS

AF EEEREIERE LS, B 2

WML BEH BBREREEN
BB

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Property and equipment (continued)

(a)
(i)

(i)

Fair value measurement of investment properties (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into
or out of Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

All investment properties of the Group were revalued and
assessed by the management of the Group at 31 December
2016 with reference to the property valuation report conducted
by an independent firm of surveyors. The basis of the property
valuation was market value, which is consistent with the
definition of fair value under HKFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’.
The revaluation surplus of HK$9,546,000 (2015: HK$3,046,000)
was recognised by the Group and has been credited to the
income statement.

Reconciliation of fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy

The movements during the year in the balance of these Level 3
fair value measurements are as follows:

2016 2015

BET T BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

R1A1A At 1 January 185,944 182,898

EMOBREEMME Reclassification to other property and

B equipment (57,000) -

DA BERE Fair value adjustment 9,546 3,046

®12A31H At 31 December 138,490 185,944
EIERE NS BB EER (i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

HEE FERIER R Y BN &=

Valuation technique Unobservable input Range

RSN IES Gt led o MEEBIHE (k) -15%E15%

Investment properties Market comparison approach  Premium (discount) on quality of properties -15%to 15%

EEBXEBAIMRAIREWEL
NABEIRAMSLEEAEE - A
S2EZOEBMENE T ST REEE
RAEE  LETHNHEEER
MABRASEYEE S8R BRI
& REMBEHENEREERRE
FHREMR L AIEE INIEM - &

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The fair value of investment properties located in or outside
Hong Kong is determined by using the market comparison
approach by reference to the recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per-square-foot basis, adjusted for a
premium or a discount specific to the quality of the Group's or
the Bank's properties compared to the recent sales. The carrying
amount of the investment properties would be increased by
the same percentage increase in the price per-square-foot and
vice versa.
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22 MERSZE (E)

(b)

(c)

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Property and equipment (continued)

REVMERHLMBYENREFEINOT : (b) The analysis of net book value of investment properties and
other premises is as follows:
2016 2015
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
HE Leasehold
B Held in Hong Kong
—REHEE(BBS0FRER) — Long-term leases (over 50 years unexpired) 79,116 80,885
—FHHEEC0FE50F REm) - Medium-term leases (10 to 50 years unexpired) 389,964 392,415
BB @ Held outside Hong Kong
—FHEFE10FE50F R Em) — Medium-term leases (10 to 50 years unexpired) 38,889 38,943
507,969 512,243

KEMEELENH S W ABLE ABE
7,143,0007T (20154 : 7##57,523,0007T) °

20169 2015 8 BIREYE R ERIE -

AEBETHEHMMEZRBEFEETE
e MRBUMEZ UK INEA
IR REEMN2016512 831 B EH MY ER
T F B & A 75 154,916,0007T (20154 : B
4,981,0007T) ©

BREERERENYERRE ()
AEBERBEEHEN T AHLREYE -
BRMENSNEER —MRm2E3F - A&

A EFEERER LB RN -

AREBRT A ERNRE MY ENLE
HERWNRRFIEHES AN

The gross rental income arising from investment properties is
HK$7,143,000 (2015: HK$7,523,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no loss on
disposal of investment properties.

Some of the other premises of the Group were revalued in previous
years. The net book value of such other premises of the Group at 31
December 2016 would have been HK$4,916,000 (2015: HK$4,981,000)
had they been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Property and equipment leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three years, with
an option to renew the leases after that date, at which time all terms
are renegotiated.

The Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases for investment and subletting properties
are receivable as follows:

2016 2015

BT T BT

HK$'000 HKS$'000

1FR Within 1 year 5,532 3,572
1FEE5F After 1 year but within 5 years 7,556 -
13,088 3,572

—E—XEFR
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23 RITREMEREBNERRER

Notes to the Financial Statements

23 Deposits and balances of banks and other financial

institutions
2016 2015
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
RITHFER N ETF Deposits and balances from banks 5,256,660 2,658,301
24 BFEER 24 Deposits from customers
2016 2015
BT T BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
EHA R A RERPIFR Demand deposits and current deposits 22,124,842 20,094,257
BHBEFX Savings deposits 46,115,748 36,751,099
TFHR - BUVHEA S A HAsR AN AR Time, call and notice deposits 167,334,110 163,838,353
235,574,700 220,683,709
25 RZARAE 25 Trading liabilities
2016 2015
BT T T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
PTETEME QAR EEMTFE37(0) Negative fair value of derivatives (note 37(b)) 3,996,444 3,555,614
ST AZ TR . pe ey e
26 CEITHFEARE 26 Certificates of deposit issued
2016 2015
BET T BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
X G A& Non-trading 10,593,445 10,388,272

27 BAEARRRPTRE SR
(a) HBRRRAROETHBIRS :

27 Income taxin the statement of financial position

(@) Current taxation in the statement of financial position

represents:

2016 2015
BT T BB T
HK$’000 HKS$'000

REEEFBNEGTHLER Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for
(FIsE13()) the year (note 13(a)) 437,512 344,233
BT E SRS Provisional Profits Tax paid (261,490) (375,622)
176,022 (31,389)
BN IR A Provision for overseas taxation 19,196 60,185
195,218 28,796

EHepo: Of which:

AT EI T IR Tax recoverable (187) (33,114)
ARHARIIA Current taxation 195,405 61,910
195,218 28,796

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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27 BIBARRREIRHEER (&) 27 Income tax in the statement of financial position
(continued)
(b) ERINELHBEERES (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

(c)

ERUBRARERELERE (BE),/
BENAERAFEARANEBNT

are as follows:

FERHE

BBEE
TE  EXREBEXR
Depreciation REEE

allowances in Impairment
excess of allowances

ARHERS

EHAR

MH#ER  Revaluation
#AE  adjustments
Revaluation  for available

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the
statement of financial position and the movements during the year

related forloans  adjustments -for-sale Hitr kel
depreciation and advances for properties securities Others Total
BT BETT BT BT BETT BT
EEFIERE - Deferred tax arising from: HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
R2016F1H18 At 1 January 2016 34,501 (61,915) 1,614 (35) (8,760) (34,595)
BAWGERNE Charged/(credited) to income
(%) (MiEE13(2))  statement (note 13(a) 10,455 10,593 (89) - 9,587 30,546
EAEE Charged to reserves - - - (12,780) 211 (12,569)
P& 5 M E A A Exchange and other adjustments 61 (246) - - 106 (79)
H2016%12831H At 31 December 2016 45,017 (51,568) 1,525 (12,815) 1,144 (16,697)
R2015%1 A1H At 1 January 2015 34,263 (63,045) 1,621 18,271 (18,898) (27,788)
A MRERNME Charged/(credited) to income
(E1%)(Hi7E13()  statement (note 13(a)) 260 1,118 ) - 9,809 11,180
[HEAEE Credited to reserves - - - (18,306) - (18,306)
X R EMAE Exchange and other adjustments (22) 12 - - 329 319
R20158128318 At 31 December 2015 34,501 (61,915) 1,614 (35) (8,760) (34,595)
2016 2015
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
£ TS AR R T R Y Net deferred tax assets recognised on
FIRERIBEE the statement of financial position (18,217) (36,312)
T B AR R TSR Y Net deferred tax liabilities recognised on
FRERIBEAE the statement of financial position 1,520 1,717
(16,697) (34,595)
AEANELEHRIBEEE (c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

BRRARAIEELBEERR BT BHAN
FERBRTUHBHEBERE  AEEL K
BRAFHEEENECHEEE BEE
641,0007T (2015%F : #&#2,624,0007T) ° RIE
MEFT RS - EEHIEEIBLEEIHA -

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of HK$641,000 (2015: HK$2,624,000), as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The
tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation.

—E-XFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

28 BEBEX 28 Loan capital

2016 2015
BETT BEETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000

FERE6875%  HIE Subordinated notes with
500,000,000 TC K 1% (8 = 15> US$500 million of 6.875% * 4,063,457 4,132,209

F B K AE3875%  HE Subordinated notes with
300,000,0003 JTHY 14 B S 15+ US$300 million of 3.875% ** 2,318,117 2,306,392

FBEE6000% ' EE Subordinated notes with
300,000,0003 JT H 14 8 S 5+ US$300 million of 6.0009% *** 2,324,263 2,327,616
8,705,837 8,766,217

*%

20106 3248 + ANTTIRIEF 200712 A 1
t£12,000,000,0003 7T &9 1 B = & 5T & ([
HAZEE a2 ]) RR20105F6 A HmBRE
WK BETE{ES00,000,000% 7T (SEBEE
3,888,900,0007T) * # 1T F B EK 56.875%H
BERE BLEEEREFINEXSABR
NFEET - WiER202056 5248 BIH -

20129982780 + AT IR IR LA £ &9 B
ZERHENR0NEABEEMEER
BK - B% 1T TE {E300,000,0005 7T (5 {E 5
2,326,100,0007T) & ERIE - BITETESF
B X A3875% @ FFFIRBE2017F9728
HiE  ERRITHEBLERTERZE
AEETF X AERNEESFREESZE
B FNN3250%5F F K o 33 L IR FT AN
RGARAR LM + WiFH202299 728
HEH -

2013F1MA7H » RITIR B LA £ & 5
ERATE RR03FI0A B ENBEER
BK - E% 1T TE {E300,000,0005 7T (5 1{E B
2,325,800,0007T) WA ERIE - ZBREZE
HEBEBHBE=Z) M_FPERBRK - 1%
EEEHZREF A EER6.000% - F¥F
EKEZE2019F5878 1L BERBRBITE
BREE - REMNEENEGREERSFH
FEEREGEES R NATI8HFF R EH
i c BEEZRERERSREEMABR
NE LT R 202455 A7HFIE ©

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

*%

Under a USS$2 billion Medium Term Note Programme (“the Programme”)
issued in December 2007 and the new Offering Circular issued in June
2010, the Bank issued subordinated notes on 24 June 2010 with a face
value of US$500 million (equivalent to HK$3,888.9 million). The notes
bear an interest rate of 6.875% per annum, payable semi-annually. The
notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
and mature on 24 June 2020.

Under the Programme and the new Offering Circular issued in August
2012, the Bank issued subordinated notes on 27 September 2012 with
a face value of US$300 million (equivalent to HK$2,326.1 million). The
notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 3.875% per annum, payable semi-
annually until 28 September 2017, and thereafter fixed at an interest
rate of the prevailing five-year US Treasury bonds yield plus 3.250% per
annum if the notes are not redeemed on or before the call date at the
option of the Bank. The notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited and mature on 28 September 2022.

Under the Programme and the new Offering Circular issued in October
2013, the Bank issued subordinated notes on 7 November 2013 with
a face value of US$300 million (equivalent to HK$2,325.8 million) and
which qualified as Basel lll-compliant Tier-2 capital. The notes bear
interest at a fixed rate of 6.000% per annum, payable semi-annually until
7 May 2019, and thereafter fixed at the interest rate of the prevailing
five-year US Treasury bonds yield plus 4.718% per annum if the notes
are not redeemed on the call date. The notes are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and mature on 7 May 2024.
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29 EBEXRK#E 29 Capital and reserves
(@ ’Ax (@) Share capital
() EEITRAEZEK - (i) Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid-
2016 2015
[N s
BZAZE Share capital R E Share capital
Number BT Number BT T
of shares HK$’000 of shares HK$'000
M1B1H At 1 January 7,283,341,176 7,566,271 7,283,341,176 7,566,271
FRBEITHRGD Shares issued during the year
(B FE@)(G)) (Note (a)(ii) 1,800,000,000 1,800,000 - -
M12B31A At 31 December 9,083,341,176 9,366,271 7,283,341,176 7,566,271
(i)  FRAZEITHID (i) Shares issued during the year
ARATHR2016F1 8268 © A TR B The Bank issued a total of 1,800,000,000 ordinary shares at
1TTEEZERARREEERESEBERE HK$1.00 each to its holding company, CITIC International
PR 7~ &) & 77 $£1,800,000,000/% & &8 A% Financial Holdings Limited on 26 January 2016 (2015: Nil).
(20156 @ f®) o
b) BE (b) Dividend
AITEZE2016F12A3AEFERNEBEEIR No dividend was declared and paid during the year ended 31
BRB (201548 @ #&) - December 2016 (2015: Nil).
(0 REMERE®N (c) Nature and purpose of components of reserves
()  EXEE (i) Capital reserve
BARBHETI T DR T IR o The capital reserve is not available for distribution to
shareholders.
(i)  —AREEE (i) General reserve
—REERERE R — DK The general reserve was set up from the transfer of retained
R WHRAT IR TR o earnings, and is available for distribution to shareholders.
(iii) [ 7 Z BBl E (i) Exchange differences reserve
EHERREEEMERREGIINE The exchange differences reserve comprises all foreign
B BEHREMEENIERZ5 - I exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
BB FE2(p) FTE I ST BER R IR o statement of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 2(p).
(v) YIEEHE (iv)  Property revaluation reserve
YEBEHREERBEMZ20FMEN S The property revaluation reserve is dealt with in accordance
FTGREE - WHEAA 2R TIRE with the accounting polices set out in note 2(i) and is not
ERIRBEIHE S CRFHEDD (%622 available for distribution to shareholders because it does not
B) FoEfEE - s LHEETBEND constitute realised profits within the meaning of Part 6 of the
BEIRER new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
) B nELEE (v)  Cash flow hedging reserve

RenBinREEEFEELS NI FH
AR REEPTANZARAAE
B A UEMD ©

The cash flow hedging reserve comprises the effective portion
of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow
hedging instruments related to hedged transactions.
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29 BAXRKf#HE (&)

() REMEREW (&)

i) REEFRE
BREBEERBEERGEEERANH
HEERBFNRFAFAABEED
AR B B RE2(e) (DT 8 B0 & 5T R R 2
# -

i) JEEEFNTE
RIEFEBBEGIRE - PERITE
B (B SERESFORKRENS
BRI 0%IERTEED IR T IR ADEE &
BATE BEREATREBAEEREE

AR 2 50089 7K

(viii) JEE —MREE
BEFRBEIRITER - PERITER
(PR FERIETE —MEHEE - BBK
EFENFEIR  EEERIER—
REER AR A AR R E M B TR IB KR
e IR EERENRAREEREL
HEHMBEREEMN %:TE - AF R
EERARAEE R EP—E -

(i) tREZ @A

BEREB(RITEED) BRER
BEENRT  AMIBEREHETE

HEBBECHAMBEBLIANEE X
AREEEANERRERNRAERERL
LR KHRACERE RENE
BEEEREEREEMNAEE - 12016
F12A318 - REBEMNFBEEELE
BAUYBRETARITRENSER
7 2805429,0007T (20154F = & #&
2,571,972,0007T) ° 1B K 3 Bl AN 1778

(d) fREENTIIRME

20165F12 4318  IRIEFHE B (R BE
By (FenE) WBREERFTE - Al DR
FARITIRE AR 4858 A5 #512,534,568,000
76 (20154F 7 #10,151,327,0007T) ° VA
AJ {931k &9 {36 45578 512,534,568,0007T, (2015
F : ¥10,151,327,0007T) E2AR 1 Y 5E42(0)
Fir i & A1 T B OR B8 v A1 75 %61 5,414,382,0007T
(20154 : %12,788,138,0007T) 2 =58
TERPE—MREBRIBIREMENRE
BEHWE R FRAAITEE FE

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

29 Capital and reserves (continued)

(c)

(d)

Nature and purpose of components of reserves (continued)

(vi)  Investment revaluation reserve
The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale securities
held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies in note 2(e)(ii).

(vii) ~ Statutory reserve
Under the relevant legislation of mainland China, CBI (China)
is required to transfer 10% of its profit after taxation to a non-
distributable statutory reserve until such reserve has reached
50% of its registered share capital.

(viii)  Regulatory general reserve

Pursuant to the banking regulations of mainland China, CBI
(China) is required to set up a regulatory general reserve through
a direct transfer from the current year's profit appropriation, as
determined based on the 1% of the total risk assets at the end
of the reporting period to cover its unidentified potential loss
exposures. The regulatory general reserve forms part of the
equity of the Group.

(ix)  Retained profits

A regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of
the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
purposes by earmarking amounts in respect of impairment
losses recognised which the Bank will or may incur on loans
and advances. Movements in the reserve are earmarked directly
through retained profits and in consultation with the HKMA. At
31 December 2016, HK$2,805,429,000 (2015: HK$2,571,972,000)
was included in the retained profits in this respect, which
was distributable to equity holders of the Bank subject to
consultation with the HKMA.

Distributability of reserve

At 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Bank, as calculated under
the provision of Part 6 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), was HKS$12,534,568,000 (2015: HK$10,151,327,000).
The difference between the aggregate distributable reserves of
HK$12,534,568,000 (2015: HK$10,151,327,000) and the Bank's retained
profits of HK$15,414,382,000 (2015: HK$12,788,138,000) as reported in
note 42(b) mainly represents the inclusion of general reserves and the
exclusion of unrealised revaluation gains on investment properties
and the above regulatory reserve of the Bank.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

30 Additional equity instruments

2016 2015
BT T T T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
TE{E300,000,0003 JT A sk B HY Undated non-cumulative subordinated capital
FERBREELRER securities with US$300 million* 2,310,168 2,310,168
T {8500,000,0003 7T Ay 7k B 7Y Undated non-cumulative subordinated capital
FRBREEAREHZ securities with US$500 million** 3,863,084 -
6,173,252 2,310,168

*%

R #& 72007912 7 % 17 #92,000,000,0003
TR ERETE ([ZAH31)) Fimd2014
FAARMGR B ER R - RITHR2014F
AANBEAFA(EERH T =) BE
300,000,0003 JT (% 1 # #2,313,470,000
TL) KK BRIIER BB E RN —RERE
F (BN —MEERFESF]) - lLEEIN—H
BEARESHIEET R A KKR2019F48
VAEMEEAELD R BHE  EEFEHNES
7250% ° HERABITFEELDE  ZEHF
PR IRE s FRERBEEES B ENF
FRs627% B RFE —REFHER] °

RIE G G - BIN—RERE TFE
ARG WEERF 2R ER (ZEBE
ERIEAITHBEREREAERE) &
FARTENBERSIKRE - RREFH4
A2BM0A2BIRFEFBE — K o K17A]
ABTTRE @ B EBEUH D IR R B L5
N—ER BEEBIECERNERSE
mEE - HZE2016F12831HFERBN DK
3 E) A B21,7500003 7T (FE & 7B B
168,7350007T) (20154 : 217500003 7T (1HE
W B#168567,0007T) ) °

1R 1 72007412 A % 17 #92,000,000,0003
TCRI R BB AT EI R 20165F8 A M9 A &
BEEMHMBEEBHNERBE - RIT
MR2016F9F8298 BT EKEERBHE =)
500,000,000 JT 8 7k A8 7 IE R A& 14 (B BE Hh
—BEAER ([BIN—REXFERD T
B WEBAFIEFHRINRERZ
It T B M AS 4:500,000,0003 7T (S5 E B
3,877,8600007T) BN —MME KRB HE N E
BHAT AR QG L REET R
B R2021F 10811 B{ERAIER B H
AT DR B R BFFELI5% o BEEFARE
TEERE - D REERNFERNEBIZE
B 54 HA 25 B B B 5 2 R N4 1 %£3.107%
BREREHER]

*%

Under a USS$2 billion Medium Term Note Programme (“the
Programme”) issued in December 2007 and the new Offering Circular
issued in April 2014, the Bank issued a Basel Ill compliant Undated
Non-Cumulative Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities (the
"AT1 Capital Securities”) on 22 April 2014 with a face value of US$300
million (equivalent to HK$2,313.47 million). The AT1 Capital Securities
are perpetual and bear a 7.250% coupon until the first call date on 22
April 2019. The coupon will be reset every five years if the AT1 Capital
Securities are not redeemed to a fixed rate equivalent to the then-
prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus 5.627% per annum.

According to the terms and conditions, the AT1 Capital Securities
confer a right to receive non-cumulative distributions (each a
Distribution) on the principal amount (subject to adjustments following
the occurrence of a non-viability event as defined) from, and including,
the issue date at the applicable distribution rate, payable semi-annually
in arrear on 22 April and 22 October each year. The Banks may, at its
sole discretion, elect to cancel the distribution payment or redeem
the AT1 Capital Securities, which are subject to prior written consent
of the HKMA. A distribution payment of US$21,750,000 (equivalent to
HK$168,735,000) was paid during the year ended 31 December 2016
(2015: US$21,750,000, equivalent to HKS$168,567,000).

Under a USS$2 billion Medium Term Note Programme (“the Programme”)
issued in December 2007 and the new and supplemental offering
circulars issued in August and September 2016, respectively, the Bank
priced its US$500 million Basel Ill compliant Undated Non-Cumulative
Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities (“AT1 Capital
Securities”) with the legal binding subscription agreements signed on
29 September 2016. The AT1 Capital Securities with a face value and
principal amount of US$500 million (equivalent to HK$3,877.86 million)
are perpetual and listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
and bear a 4.25% per annum distribution rate until the first call date
on 11 October 2021. The distribution rate will be reset every five years
if the AT1 Capital Securities are not called by the Bank to a fixed rate
equivalent to the then-prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus 3.107%
per annum.

—E-XFR
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30 FESMERIER (&)

31

BB GRRAEHE - BN —REAE THE
ABASWEGERF DK (BXDIK) B
- REERITANERSIRE  MREF
F4ATBFMOANBIRFEFE —IK o &A1T
ALABITAE - EEIUHD R R ER R
IN—ERER - BEEBIEERNELAEMERA
= o AITARIRBEE M IEATTTIH I L H IR B
KT G MR EREEEIIN—RER
MEEE - RIBEEE(ERHEE (EEHH)
B (F628%) R T EKES - EIEA
ITHEMBAR - ATAITFEEEEEEE
BEITREARKREEREIN—RENBE -

BERIKTE

AEBERA -—HERAEHALATERE (T%
BIAFTED) ¢ B - AEBEAEDRENE
BEARFHE10%M MR - ZRNEEIE—1E
B R E  REBERE LA EERM
BExBES - BEHAFLEMAMER - 1R
BREAESEHHAARER - NEBENEH
18 B PR B (R D IR B e RER
& KA EHRBEA @B LNENES
ERZRINET B B REHIE -

B T RORIRETEIS) - RS B 820001281
it h2E—-IBRARESE - /ERA
KRR B e tAt 81812 - ARBE D RIE
SRAE B AT &I PR F R R FI FF 0 HOAE A o

AFEERN AEBEGE LTS ELHE
A B A 191,652,0007T (20154F © i #E
82,115,0007T) (FFzE10@)) °

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

30 Additional equity instruments (continued)

31

According to the terms and conditions, the AT1 Capital Securities
confer a right to the holders to receive non-cumulative distributions
on the principal amount from, and including, the issue date at the
applicable distribution rate, payable semi-annually in arrear on 11
April and 11 October in each year. The Bank may, at its sole discretion,
elect to cancel the distribution payment or redeem the AT1 Capital
Securities subject to prior written consent of the HKMA. The
outstanding amount of AT1 Capital Securities can be written down by
the Bank following the occurrence of a non-viability event as defined
and set out in the terms and conditions. At the sole discretion of the
relevant Hong Kong Resolution Authority following a non-viability
event, the outstanding amount of AT1 Capital Securities can be
adjusted upon the exercise of Hong Kong Bail-in Power in accordance
with the Hong Kong Financial Institutions (Resolution) Ordinance
(Cap.628).

Staff retirement scheme

The Group has a defined contribution provident fund scheme
(“the Retirement Scheme”) under which it contributes 10% of the
employees’ basic salaries. The Retirement Scheme is a Mandatory
Provident Fund ("MPF") exempted scheme and covers all permanent
full-time employees of the Group. No employee contributions are
required. Contributions forfeited by leavers prior to vesting fully may
not be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contribution,
but are transferred to a separate welfare fund which shall be applied
for the welfare of the Retirement Scheme'’s members.

In addition to the Retirement Scheme, the Group has also participated
in an approved MPF scheme effective from 1 December 2000 to
provide a choice of schemes to both existing and new employees.
Mandatory benefits are provided under the MPF Scheme.

During the year, the Group contributed approximately HK$91,652,000
(2015: HKS82,115,000) (note 10(a)) to these schemes.
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32 BEeEkREEEER

32 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

2016 2015
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
() BE RN HELEEK (a)Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash flow
REFHENEHE (used in)/from operating activities
R Operating activities
A A Profit before taxation 3,053,239 2,601,446
RS IEE A Adjustments for non-cash items:
EPERMBRREM Impairment losses on loans and
ARIEREE %G advances and other accounts 552,959 667,677
B A] (S BB A R R Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities (129,729) (59,715)
HEMERREF Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property and
(W) BB equipment (15) 730
EMEEH W= Revaluation gain on investment properties (9,546) (3,046)
IEAE S Y Amortisation of deferred expenses 36,571 121,632
Y NEREBITE Depreciation on property and equipment 150,220 135,135
mEH R EMA Dividend income from equity securities (6,098) (6,294)
BHEEARFE T Interest expense on loan capital 504,064 503,309
PE W, Z= =8 Foreign exchange differences (107,715) (373,269)
EEESBEANCEER Operating profit before changes in working Capital 4,043,950 3,587,605
REEEEM B (Increase)/decrease in operating assets
FREH B BiBE3E A MR Placements with and advances to banks,
17~ ARIRIT R EME central banks and other financial institutions
RIS TR S BV with original maturity beyond 3 months 3,096,013 (42,678)
REIER A B E3E A/ Treasury bills with original maturity
Bl E % beyond 3 months 5,851,710 (7,875,416)
JREIEA A B E3(E A #Y Certificates of deposit held with original
B 17 RE maturity beyond 3 months (4,081,411) (7,651,121)
REABREE Trading assets (1,304,181) (986,206)
ERPERRBFRR Loans and advances to customers and
HAiARIA other accounts (18,412,937) (20,483,681)
AR EFE S Available-for-sale securities (6,746,042) (8,111,502)
(21,596,848) (45,150,604)
LeEaEEm S ORd) Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities
ﬁETT&ﬁﬁﬁ RO A Deposits and balances of banks and
FRk other financial institutions 2,598,359 (1,471,100)
zF ﬁ,ﬂ Deposits from customers 14,883,011 31,742,004
RHREaE Trading liabilities 440,830 580,807
BEITHFRE Certificates of deposit issued 201,380 (3,509,246)
HtBE Other liabilities (2,298,988) 4,597,056
15,824,592 31,939,521
ARGREEBNRESE Cash used in operating activities (1,728,306) (9,623,478)
—XEH
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32 BEeRBELEHEER (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements

32 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

2016 2015
BET T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
(BB RFEREER 2 (a)Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash flow
HEEHNYER(E) (used in)/from operating activities (continued)
ARREEBNESE Cash used in operating activities (1,728,306) (9,623,478)
EMER Income tax paid
BENBEBFER Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (197,426) (389,223)
EAEINEIR Overseas tax paid (62,553) (52,565)
FARKREEBNRSFHE Net cash flow used in operating activities (1,988,285) (10,065,266)
REEBREENRS Cash flows from operating
REBE: activities include:
[=AL & URS) Interest received 6,891,019 6,578,774
EHRFE Interest paid (2,599,419) (2,847,156)
bRERALEEER (b)Analysis of the balances of cash
HNEFED N and cash equivalents
RE RAERIT » PRIFITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks and
HE e mEEmasF other financial institutions 26,458,664 19,497,229
EIRTT « PRIRTT R EAM Placements with and advances to banks, central
BRI R R B banks and other financial institutions with original
(RR3EAANEIE) maturity within 3 months 18,304,676 22,453,326
Bl 5 KR B B K Treasury bills and certificates of deposit held
(ERAA3ME A A2 ER) with original maturity within 3 months:
—AHHEES - Available-for-sale securities 9,753,931 9,744,861
54,517,271 51,695,416

FREIRT (B BRAH
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33 Assets pledged as security for liabilities and collateral

REREE accepted as security for assets
2016 2015
BT T T T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
AEEBERBNEE Assets pledged as security for liabilities
REERAMEHER SN Available-for-sale securities pledged for
EEFER (M) statutory deposit (Note 1) 85,304 85,541
FAEER A HESE5/ Available-for-sale securities pledged for
BAA&EMEQR) own liabilities (Note 2) - 77,800
85,304 163,341
KFRBEZERIKFEE Collateral accepted as security for assets
RFHERE R EENERIE Fair value of the collateral permitted to sell or
HmB AR EEMFES) repledge in the absence of default (Note 3) - 1,592,835

REERNEERENEE B ERTXE
BT RANEE TR ©

20154 - IRIBEEMEER S ZER
EERAERR] WIEREEABE
69,307,0007C B AT ASRTT R E & R Y
GFa R -

FR2015%F + AN SR Bt I B3 0] i 2 5 Y K
HRIEAZFEERERITRE SR
BETF R AE51,612,028,0007T /& [A1/@ 84
i AR B 5B 5 B B AR R A SRR 36 [ B
RPHET - REBBHR ZEHFMEFFH
MET -

EXBABAIRS

BAEAMBRREMBORENZ H LR
O NREEETTUATERER TS -

Note:

M

The assets pledged represented statutory deposits pledged by the
overseas branches of the Bank to the Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency in the United States.

At 31 December 2015, the assets pledged regarded as ‘collateral’
under the sale and repurchase transactions for the secured liabilities of
HK$69,307,000 were included in deposits and balances of banks and
other financial institutions.

At 31 December 2015, the Group also received securities as collateral
under the reverse repurchase transactions for bank balances of
HK$1,612,028,000 as included in placements with banks and financial
institutions. The reverse repurchase agreements were conducted
under standard terms for securities borrowing and reverse repurchase
transactions. The Group had an obligation to return the securities to its
counterparties.

34 Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere

in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following

material related party transactions.

—E-XFR
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3 EXBHARS (&) 34 Material related party transactions (continued)
(a HEEATNRS (@) Transactions with group companies
REFEA  AEETEHASRITEBBIESD During the year, the Group entered into a number of transactions with
BT EIT T ZIER S - ERERIBEE related parties in the normal course of its banking business; including,
B BEXREREETK %Eﬁifﬁlg?ﬁ’\ inter alia, lending, acceptance and placement of interbank deposits,
ARBPITRGIINER H c BLERXFHEH participation in loan syndicates, correspondent banking transactions
EERRBEETRZREHNEBTISHE and foreign exchange transactions. The transactions were priced
MmiE @ WA AEEHEMZ 5L RERP based on relevant market rates at the time of each transaction, and
FERAER - EEERE - BERXHEIRE were under the same terms as those available to other counterparties
EEEGRUELT o and customers of the Group. In the opinion of the Directors, these
transactions were conducted on normal commercial terms.
REERN - BB ARZINBELNEEBD The amount of related party transactions during the year and
BERAT outstanding balances at the end of the year are set out below:
BAERR AZKELR o O BHLAR
TEEREAR (H3EG) (P& i) )
Ultimate holding and ERERBAR Fellow subsidiaries Associates Related companies
intermediate parents Immediate parent (note (i)) (note (ii)) (note (iii))
(Eit)
(Restated)
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
BT BETr  BMTn  BNTn BeTn BETr  BETn EETn BETn Ak
HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
HEBA Iterest income 4530 303501 - - 632 M9 15601 2509 - 613
AEx Interest expense (99,309)  (107464) (4,134) (7349 (49,387) (82,841) (12,418) (15323) (7,466) (19,730)
AEEIA Other operating income - - - - 229 - 2649 50823 - -
e Operating expenses (21,842) B3) 573 (B244)  (5469) (4830 - - - (1)
THBENENE/(BE)  Trading gain/(loss) on derivatives 180,393 149314 - - 854 (2895 (25,528) 7726 - (46,136)
&g Assets
AL ERE Available-for-sale securities 196,391 206,528 - - - - 174535 168,577 - -
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments 72,187 146784 - - - - 27,538 - - -
EfENER Other receivables 3178 5601 - - 3875 3438 1,596 2153 - -
g Liabilities
ITEERIE Derivative financial instruments 40,188 14537 - - 4 - 25,259 - - -
R Other payables 12,842 8635 886 6,138 10,611 25720 332 988 2,794 1,081
BED Lending activities
R12A318 At 31 December 320,358 1,743,360 - - 2,707,688 17606066 600,000 664,690 - -
REETIRE Average for the year 2016340 5070805 - - 2003041 1283611 ST7446 970990 - 851146
BREH: Acceptance of deposits
M2A31H At 31 December 8,559,965  6,46501 415929 2215978 11465328 6391250  3,148578 4819768 677293 1,242,138
TEETHEE Average for the year 76532719 934578 413580 2218787 5,704,286 5721146 4480058 5764077 871,947 197099
BRMRRRMER Off-statement of financial
position items
EHEZ R Acceptances, quarantees
RiERE and letters of credit
*Fﬁﬁuﬂﬁﬁ - contract amounts payable - - - - (07077)  (12569) - - - -
HEAL Lease commitments - - - - 1,552 3997 - - - -
HiE Other commitments - - - - 145489 478861 1134273 862817 222,861 -
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments
-254% -notional amounts 6,867,094 6535013 - - 387,744 - 2,495,188 - - -

FREIRT (B BRAH
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(a)

(b)

EXBEMAIRS (&

HEBERANRS ()
3 4% Bt b B R 7 B R R R R E 2
ff

() AEBECEAMANEBBINZS  BH
BEZSNLBRBFEEHNRIL -

(i) AEEWEZQFBEBN&EZERAR
MERERE AR E AT -

(i) FE QR RIBRERERS QRS HF
TEERAENAF -

BIEEBABNRS
AEBETREEABHSARREMENAT
BREENTATESFEA  FB0T -

Notes to the Financial Statements

34

(a)

(b)

Material related party transactions (continued)

Transactions with group companies (continued)
No impairment allowances were made in respect of the above loans
to and placements with related parties.

Note:

(i) The Group has revisited its transactions with related parties during the
period and certain comparative figures relating to these transactions
have been restated as a result of such revision.

(i) Associates of the Group include the associates of the ultimate
controlling party and immediate parent respectively.

(i)  Related companies refers to companies with common key
management personnel of the intermediate parents.

Transactions with key management personnel

The aggregate amount of remuneration of key management
personnel of the Group, including the amount paid to the Bank's
Directors as disclosed in note 11, are as follows:

2016 2015

BT BT

HK$’000 HKS$'000

RHEERH Short-term employee benefits 97,340 101,895
BEB 1242 A Post-employment benefits 3,122 3,266
100,462 105,161

Mo st A [EIRA] (FHEE10@)

REFR - ATARTTARARBEREZER A B
T EEIEA B A PIE TR N i A PRI X
RMMEAFENRRIRTEERE - 8
MEREREXRBBETRME  WRHHE
WAL (ER) EEAREEETA L
L SRV GERARBHER °

Total remuneration is included in ‘staff costs’ (note 10(a)).

During the year, the Bank provided credit facilities to key management
personnel of the Bank and its holding companies and their close
family members, as well as to companies controlled or significantly
influenced by them. The credit facilities were provided in the ordinary
course of business and on substantially the same terms as for
comparable transactions with persons of a similar standing, or where
applicable, with other employees.

—E-XFR
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3 EXBHMARS (& 34 Material related party transactions (continued)

(b) EFEEBAENRS (&) (b) Transactions with key management personnel (continued)
2016 2015
BET T BT IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
R1ATHRNES At 1 January 21,058 21,477
R12A31 A& At 31 December 21,404 21,058
FANRmAER BT Maximum amount during the year 27,981 24,201

REBREREEEBRAENFANERE

REFRERR  WRBERETEEEASR
R APS AT R B AR B 4 IR RE BT ik {18 1 7 A
HREZEH -

(0 EEEX
BE(AT (BRBEEZFEER) BED(F
622GE) F171& - BT BELE2016F12015%F
NAJINBEBRESNERER -

(c)

No impairment losses were recorded against outstanding balances
with key management personnel during the year, and no individually
assessed impairment allowance was made on balances with key
management personnel and their immediate relatives at the year end.

Loans to directors

Particulars of loans to directors disclosed pursuant to Section 17 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap.622G) for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
2015 are shown as below.

2016 2015
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
R12A31BARTTIREN G Aggregate amount of relevant loans made by
B R BEE the Bank at 31 December
—BNE R R - Loans and advances 9,213 3,247
—EHIEER ~ Committed facility 20,795 10,663
REEARTRENEBER Maximum aggregate amount of relevant
BREE KB loans made by the Bank during the year
—BENER R ~ Loans and advances 12,532 9,996

20165 22015512318 » REBRB A
BB SRR o

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

There were no impairment allowances made against these loans at 31
December 2016 and 2015.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

35

Financial risk management

This section presents information about the Group's exposure to risks,
and its management and control of risks, in particular the primary risks
associated with its use of financial instruments as follows:

- Credit risk: The risk of financial loss due to the failure of a
customer or counterparty to fulfill its contractual obligations.

- Market risk: The risk that movements in market risk factors,
including foreign exchange rates, commodity prices, interest
rates, credit spreads and equity prices, will reduce the Group's
income, the value of its portfolios and its reserve value.

- Liquidity risk: The risk of being unable to meet financial
obligations as they fall due. This may be caused by a funding
liquidity problem such as the inability to liquidate assets or
obtain funding to meet obligations, or may be attributable
to a market liquidity problem significantly resulting in market
disruptions, thus hindering the Group’s ability to unwind or
offset specific exposures without lowering market prices.

- Operational risk: The risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems, or from external
events.

The Group adopts the Standardised Approach for credit and market
risk measurement, and the Basic Indicator Approach for operational
risk measurement. The Group has established policies, procedures
and processes to identify and set appropriate risk limits, as well as
to analyse, control and monitor these risks. The Group continually
strives to enhance its risk management framework and infrastructure
in keeping with the market, product offerings and international best
practices. The Group's internal auditor performs regular independent
audits to ensure due compliance with internal policies and regulatory
requirements.

In addition to the Group’s exposure to and management of the
aforesaid risks, this note also includes information about the Group's
capital management.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

35 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss due to the failure of a customer
or counterparty to fulfill its contractual obligations. Credit exposure
principally arises in loans and advances, debt securities, treasury bills
and trading derivatives, as well as in the credit risk from financial
arrangements in the off-statement of financial position such as loan
commitments. The Group has developed standards, policies and
procedures to measure, monitor and mitigate the risk of its lending
business. The policies and procedures are reviewed as required, to
respond quickly to the changing market environment to better reflect
the risk factors for the Group's credit considerations.

Credit risk is controlled and managed by the Risk Management Group
("RMG") under the oversight of the Credit Committee, and is reported
to the Credit & Risk Management Committee (“CRMC") at the board
level on a quarterly basis. These committees provide appropriate
oversight of the Group's risk management practices by defining the
Group's policies and risk appetite, and providing the RMG with the
means to implement measures to mitigate credit risk arising from the
Group's adopted strategy.

Credit risk embedded in products is identified and measured in
product programmes. Credit risk pertaining to individual customers is
identified and measured by credit officers utilising internal risk rating
models. Credit applications are approved by credit officers under
delegated authorities or by the Credit Committee.

The Group mitigates credit risk by taking collateral and entering into
offsetting or netting agreements with borrowers and counterparties,
as the case may be, should such clauses and agreements be legally
established and enforceable.

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in geographic,
economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties
whose aggregate credit exposure is material in relation to the Group's
total exposures. The Group’s portfolio of financial instruments is
diversified among geographic, industry and product sectors. Credit
risk concentration of the Group's respective financial assets is
disclosed in notes 18 to 20.

Credit risk for treasury transactions is managed in the same way as the
Group manages its corporate lending risk. Risk grading is applied to
the debt issuers, with individual credit limits set.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

35 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

Credit and counterparty risks related to countries and financial
institutions are assessed and monitored regularly according to the
Group's Country Risks and Financial Institution Risks policies. The
policies are implemented together to effectively assess and control
credit limits and tenors made available to the respective financial
institutions under an umbrella country risk limit for each country.

The Group applies the same credit policy in respect of contingent
liabilities as in respect of financial instruments recorded on the
statement of financial position, based on loan approval procedures,
use of limits to reduce risk and monitoring. Credit risk is also mitigated
by obtaining collateral in the form of pledged assets and guarantees
from borrowers and third parties.

(i) Credit quality

The Group has a 14-grade internal risk rating system (Grades
1-11 for performing loans and Grades 12-14 for non-performing
loans) that maps to external agencies’ Master Scales, providing
calibrated internal ratings. The integration of this framework
into the Group's reporting structure has enabled more accurate
risk reporting, thus enhancing the internal management. The
risk rating tools are calibrated according to differing customer
segments (manufacturing, trading, property development/
investment, etc.) which enables the ranking of the credit quality
of each customer and the governing of the credit exposure for
individual customers or counterparties.

Customers' risk ratings are reviewed regularly and amendments,
where necessary, are implemented promptly, particularly
in times of fluctuating market conditions. The Group also
maintains a committee to regularly oversee weaker credits
(which have lower risk ratings of 8-11) to preserve the Group's
quality portfolio. The table below outlines the Group's rating
scale benchmarked against external credit agencies:
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35 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

() 1EEEZX (&) Credit quality (continued)
MR T AR B8 R ECAIFT#R
(14— #&5) (MizE(a))
Internal Rating System  ECAI Rating AR Al
(14-grade) (note(a)) (S&P/Moody) Rating Principles
1 AA-/Aa33i A | () &RNEFEENEHER -
AA-/Aa3 or above (i) M58 EIEFREAE N PABTT BB 5 RGE o
(i) TESXETNNEEBERETE - ABITH AR -
(i) Minimal to very low credit risk.
(i) Extremely strong to very strong capacity to meet its financial
commitments.
(iii) Not susceptible to adverse economic conditions to meet its
financial commitments.
2 A-/A3ZEA+/AT () ERERRE -
A-/A3 to A+/A1 (i) BABESABITE B 155G -
(i) HERIFHNAEEMN  FEXITMNEERELE
VARBTT B 15 8 o
(i) Low credit risk.
(ii) Strong capacity to meet its financial commitments.
(iii) Somewhat more susceptible to adverse economic conditions
to meet its financial commitments than obligors rated under
a better rating categories.
3 BBB/Baa2 % BBB+/Baal () BENERRR  BEBEAR -
BBB/Baa2 to BBB+/Baal (i) BHEVRE I IABITE B IS AeE o
(i) MEEFHTER - BB ANBITH B AGEGE A4
BWANOEBEREZE SRS
(i) Moderate credit risk and positive outlook.
(i) Adequate capacity to meet its financial commitments.
(iii) Adverse economic conditions are more likely to lead to
a weakened capacity of the obligor to meet its financial
commitments than obligors rated under a better rating
categories.
4 BBB-/Baa3 () PEERRER -

(i) RHEVEE TIABIT R B B AGE -

(i) MEEFHFELRR - EBANBITH B AL A6
SR IMNEBRRZE RIS °

() Moderate credit risk.

(i) Adequate capacity to meet its financial commitments.

(iii) Adverse economic conditions are more likely to lead to
a weakened capacity of the obligor to meet its financial
commitments than obligors rated under a better rating
categories.

132] HIERTT (B BRA R
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35 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

Credit quality (continued)

REBT AR BB R ECAIFE&R

(14— &A1) (FfEE())

Internal Rating System  ECAI Rating S

(14-grade) (note(a)) (S&P/Moody) Rating Principles

5 BB+/Bal U)Ekﬁﬁﬂ * BIEEATR °
) FRHEVEE I ATBIT A B TSGR -

(i) M ELFH B - BB ARNBITH AL S A4
BRINOQEREZERTRE o

(i) Substantial credit risk and positive outlook.

(i) Acceptable capacity to meet its financial commitments.

(iii) Adverse economic conditions could lead to inadequate
capacity to meet its financial commitments than obligors
rated under a better rating categories.

6 BB/Ba2 () EXEARR  BPFMSR -

(i) RIEVEE AT T B TSGR -

(i) M ELFH BT - BB ARNBITH RS AGERE S A 48
SRTMOKBERRZERTRE °

(i) Substantial credit risk and moderate outlook.

(i) Acceptable capacity to meet its financial commitments.

(iii) Adverse economic conditions could lead to inadequate
capacity to meet its financial commitments than obligors
rated under a better rating categories.

7 BB-/Ba3 () EXERRR -
) RHEIEE I ATBIT A AR -

(i) MM ELFH B - BB ARNBITH AL S A4
ERTMNKBERRZERTRE °

(i) Substantial credit risk.

(i) Acceptable capacity to meet its financial commitments.

(iii) Adverse economic conditions could lead to inadequate
capacity to meet its financial commitments than obligors
rated under a better rating categories.

8 B+/B1 () ®EAERR BE@EAS -

(i) BERIARMIVBE N LARBTTH B 5 4GE

(i) MY ELFHFERR - THHEEREAESHISSER
ABITH AR SRR -

(i) High credit risk and positive outlook.

(i) Currently has the capacity to meet its financial commitments.

(iii) Adverse economic conditions will likely impair the capacity
or willingness to meet its financial commitments than
obligors rated under a better rating categories.

—REH 133
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Notes to the Financial Statements

35 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

ECAIFF&
(KzE(a))
ECAI Rating

Credit risk management (continued)

Credit quality (continued)

AFAR R Al

(14-grade) (note(a)) (S&P/Moody) Rating Principles
9 B/B2 () =IERER  BHREFHR -
(i) ERIARHEIBE N ABITH B #GE o
(i) MEBLFHFERS - THOREREAESHISER
ANBITHEAGERIBE N ER o
(i) High credit risk and moderate outlook.
(i) Currently has the capacity to meet its financial commitments.
(iii) Adverse economic conditions will likely impair the capacity
or willingness to meet its financial commitments than
obligors rated under a better rating categories.
10 B-/B3 () =EARE -
(i) BAIAE RHIREE I LARTT BB T AGE -
(i) M EFHTERR - THHLBERFEA L GHISHER
ANBITHEAGERBE N ER o
(i) High credit risk.
(i) Currently has the capacity to meet its financial commitments.
(iii) Adverse economic conditions will likely impair the capacity
or willingness to meet its financial commitments than
obligors rated under a better rating categories.
11 FESNEE CECCC+, Caal RIBERD BBK(FLEM ()

Special Mention

C/Cto CCC+/Caal

In accordance with the Loan Classification Policy (Please refer to
note (b))

12 NERE D REBERDBBEX(FLEM ()
Substandard In accordance with the Loan Classification Policy (Please refer to
note (b))
13 A&k - RIBFER D BHER (BLEWED))
Doubtful In accordance with the Loan Classification Policy (Please refer to
note (b))
14 E18 - REBEEFDBERER(FL2EME()
Loss In accordance with the Loan Classification Policy (Please refer to
note (b))
PE Note:

(@  ECALRSNEBEFRHA AR

) EXRDEHERRREY TRRASE
REHNERDBESI R B

MEERG —RENRRET

Ao

134] HIERIT (B BRA R
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A

B
)

(a) ECAI stands for External Credit Assessment Institutions.

(b)  The Loan Classification Policy sets out a system for classifying
relevant assets in accordance with the Loan Classification
Guideline issued by the HKMA such that consistent criteria and
timing for the grading of relevant assets is put into effect.
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35 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(i)

Exposure of credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
period, without considering any collateral held or other credit
enhancements, is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowances. A summary of the

maximum exposure is as follows:

2016 2015
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BRe RIERIT ~ FRIFITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks
Hih e S BnET and other financial institutions 27,540,433 20,322,734
EIRIT ~ PRIBITREM SR Placements with and advances to banks,
HIBNTFR R BR central banks and other financial
institutions 22,889,713 30,390,640
RHMABGEE Trading assets 5,580,642 4,276,050
BEFERRBHK Loans and advances to customers and
EbBRIE other accounts 190,887,812 173,176,439
A &SRS Available-for-sale securities 58,108,539 53,056,525
MBEREEMEEERBARN Financial guarantees and other credit-
KEAE related contingent liabilities 7,671,843 5,475,838
BEFREREMEEE Loan commitments and other credit-
B R A related commitments 114,235,928 95,340,313
426,914,910 382,038,539
—E-REFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

35 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(iii)

Master netting arrangement

The Group enters into enforceable master netting arrangements
with counterparties. If an event of default occurs, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty are terminated and all
amounts outstanding are settled on a net basis. Except for
the event of default, all outstanding transactions with the
counterparty are settled on a gross basis and generally do not
result in offsetting the assets and liabilities in the statement of
financial position. The Group discloses information for financial
statement users to evaluate the effect or potential effect of
netting arrangements, including the rights of set-off associated
with the Group’s recognised financial assets and recognised
financial liabilities, on the Group's financial position.

2016
EHBRR KA
REBENABERE
ERERTE Related amounts that are
KRERM T not offset in the statement
SRIEEE of financial position
Derivative financial =y=)
instruments Ber#
presented in ¢RIA Cash
the statement Financial collateral it ]
of financial position instruments received Net amount
BET T BET T BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
—THESRIA - Derivative financial instruments
(Ftzk18) (note 18) 4,258,891 (2,051,890) (154,756) 2,052,245
SRAE Financial liabilities
-SRI A - Derivative financial instruments
(F&E2s) (note 25) 3,996,444 (2,051,890) - 1,944,554

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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35 Financial risk management (continued)

EERBREE (&) (a) Credit risk management (continued)
(i) FEFEEE ik (B) (i) Master netting arrangement (continued)
2015
ERBAREA
RAEHR NS
R E Related amounts that are
RE SR not offset in the statement
i \1)
SRTEFE of financial position
Derivative financial %H
instruments HeHE
presented in SRIA Cash
the statement Financial collateral et
of financial position instruments received Net amount
BT AETT AETT BETT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TREE Financial assets
—TESmIA - Derivative financial instruments
(Fzx18) (note 18) 4,063,223 (1,576,071) (647,330) 1839822
PRBE Financial liabilities
—TESRTIA - Derivative financial instruments
(P#E25) (note 25) 3,555,614 (1,576,071) - 1,979,543

(iv)

RERUZ B — #Han KB M Z FHEF
RE BB N RERIAT R AR &
EERR - —RMEF - AEE KA
i B B 1E RIRTH AR A& & 215 B R
AMEE - NREEBEBIRTIRERE
ERBEHRE - WRRSEEEE -

ZRER B P 1E B R S B R T 45 A A 4
mIBEERE ReER RI2
EEER AN S EMRRKE - &
WA  BREREREERA
MERES - E— LB T - AEE
R T 5 PR B R EEE MR
B8R ftazm R EAEERNE
HIERK -

(iv)

Mitigation of credit risk — Collateral and other credit enhancements
The Group dedicates to mitigating credit risk, and this takes
many forms. In general, risk to the Group’s ultimate credit
exposure is mitigated by recognised collateral and credit risk
enhancement. The Group continuously seeks to enhance its
level of credit risk mitigation, and it was particularly successful at
safeguarding its credit quality.

The principal collateral received to secure loans and advances
includes mortgages, cash collateral, equities listed on a main
index/recognised exchanges, accounts receivable assignments,
standby letters of credit and listed debt securities acceptable
to the Group. In some cases, depending on the customer’s
position and the types of credit products, some loans may be
granted and backed by corporate or personal guarantees only.

—E-XFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

35 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(iv)

Mitigation of credit risk — Collateral and other credit enhancements
(continued)

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes
of collateral or credit risk enhancements accompanied by the
determination of valuation parameters. Such parameters are
expected to be conservative and reviewed regularly. Security
structures and covenants (financial and non-financial) are
subject to regular review to ensure they comply with the
stipulated conditions. The collateral is important to mitigate
credit risk, but it is the Group’s policy to assess the repayment
ability of individual customers or counterparties rather than just
solely relying on securities.

The Group's collateralised credit risk at 31 December 2016 and
2015, excluding impaired exposure, is broken down as follows:

2016 2015
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
ERRBREE RIS Lower of gross loans and advances and fair
ERHERMEE 2 BERM K value of collateral and other credit
HiERRANAAEE enhancements held against financial
MEZBRIRER assets that are:
— R BB RE — neither past due nor impaired 90,810,100 92,375,366
— @ EEE B RE — past due but not impaired 2,570,029 2,389,787
93,380,129 94,765,153

B EELERETE
ERHEAER

— PARLR 2 H) TE (B il E AR AL

AR B BR A DA B A AN O TE (B R R AR
REREFASERENAD —AE
e AEEHZEBEMEEBEL
Z BE P M b H) ELR I8 52 B SR
OREEXRARBER  BRKWER
TR L ®R (BIEEE) - AREE
HETRBE R - EREHEER
ZE#ME THEFENEEMAR
EELEERB -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(v)

Portfolio management and risk concentration

Portfolio management

- Risk-based Pricing Model

As part of the Group's portfolio management practices, the
Risk-based Pricing Model has been adopted with the aim of
improving the overall return for the Group (value creation), after
taking into account the risks of the customers and facilities,
and thus the capital required to support the loan exposure and
other costs. Stress tests on the Group's credit risk are conducted
regularly. The result is approved by the Credit Committee and is
endorsed by the Board through the CRMC.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

35 Financial risk management (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

(v)  Portfolio management and risk concentration (continued)

Risk concentration

A Credit Risk Concentration Policy is in place and the

Group constantly reviews its loan exposure to monitor the

concentration of credit risk relating to customers, countries,

market segments and products.

(vi)  Credit quality of loans and advances

The Group manages and monitors its risks, and has a Loan

Classification Policy and Impairment Assessment Policy in

place to govern this aspect. The Group has a professional team

dedicated to handling recovery works of non-performing

loans, which include loan restructuring, taking legal action,

repossession and disposal of collateral, etc.

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, all loans and advances to banks
were not impaired. The credit quality of loans and advances to

customers is analysed as follows:

2016 2015
BETT BETIT
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
EREERRBFRETE Gross loans and advances to customers
— R A BHSRE — neither past due nor impaired 178,645,249 164,767,423
—BAMERERE — past due but not impaired 3,352,326 3,595,630
—B2RE — impaired 1,766,666 1,506,685
183,764,241 169,869,738
Hr Of which:
2016 2015
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REAIRENEFER K Gross loans and advances to customers
B that are neither past due nor impaired
—EEeEFFIZ=10 ~ Pass: Grades 1 to 10 177,106,459 163,111,083
— B BiET RN - Special Mention: Grade 11 1,538,790 1,656,340
178,645,249 164,767,423

—E—XEH 139
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Notes to the Financial Statements

35 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)
(vi)

Credit risk management (continued)

Credit quality of loans and advances (continued)

EEEERBERENEFERRBR The ageing analysis of loans and advances to customers that are
HIERER DT T - past due but not impaired is as follows:
2016 2015
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
EEBESERENTEFERR Gross loans and advances to customers
BB that are past due but not impaired
— B EA3E A S AT - Overdue 3 months or less 3,239,738 3,366,588
— @ EiefE A AT - Overdue 6 months or less
A A LA L but over 3 months 112,588 229,042
3,352,326 3,595,630

R20165F12 8318 » BB SR EE
R EFER MK ABEEHEETH
B3 & B AE #3,218,0007T (2015
9 B 112,390,0007T) » AL EHE R
TEERLLAEBHELIERENE
FPEZRERBH  FERREEZHT
M ERWZEOF 27 -

BRITERWEE - ITREER R
HABER DRI 25190 BARE
FIXA T ERMIEED) °

ERRBALUN e HEENEEEE
MEXZEERBRNEET - EHAX
SEEECXEERRN AR -
WRFESEFEITANERFL - &
TE &R R EEE

TEREVNEBBLFELEBIRERS
A RIS KR SHAE 2 TR
,,,,,, o fE20165F12A31A L FE -
REBERBEBRELFNET BF
BT ARETERTAETEERF
o MBEHARGRAFA - BIRAZ
TTAREITRRAFR -

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(vii)

Loans and advances that would have been past due or
impaired, but the terms had been re-negotiated and became
rescheduled loans amounted to HKS$3,218,000 at 31 December
2016 (2015: HK$12,390,000). The rescheduled loans are not
included in the above gross loans and advances to customers
that are past due but not impaired, the details are provided in
note (F) of the unaudited supplementary information.

Further detailed analyses of the impaired loan by industry sector
or by geographical location are provided in note 19(c) and note
(D) of the unaudited supplementary information, respectively.

Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances
The credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the same
way as the Group manages its corporate lending risk. Risk
grading is applied to the debt issuers, with individual credit
limits set.

The following table presents the credit quality of investments
in debt securities analysed by the designated external credit
assessment agency, Moody's Investors Service ratings (or its
equivalent), at the end of the reporting period. During the
year ended 31 December 2016, the Group assessed the credit
ratings for these debt securities according to their issue, the
issuer or sovereign ratings. Ratings designated for the issuers or
sovereigns are reported if there are no issue ratings.
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35 Financial risk management (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

(vii)  Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances

(4&) (continued)
2016
AHHERES
REBREE Available-for-sale 4 EE
Trading assets securities Total
BET T BETF T BET T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Aaa Aaa 165,496 3,445,061 3,610,557
Aa3EAaT Aa3 to Aal 14,777 21,346,627 21,361,404
AZZEAT A3 to Al 137,594 20,200,503 20,338,097
KHA3 Lower than A3 286,193 9,700,065 9,986,258
604,060 54,692,256 55,296,316
REFAR Unrated 717,691 3,416,283 4,133,974
4az8 Total 1,321,751 58,108,539 59,430,290
2015
A EES

TEHRGEE Available-for-sale 488
Trading assets securities Total
BT IT BT BT T
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
Aaa Aaa 46,519 5,522,848 5,569,367
Aa3ZEAal Aa3 to Aal 150 13,103,860 13,104,010
A3ZEAT A3 1o Al 11,705 24,781,334 24,793,039
1KHA3 Lower than A3 131,405 7,441,665 7,573,070
189,779 50,849,707 51,039,486
REFAR Unrated 23,048 2,206,818 2,229,866
4Ry Total 212,827 53,056,525 53,269,352
ZE—RNEFER
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35

(b)

Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk management

Market risk arises from all financial instruments sensitive to market
fluctuation, including securities, foreign exchange contracts, equity
and derivative instruments, as well as available-for-sale ("AFS”)
securities or structural positions. The Group mainly separates
exposures to market risk into trading and AFS portfolios. Trading
portfolios include positions arising from proprietary position-taking
and other mark to-market positions designated to the trading book.
AFS portfolios include positions that primarily arise from the Group’s
investment portfolio and liquidity portfolio in securities, which are
neither intended to be held to maturity nor purchased for trading.
The change in valuation for the trading portfolios from market risks
affects the income statement, while that for the AFS portfolios affects
the investment revaluation reserve. The Group needs to ensure
impacts on both the income statement and the reserves from market
risks have proper prudent controls. The objectives of market risk
management are to:

- identify, monitor and control market risk exposures through the
measurement of the risks, establish position limits, sensitivity
limits and value at risk ("VaR") limits based on the Group's Tier 1
capital base, and communicate risks to senior management

- support business growth with reference to a risk-controlled
framework

- ensure a proper balance between risk and return.

Market risk framework

The Group has a clear market risk appetite as set out through a set of
indicators under risk appetite statement (“RAS"), the establishment of
a limit structure, and policies for the trading and AFS portfolios. Limits
are ordered according to the hierarchy of policy limits, business limits
and transaction limits. This market risk appetite has been approved
by the Market Risk Committee (“MRC") and is endorsed by the Board
through the Credit & Risk Management Committee ("CRMC"). The
hierarchy of the limit structure is set up to control the position,
size, profit and loss, and sensitivities from the portfolio level to the
individual trader level. All business units with market risks are required
to strictly comply with the policies and the limits. The Treasury &
Markets Group (“TMG") unit is the primary business unit involved in
market risk exposures.
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cHERER (&) 35 Financial risk management (continued)
mSRAKER (&) (b) Market risk management (continued)
5 R b rINESE (4&) Market risk framework (continued)
M5 Rk Ko M iR B A 2 — EE 7 /Y= The Market Risk and Liquidity Modelling (“MR&LM”") unit is an

BRI EAIEHIE R - TR rn%ﬂﬁﬁ&fﬁ%b independent risk measurement and control unit overseen by the
@EE EHEITEE - WRRRE IR AR IEE Head of MR&LM, who reports to the Chief Risk Officer (“CRO"). MR&LM
¥ o iRk Ko B RS A T E2R uses a set of quantitative techniques to identify, measure and control
ok R - BEFIESITSR - I 5E B the market risks, which are regularly reported to the MRC and the
misEREZEEEREMNBRBEERERER Board through the CRMC. These techniques include sensitivity
i,\ DA E LWL o & ERITE AR analyses, VaR and stress tests, which are measured relative to the

AT RBREEME A - BAEEEY Group's capital base.
RASREREARRER -
TERB A S BT 2 1) B E TS R R R The following table provides an overview of the types of quantitative
& measures in various market risk reports:

RERBEE AHHERSAE
Trading Portfolios AFS Portfolios
E R ER Risk type [ BRI, Risk measures =R Risk measures
HINGE Foreign exchange BB N B E VaR and sensitivity i Not applicable
= Interest rate [2\ P (B K BURRE VaR and sensitivity B {E M HURE VaR and sensitivity
HE Commodity [R\ B2 1E VaR @A Not applicable
% Equity [2\f (B VaR BURE Sensitivity
ERAMZE Credit spread [R\B 1B e X E VaRand sensitivity BB RBURE VaR and sensitivity
HEER Portfolio type ERE - 8URE & VaR sensitivityand  [ERE - 8URE & VaR, sensitivity and
EEIDRIE stress test JE& 185 stress test

AEEBBEEERAREEZE SR
B [ 37 EE an v 14 R bz B R ) (TUHE R )
EHESFEMEZZERF - RIETHLEK
R FHERMTS RHERF G SBEEED
R/ ERTR] - BREMSEIERD AN A
REL - 2B REHRE R AR EIRAL - £

EBEINEE J\ZEE’J.ﬁTfé EEMEMME
BEERTAGENRREEMAE MTHA

£ BITBAE BEITRERIERE®R
EIREESEY -

The Group's approval process for new products is controlled by the
“New Product Evaluation and Approval Policy” (“the Policy”) approved
by the CRMC. According to the Policy, new products are subject to
risk clearance by various functional units, including the Financial
Management Group, the Operations and Technology Group, the
Risk Management Group, the Legal Department and the Compliance
Department. After obtaining functional clearance, the sponsoring
Business Head shall submit the Product Proposal for the approval of
the CRO and the CEO/Deputy CEO ("DCEQ")/Alternate Chief Executive
Officer ("ACEQ") as appropriate.

—~ER
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35 Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Market risk management (continued)

Methodology and characteristics of the market risk model

The following explains the types of quantitative risk measures the
Group adopts.

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity measures are used to monitor the market risk positions of
each type of risk exposure. For example, the present value of a basis
point movement in interest rates and the present value of a basis
point movement in credit spreads for credit spread risk are used for
monitoring purposes.

Value at risk

VaR is a technique that estimates the potential losses that could occur
on risk positions as a result of movements in market rates and prices
over a specified time horizon and to a given level of confidence.
The model is designed to capture the different risk types including
interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, credit spread risk, equity risk,
commodity risk and volatility risk.

The VaR models used by the Group are predominantly based on
historical simulations, and Monte Carlo simulations are also used
as a reference. These models derive plausible future scenarios from
historical market rates and prices, taking into account the correlation
of different markets and rates such as interest rates and foreign
exchange rates. The models also incorporate the effect of embedded
options of the underlying exposures.
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35

Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)
Methodology and characteristics of the market risk model (continued)

Value at risk (continued)
The historical simulation model used by the Group includes the

following elements:

WSEREE -2016F X3 ABESRABE
Trend in Market Risk — Trading Portfolio VaR in 2016
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Potential market movements are calculated with reference to
data from the previous two years for the trading portfolios and
the AFS portfolios, including the historical market rates, prices

and associated volatilities.

For the trading portfolio, VaR is calculated with a 99%
confidence level and for a one-day holding period.

TISEAKREE - 201553 ARASRBE
Trend in Market Risk — Trading Portfolio VaR in 2015
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For the AFS portfolio, VaR is calculated with a 99% confidence
level and for a 250-day holding period.

WS ERES - 20155 A I EF 5250 K AR 1E
Trend in Market Risk — AFS Portfolio 250 Days VaR in 2015
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Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk management (continued)
Methodology and characteristics of the market risk model (continued)
Value at risk (continued)

The Group routinely validates the accuracy of its VaR model
for its trading portfolios through back-testing by comparing
the actual and hypothetical daily profit and loss results,
adjusted for items including fees and commissions, against
the corresponding VaR numbers. Statistically, the Group only
expects to see losses in excess of VaR 1% of the time over a one-
year period. The actual number of excesses over this period can
therefore be used to gauge how well the model is performing.
For the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016, there
were one exceptions in the back-testing results (1 January 2015
to 31 December 2015: two exception), which corresponds to
the green zone specified by the HKMA and the international
Basel principles.

2016 F A EEERAARBENBR W= R EE
The Group's actual profit and loss back testing model in 2016
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The Group’s actual profit and loss back testing model in 2015
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35 Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

HZE2016F12A31 B L FEZRTENERAZER S HE

Histogram of daily mark-to-market revenue for year ended 31 December 2016
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Market risk management (continued)

Methodology and characteristics of the market risk model (continued)
Value at risk (continued)

While VaR calculated using this approach can serve as a good guide
for market risk under normal market conditions, it has its limitations.
For example, the use of historical data as a proxy may not encompass
all potential events and events beyond the 99% confidence interval
are not considered. In order to mitigate such limitations, the MR&LM
provides the MRC with the stress test results reflecting potential
extreme events on the market risk exposures for the trading and AFS
portfolios.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the average daily mark-
to-market revenue from the Group’s trading portfolio and fund
investments was a gain of HK$784,000 (2015: gain of HK$1,924,000).
The standard deviation of the daily revenue was HK$3,626,000 (2015:
HK$3,372,000). The graphs below show the histograms of the Group's
daily mark-to-market revenue for the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015, respectively.

HE2015F 12831 B ILFERBESERAZEB S HE
Histogram of daily mark-to-market revenue for year ended 31 December 2015
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35 SRIRAKRER (& 35 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) WHEERERE (&) (b) Market risk management (continued)
5 R B 7 i 7 X b B (48) Methodology and characteristics of the market risk model (continued)
R E (& Value at risk (continued)
TRETTRZEMMAIMBHERFEHEHN The tables below show the VaR statistics for the trading book and AFS
[EPRELSFET portfolio:

BERSBNTEER - —XERE%
Market Risk for the Trading Portfolio - 1-day VaR 99%

2016 2015
1] RIE ¥ EZ12831H B i5qliy ¥ HZ1A3H
Maximum Minimum Mean At 31 December Maximum Minimum Mean At 31 December
BETT B%Tr B¥ETn BEIr EETT AT BETx BETT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
SNE Foreign exchange risk 10,209 1,736 5,750 5218 15,307 933 6,246 6,006
FE R Interest rate risk 18,777 1,839 9,203 7,535 8,379 1635 4,802 5,058
RlEGEES Total VaR 17,834 5,456 10,241 8,548 16,251 2618 8,381 7,685

AHHERSASNHEER
Market Risk for the AFS Portfolio

2016 2015
&S R ¥ #EE128318 &&= &I T EHE12A31R
Maximum  Minimum Mean  At31December ~ Maximum  Minimum Mean At 31 December
BETT B¥ETr A% A¥TR  AMTT A% Tr BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FIEER Interest rate risk 716,878 454,445 567,496 516,111 666,262 389,857 478,257 533,823
EENERR Credit spread risk 695030 357,681 568,628 652,742 438,153 244,392 355,759 352,797
p
BOKEREELE  Total 250-day VaR 651,859 426,344 575,259 548,314 563,371 340,291 423619 434,883
JEE 7RI Stress testing
BRI R E MR AR R R EEE A 555 Stress testing is implemented to mitigate the weaknesses in the VaR
FE LREERBIREBENSEN - XK model in order to capture remote but plausible events. The Group uses
EH T YERETTSREREE AR the following scenarios for market risk stress testing:
BREMEDITIER - AT B REEHE R - sensitivity scenarios, which consider the impact of any single
EERRE N —EREREE RS — risk factor or a set of factors that are unlikely to be captured by
ARZENTE the VaR model.
— FERER - EReE AR ER I EE —  historical scenarios, which incorporate the historical observation
TR REER RENFELBEM of market moves during previous stress periods which would
BES  MEE/EENEEHENT not be captured by the VaR model, such as the impact on

2 valuation under the crisis scenario.

148] hERIT (BEIFR)BRAF
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Notes to the Financial Statements

35 Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Market risk management (continued)

Methodology and characteristics of the market risk model (continued)
Stress testing (continued)

Stress testing results are reported to the MRC, which provides an
assessment of the financial impact that such events would have on
the Group’s income statement and reserve. The daily losses for the
trading portfolio and the yearly negative reserve impact for the AFS
portfolios experienced in 2016 were below the stress loss alerts and
limits.

Credit spread risk

In addition to interest rate risk and extreme market volatility, a
significant widening of credit spread such as in financial crisis
situation would have a heavy negative impact on the valuation of
the AFS portfolios. Also, the extreme market conditions would make
the availability of market prices for some of the securities infrequent,
and to a certain extent, less reliable, which would further increase
the challenge and complexity for portfolio valuation of some of the
securities in the AFS portfolio.

In the risk control of the AFS portfolios, the Group has a risk
management framework that enables the estimation of the fair
value of option adjusted spreads in order to calculate the fair value
of illiquid securities. In addition, the framework consists of a 250-
day credit spread VaR, credit spread sensitivity risk statistics, stress
testing, and a limit structure and early alert indicators. The objective
for choosing the 250-day credit spread VaR statistics is to measure the
potential adverse impact on the Group's reserve on an annual basis.

Currency risk

The Group's foreign exchange risk stems from taking foreign
exchange positions from commercial dealings, investments in foreign
currency securities, and operations of the Group and its overseas
branches and subsidiaries. The Group's foreign exchange positions are
subject to exposure limits approved by the MRC. Methods adopted
to measure foreign currency risk exposure against corresponding
limits include individual currency positions, overall foreign exchange
positions and sensitivities such as Greeks (for foreign exchange
options). For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group's average
daily trading profit and loss from foreign exchange positions was a
profit of HK$429,000 (2015: profit of HKS$1,499,000) with a standard
deviation of HK$4,218,000 (2015: HK$4,731,000).
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35 SREARER (&)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

35 Financial risk management (continued)

mERAKER (&) (b) Market risk management (continued)
SIMNERSE (B) Currency risk (continued)
REFEARNEARINERRIAT Significant foreign currency exposures at the end of the reporting
period were as follows:
2016 2015
BER Equivalent in %% AR%  HftE¥ et e ARE  EfE¥ ek
BETR HK$'000 usb RMB Others Total UsD RMB Others Total
REBE Spot assets 114,088,679 22,567,587 21,109,286 157,765,552 111,198,523 38,183,176 21,605,506 170,987,205
REak Spot liabilties (100,045,764) (23,601,752) (18,447,495)  (142,095011) (76375425  (48600920) (14800852  (139777,197)
FEHE A Forward purchases 136,317,842 82,003,097 22,741,690 241,062,629 194529305 149392813 18,048,043 362,570,761
RHEH Forward sales (147,252,316)  (81,995,171) (25,026,979)  (254,274,466) (230,469964) (138,031,495  (25,149,766) (393,651,225)
i Jge ] Net options position (1,864,206) 2,126,441 (281,536 (19301) 4153786 (3702140)  (470,109) (18463)
5/(R)834 Net long/(short) position 1,244,235 1,100,202 94,966 2,439,403 3,036,225 (2,758,566) (166,578) 111,081
HERTE Net structural position - 668,583 48,530 717,113 - 708,052 48526 756,578

HIgRFRERRE

B Rz E A E A

EEAE

SN e BRRKSE D AT

0

2016128318 » B 5 I A
SN E BB E 0% REEE M ATE
2EINE  AEEAKEZRB®E
) 3 12 AN 7 #99,797,0007T (20154 -
B D B 8 244,249,0007T) © EEHRIE
BT ENESREE B ST ME
TIEBEENeRBEZEREE -

AR B LR TIAINK E A
ERFHE10%Y REFB HEMBEA
B REEAEE 2 R 5 M AR

78 #899,797,0007T (20154F = 38 8
#244,249,0007T ) °
AREFES 7 E¥ERFERES

ENENFBITA (TREARE
600,000,0007T, % & [ #50,000,0007T &9
%ﬁ%'l‘i&l\ﬁﬁﬁ) o R ETTEEEH
C REERBFETLEABMKIERE
Fﬁi%\ﬁzﬂﬁf%ﬂ P AEBEEEKR

2/
0)=7Z= X

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The net option position is calculated using the Model User Approach,
which has been approved by the HKMA.

Sensitivity analysis on foreign exchange exposures

)

(i)

At 31 December 2016, if the HKD had weakened by 10%
against other currencies (other than the USD) with all other
variables held constant, the Group's profit after tax for the year
would have been higher by HK$99,797,000 (2015: lower by
HK$244,249,000), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains
on the translation of non-HKD denominated financial assets
compensated by foreign exchange losses on the translation of
non-HKD denominated financial liabilities.

Conversely, if the HKD had strengthened by 10% against other
currencies (other than the USD) with all other variables held
constant, the Group'’s profit after tax for the year would have
been lower by HK$99,797,000 (2015: higher by HK$244,249,000).

The Group is exposed to currency risks arising from financial
instruments that are denominated in USD, excluding structural
foreign exchange positions of RMB600,000,000 and MOP
50,000,000. As the USD is pegged to the HKD, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between the
HKD and the USD to be insignificant.
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35 Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Market risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group has interest rate risk exposures from both its banking and
trading books. The Group’s ALCO oversees banking book interest
rate risk arising from the interest rate profile of the Group's assets
and liabilities. The interest rate risk in the banking book is caused by
repricing risks, basis risks among different interest rate benchmarks,
yield curve movements and risks from embedded options, if any. The
Group’s management of the interest rate risk in the banking book
is governed by the Interest Rate Risk Management Policy for the
Banking Book. Moreover, the Central Treasury unit of TMG manages
the interest rate risk in the banking book according to the policy.

To mitigate interest rate risk, the Group has used interest rate
derivatives, especially interest rate swaps, to hedge both assets and
liabilities such as AFS and non-trading liabilities ("NTL"). The Group has
also adopted hedge accounting principles, under which the fair value
changes of the AFS/NTL and the corresponding fair value changes of
the hedging derivative instruments offset each other.

The Group's MRC oversees interest rate risk arising from the interest
profile of the Group’s trading portfolio. The Group’s management
of the interest rate risk in the trading book is guided by the Market
Risk Policy. The Group mainly uses the present value of a basis point
movement and VaR to measure its interest rate risk exposure in the
trading book. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s
average daily trading profit and loss from interest rate positions was a
profit of HK$355,000 (2015: HKS$425,000), with a standard deviation of
HK$2,427,000 (2015: HKS$4,368,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

35 Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Market risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate exposures

The Group measures the interest rate risk of the banking book by
conducting a sensitivity analysis of the interest rate exposure on a
quarterly basis. In the sensitivity analysis, the potential impacts of
movements in interest rates on the Group's earnings are assessed
assuming that the interest rates of three major currencies (HKD,
RMB and USD) will rise by 200 basis points on the repricing dates
(the midpoint of the corresponding time bands) of each asset and
liability. Nevertheless, the Group does not expect the interest rates of
these three major currencies to decrease by 200 basis points on the
repricing dates because of the current low level of interest rates. The

2. impacts on both the on- and off-statement of the financial position
items are included in the assessment.
2016 2015
BT AR# EYH BT AR e
HERBET T Equivalent in HK$'000 HKD RMB usD HKD RMB usD
F = F3E200EE 2 Impact on earnings over the next
HARK12E A 12 months if interest rates rise
BRI & by 200 basis points 311,482  (92,545) (27,577) 177,654 24,553 6,759
@A = _FF2001EESZE  Impact on economic value if interest
HREEBENZE rates rise by 200 basis points 13,427 35,942 571,177 108,990 18,589 400,908

KEEER B BN RERERHE LU
EomERRERERNBES BRI
RIBIA MREETT -

() WEREHERAERHRFITES

(i) MAEHHEHBES

(ii) @Xﬂxxﬁh$1
%b_\ /?/LAEIT)\

- AR#HE

vy BRALAEEEHNHENEANRZEBE

ER e
FR - MEBANEEFHE H&)\&Z%%K B
ENERESHRZFREDTHER
SN

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

This sensitivity analysis, which is based on an interest rate risk profile
of assets and liabilities, is used for risk management purposes only.
The analysis is based on the following assumptions:

(i) Thereis a parallel shift in the yield curve and in interest rates.

(i) There are no other changes to the portfolio.

(i)~ No loan prepayment is assumed as the majority of loans are on
a floating rate base.

(iv) Deposits without fixed maturity dates are assumed to be
repriced the next day.

Actual changes in the Group's net interest income and the economic
value resulting from the increase in interest rates may differ from the
results of this sensitivity analysis.
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Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following tables indicate the mismatches of the expected next

repricing dates (or maturity dates, whichever are earlier) for the

interest bearing assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting

period.
2016
3fEAR
(BfEAaH) 3EANL 1550E
3 months EE:S B5E FitE
or less Over Over SERE Non-
#%  (including 3 months 1year Over interest
Total overdue) to1year  to5years 5 years bearing
BETT BETR  B¥%Tr  B%Tr BTz B%Tn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
BEREHIT PRIIT  Cash and balances with banks, central
REMSRBENET banks and other financial institutions 27,540,433 27,196,660 - - - 343,773
TESRAT - RERITREM  Placements with and advances to banks,
SREBENTERRDH central banks and other financial
institutions 22,889,713 20,486,490 2,403,223 - - -
RHRBREE Trading assets 5,581,720 452,006 176,791 692,954 - 4,259,969
EPEFILETT Loans and advances to customers and
HifRIE other accounts 191,286,538 163,883,063 16,441,680 1,263,069 6,931 9,691,795
A HEES Available-for-sale securities 58,204,271 23,202,930 16,504,459 15,810,998 2,586,152 99,732
FitEEE Non-interest bearing assets 914,280 - - - - 914,280
EEAE Total assets 306,416,955 235,221,149 35,526,153 17,767,021 2,593,083 15,309,549
=1 Liabilities
BT REMESRIEED Deposits and balances of banks and
FHRETF other financial institutions 5,256,660 3,622,130 227,753 - - 1,406,777
RPHER Deposits from customers 235,574,700 204,607,360 20,761,208 151,679 - 10,054,453
RHREaRE Trading liabilities 3,996,444 - - - - 3,996,444
BRITRNE Certificates of deposit issued 10,593,445 6,400,275 4,193,170 - - -
BBREXR Loan capital 8,705,837 - 2,308,602 6,397,235 - -
Hth&E Other liabilities 10,138,928 416,816 - - - 9722112
FtEEE Non-interest bearing liabilities 196,925 - - - - 196,925
afELE Total liabilities 274,462,939 215,046,581 27,490,733 6,548,914 - 25376711
FEGREZE Interest rate sensitivity gap 20,174,568 8,035,420 11,218,107 2,593,083
—E-REFR
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35 SRIRAKRER (& 35 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) TWEEKRER (&) (b) Market risk management (continued)
F&= = (&) Interest rate risk (continued)
2015
AR
(BEAH) 3EANUE 1EH L+
3 months 21F 256 JEEE
or less Over Over SEME Non-
@E (including 3 months 1 year Over interest
Total overdue) to 1 year to 5 years 5 years bearing

ABTT A%t  BRTt  RE¥TR  A%TT  B%T
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

EE Assets
BERAET RRBIT  Cash and balances with banks, central

REMSRBENET banks and other financial institutions 20,322,734 20,094,179 - - - 228,555
ERIT PRFBITREM  Placements with and advances to banks,

SRBENTRRBR central banks and other financial

institutions 30390640 26660315 3,730,325 - - -

REGRBEE Trading assets 4277539 15 104,971 107,741 - 4064712
RFERREHR Loans and advances to customers and

HAARE other accounts 173479925 154,125,548 13,465,092 638419 11375 5239491
A HERES Available-for-sale securities 53151487 27876147 7067528 15207671 2901178 98,963
FHEEE Non-interest bearing assets 912,643 - - - - 912,643
BEAR Total assets 282534968 228756304 24367916 15953831 2912553 10,544,364
af Liabilities
RITREM S BEER Deposits and balances of banks and

BRRER other financial institutions 2658301 1421,803 - - - 1236498
BPER Deposits from customers 220683709 183,144,689 28,221,222 436,658 - 8881,140
RHREERE Trading liabilities 3,555,614 - - - - 3555614
BETFE Certificates of deposit issued 10388272 2874891 7,329,004 184,377 - -
BEBER Loan capital 8,766,217 - - 8766217 - -
HaE Other liabilities 12365023 2,203,892 - - - 10,161,131
FHERRE Non-interest bearing liabilities 63,627 - - - - 63,627
afEeE Total liabilities 258480763 189,645275 35550226 9,387,252 - 23898010
FZGREZE Interest rate sensitivity gap 39,111,029 (11,182310) 6566579 2,912,553

154] SRERIT (B BRAF
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(c)

Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to fund
an increase in assets or meet obligations as they fall due without
incurring unacceptable losses. Such funding liquidity risk arises from
the maturity mismatch of the assets and liabilities that the Group
manages. Market liquidity risk is a risk that occurs when additional
costs are involved in disposing of a position in the market under
abnormal or stressed market conditions. Under these conditions, the
bid-ask spreads for the position are much wider than usual or there
could even be an extreme lack of buyers. As a result, the Bank will
incur extra costs to dispose of the position.

The liquidity risk management framework is as follows:

- The management of the Group's liquidity risk is governed by
the Liquidity Management Policy, approved by the ALCO and
endorsed by the CRMC.

- The CRMC is delegated by the Board of Directors to oversee the
Group’s liquidity risk management. Its main responsibilities are
to review and approve policies, set strategies, and define risk
appetite and tolerance limits.

- The ALCO is established by the Chief Executive Officer and
approved by the CRMC as the governing body responsible for
formulating and implementing policies, strategies, guidelines
and limit structures. It also identifies, measures and monitors
the Group’s liquidity risk profile to ensure current and future
funding requirements are met. In addition, the ALCO monitors
a set of risk indicators for liquidity risk. Daily liquidity stress
testing, which includes general market, institution-specific
and combined (general market and institution- specific) stress
scenarios, is conducted by the Risk Management Group, and
the stress results are regularly reviewed by the ALCO to assess
the current risk tolerance level and the level of the liquidity
cushion. A Contingency Funding Plan is established which sets
out the strategies for addressing liquidity stress situations. The
plan contains a set of policies, procedures and action plans, with
clearly established lines of responsibility, as well as invocation
and escalation procedures. This plan is reviewed and approved
by the ALCO on a regular basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

35 Financial risk management (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

- Daily liquidity management is managed by the Central Treasury
Unit to monitor funding requirements. This unit is supported
by other functional departments including the Financial
Management Group and Risk Management Group, which
monitor the liquidity risk and provide regular reports to the
management, committees and local regulatory bodies. Limits
for net cash flow per different time bucket under normal and
stress scenarios have been set to ensure that adequate funding
and liquid assets are available to meet liquidity needs. Moreover,
limits, triggers or alerts are set for other liquidity risk indicators
such as the liquidity maintenance ratio and loan-to-deposit
ratio. Both quantitative and qualitative measures are employed
to identify and measure market liquidity risk. Limits and alert
levels related to market and funding liquidity risk are monitored
and reported by the Financial Management Group or Risk
Management Group to the ALCO to review and approve on a
regular basis. The Audit Department performs periodic reviews
to ensure liquidity risk management functions are carried out
effectively.

Liquidity management is conducted at the Group and the Bank
levels, and at individual overseas branches and subsidiaries. Financial
subsidiaries and overseas branches are responsible for implementing
their own liquidity management policies under the framework
established by the ALCO and local regulatory requirements, taking
into account their different liquidity risk characteristics. The liquidity
situation of overseas branches and subsidiaries falls under the
overall supervision of the ALCO. Policy and respective counterparty
limits are set for overseas branches and subsidiaries in respect of
the funding support extended from the head office. The Group
expects all business units to contribute to the success of managing
liquidity under normal and contingency situations by maintaining a
rapport with depositors, customers, interbank counterparties, related
companies and the HKMA.
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(c)

Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

The objective of liquidity management is to meet obligations payable
under normal and emergency circumstances, to fund asset growth
and to comply with the statutory liquidity maintenance ratio. To
achieve this, the following liquidity management processes are in
place:

- Projecting cash flows in normal and various stress scenarios,
using the net mismatch gap between assets and liabilities to
estimate the prospective net funding requirement

- Factoring potential drawdown on irrevocable committed
facilities into our normal and stress scenarios to cater for
contingent liquidity risk

- Monitoring the liquidity maintenance ratio, loans-to-deposit
ratios and maturity mismatch ratio against internal and/or
regulatory requirements

- Ensuring a sound and diversified range of funding sources,
through monitoring the structure, the stability and the core
level of the deposit portfolio

- Projecting the liquidity maintenance ratio regularly for the short
to medium term to permit early detection of liquidity issues and
to ensure the ratio is within statutory requirements and internal
triggers

- Projecting a high-level funding requirement and funding
structure during the annual budget process to ensure sufficient
funding and an appropriate funding mix

- Conducting liquidity risk assessment before launching a new
product

- Maintaining high quality liquid assets comprising cash and
investment grade securities as a cushion against unexpected
funding needs. The amount of high quality liquid assets that the
Group maintains is determined with reference to the statutory
requirement and the results of the liquidity stress tests

—~ER
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(c)

Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)
- Maintaining access to the interbank money market

- Maintaining a funding programme to tap debt funding on a
regular basis

- Monitoring the Group's collateral requirement. Periodically
assess and review the additional collateral required under credit
downgrade events. Based on the positions at 31 December
2016, in the event of a 2-notch downgrade, the impact on the
Group's additional collateral requirement is minimal

- Maintaining a contingency funding plan, which integrates
with the results of the scenarios and assumptions used in the
stress test, including setting early warning indicators (including
internal and market indicators), and describing actions to be
taken in the event of a stress crisis, so as to minimise adverse
long-term implications for business.

The Group funds its operations through a diversified funding source,
primarily from the core retail and corporate customer deposits. At
the same time, it also participates in wholesale funding through the
issuance of certificates of deposit (“CDs") so as to secure a stable
source of term funding. Deposit tenor mix and debt maturities
are regularly monitored to ensure there is an appropriate funding
maturity mix.

The Group started monitoring the liquidity maintenance ratio as
stipulated by the Banking (Liquidity) Rules from 1 January 2015, which
superseded the liquidity ratio required by the old framework. An
appropriate level of liquidity maintenance ratio has been maintained
to ensure that the Group could handle sudden drains in market
liquidity due to adverse or unexpected economic events. In 2016,
the Group's average liquidity maintenance ratio was 60.8% (for the
year ended 31 December 2015: 61.8%). The Group always maintains
sufficient cash and liquid positions as well as a pool of high quality
liquid assets as a liquidity cushion that can be liquidated in stress
scenarios.
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35 Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

RIEE: THIRIEH BN B E R BESHT (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity
NTEBHESMEAEEREZESGHE The following maturity profile is based on the remaining period
RS THRAZE - at the end of the reporting period date to the contractual
maturity date.
BN 5 A% EEHRS A seft 2 BAT As the trading portfolios may be sold before maturity, or
HE - MEPFERAIFEEER B IR deposits from customers may mature without being withdrawn,
WA TR - Bt - 43 EA the contractual maturity dates do not represent the expected
TIMERBHTESRKESRENEE - dates of future cash flows.
2016
WEARE  3EANE  1ENE
B3R B Bk
3months 1year 5 years
HEEE  1EAR orless orless orless  SELLE B
@%  Repayable Within butover ~ butover  butover Over B
Total ~ ondemand Tmonth Tmonth  3months 1year Syears  Undated
BETT  BMTn  ERTn BETn BETn BBTn BETR BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
BERERT PRGN Cash and balances with banks, centra
REMSHEENLER banks and other financial institutions 27540433 26,458,664 - - - - - 1,081,769
T RRRORER Placements with and acvances to
SRERNERRER banks,central banks and other
financial institutions 22,889,713 - 6663169 13803935 2,422,609 - - -
RARREE Trading assets 558170 4258891 170724 280825 176901 693301 - 1078
RPEHREAR Loans and advances to customers
HpER and other accounts 191,286,538 1341078 12227333 22008904 72222835 58,396,140 20273375 4816873
TiHERS Ml forsae secuie 58,204 271 S ONIBIS N0GEO 16605 T6SI00M 258612 957
e e Tatrecoverable 187 - - - 187 - - -
EIRMEE Undated assets 914,093 - - - - - - 91409
4R Total assets 306,416,955 32,058,633 30,384,551 46,751,667 91453547 75999485 22,859,527 6,909,545
&f Liabilties
ROREReRlEN Deposits and balances of banks and
BARER other financial instiutions 5056660 1340355 2416424 127218 227753 - - -
REEH Deposits from customers 235574700 68,240,590 60,100,353 84,046,888 23,035,189 151,680 - -
R5ERERE Trading liabiltes 399,444 3,996,444 - - - - - -
RE G Certfcates o depost isued 10,593,445 - 83855 1950935 7703508 100446 - -
KHR Current taxation 195,405 - - - 195405 - - -
EheE Other liabilities 10,138,928 - 1849287 1811635 2,070,550 891,443 - 3516013
EExR Loan capital 8,705,837 - - - 3817 6387720 - -
ERERE Undated liablties 1520 - - - - . - 1,520
BfE4E Total liabiities 4462939 73577389 65004620 89081586 35550522 7,531,289 - 351753
BE-REZE Assetliabilty gap (01518756 (34820069) (42329919) 55903025 68468196 22,859,527
S
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35 Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)

(&)
2016
WEARL 3fEAML 1ML
E3f3R BFE E5F
3 months 1year 5 years
EE  1ERR or less or less orless SENE  EHH
B% Repayable  Within  butover  butover  butover Over A
Total ondemand  1month  Tmonth  3months 1year S5years  Undated
B¥Tn BMTR E¥Tn BMTn B%Tn BETr  B¥Tn  B%Tr
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
A Of which:
BENENE Certificates of deposit held
~BHARMEEES  -incuded in available-
for-sale securities 15,922,277 - 1,673,112 5670032 8,182,340 396,793 - -
BE#S Debt securities
—BHARSAREE - included in rading assets 1,321,751 - 170724 280825 176901 693,301 - -
B ATHIEEES  -incuded in available-
for-sale securities 29,074,574 - 1,804479 1,309,320 6,861,372 16,513,252 2,586,151 -
30,396,325 - 1975203 1,590,145 7,038,273 17,206,553 2,586,151 -
BRIESE Certificates of deposit issued
-BHAER SRR - included in non-trading
BETERES debt securities issued 10,593,445 - 838556 1,950,935 7,703,508 100,446 - -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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35 Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

() RIZERTHIEELEBEER B ESIT (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)
(%)
2015
WARNE 3EAMLE  1ENE
E3(1R RIf E5E
3months 1 year 5years
MEEE @AM or less or less oless  SEMLE B
@%  Repayable Within -~ butover — butover  butover Over =)
Total ondemand  Tmonth  Tmonth  3months 1 year Syears  Undated
AT BT A%Tn BT A%Tn AT B%Tn  A%Tr
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
& Assets
BERART RR$T  Cashand balances with banks, central
REMEREENET  banksand other finandial institutions 20322734 19,497,228 - - - - - 825506
ST RRBTREM  Placements with and advances to
SRUBNEZRBE  banks, central banks and other
financial institutions 30,390,640 - 13676427 12983888 3710950 19375 - -
RARBEE Trading assefs 4277539 4063203 - - 104972 107855 - 1489
EPEFREFR Loans and advances to customers and
EtEE other accounts 173479925 7436056 17203299 22207059 57219401 47306695 20032579 2074836
M MEERS Available-for-sale securities 53151487 - 606195 19828798 7877205 16387328  2901,178 94,962
e IE Tax recoverable 33,114 - - - 33,114 - - -
EIPRSAE Undated assets 879,529 - - - - - - 879529
EELH Total assets 282534968 30996507 36941682 55019745 68945702 63821253 22933757 3876322
8% Liabilities
BIREMEEMESN  Deposits and balances of banks and
ERk&ER other financial institutions 2658301 1224132 1075188 358981 - - - -
EFREH Deposits from customers 20683709 56845356 67657425 6788712 28455557 436,659 - -
REREEE Trading liabilities 3555614 3555614 - - - - - -
BETERE Certificates of deposit issued 10,388,272 - 512625 - 7784632 2091015 - -
AHHE Current taxation 61910 - - - 61910 - - -
gt Other liabilities 12365023 - 575050 1034500 1414002 - - 9341471
EHER Loan capital 8,766,217 - - - - 8766217 - -
BIHALER Undated liabilities 117 - - - - - - 1717
BEAE Total liabilities 258480763 61625102 69820288 68682193 37716101 11293891 - 9343188
EE-RHEE Asset-liability gap 30628595 (2878606) (13662448) 31209601 52527362 22933757
ZE-XRER
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35 Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)

(%)
2015
MHARE 3EARE  1EME
Z3fiA EE E5%
3months 1 year 5years
MEEE @AM or less or less oless  SEMLE B
@%  Repayable Within -~ butover — butover  butover Over =)
Total ondemand  Tmonth  Tmonth  3months 1 year Syears  Undated
BETT  AETR AYTr BETT AETn ABTn B%Tn  B%Tr
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
A Of which:
BENERR Certificates of deposit held
—BHAAEEEES - induded in available-
for-sale securities 12375180 - 1884026 5978789 3904679 607,686 - -
BRES Debt securities
-BHAARSBAEE - incuded in trading assets 212827 - - S 104972 107855 - -
~THAABEERS  -incuded in available-
for-sale securities 22,261330 - 863,438 651,226 2065847 15779641 2901178 -
22474157 - 863438 651226 2170819 158874% 2,901,178 -
BRITESE Certificates of deposit issued
-BHAERBRE - included in non-trading
BRETERES debt securites issued 10,388,272 - 512605 - 784632 2091015 - -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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35 Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
ZELE EFIEREIR ST (i) Analysis of the residual contractual maturities of financial liabilities
INTHRBGBRSTERAEEN S The following maturity profile shows the undiscounted cash
BEEMNREARNANEER 26 flows of the Group's financial liabilities on the basis of their
TERAERARITIRIRERE earliest possible contractual maturity.
2016
AR MEANE 1ML
£3fAA 353 333
BeTBMAN PEEE EAR 3months 1year 5 years SERE
Gross Repayable Within or less but o less but orless but Over
cash flows on demand Tmonth  overTmonth  over3months over 1 year 5 years
EBTR EBTR AR BRI AR R ARt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FOIRAMEREES  Deposits and balances of banks
FRRER and other financial institutions 5,270,341 1,340,355 2,418,966 1,281,734 229,286 - -
ERER Deposits from customers B6A6TETI 68240590 60248353 84403210 234169% 158,724 -
BEIERE Certficates of deposit issued 10,748,944 - 845,306 1,993,068 7,809,851 100,719 -
BRER Loan capital 9,902,501 - - 45,075 2,777,102 7,079,724 -
TEERIE Derivative financial instruments 1,936,933 - 141,993 197,268 594,036 865,242 138,394
264,326,590 69,580,945 63,654,618 87,920,355 34,827,869 8,204,409 138,394
2015
WAL EARE L
23R 2 2%
Renges IEEE 1fHAR 3months 1 year 5 years SEMNE
Gross Repayable Within or less but or less but or less but Over
cash flows ondemand Imonth  overTmonth  over 3months over | year 5 years
ARt AR AT AT AT BT AT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FIREMSBERE  Deposits and balances of banks
FRkER and other financial institutions 2673470 124132 1,085,875 363463 - - -
RPEA Deposits from customers 221,785,733 56,845,356 67823836 67,736,773 29362947 16821 -
BETRNE Certficates of deposit issued 10562435 - 518699 11,298 7911537 2120901 -
BEER Loan capital 10,392,448 - - 45,048 450961 9,896,439 -
feRIA Derivative financial instruments 2040603 - 328805 286,586 346,709 986,204 92,299
247454689 58,069488 69757215 68443168 38,072,154 13,020,365 92,299

—E—XEH |63
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Financial risk management (continued)

Capital management
The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are:

- to comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

- to maintain a strong capital base to support the development
of its business; and

- tosafeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders.

The HKMA sets and monitors capital requirements for the Group as
a whole. An individual banking subsidiary is directly regulated by its
local banking supervisor. The HKMA requires that the Group maintain
three prescribed minimum risk-weighted capital ratios: Common
Equity Tier 1 ("CET1") capital ratio, Tier 1 capital ratio and total capital
ratio. In accordance with the Banking (Capital) (Amendment) Rules
2014 which came into effect on 1 January 2015, the Basel Il capital
buffers, namely capital conservation buffer ("“CCB") which is designed
to ensure that banks build up capital outside periods of stress and
countercyclical capital buffer ("CCyB") which is built up during periods
of excessive credit growth, came into operation. Such would be
gradually phased in from 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2019. The HKMA
announced a CCyB ratio for Hong Kong of 0.625% from 1 January 2016
and 1.25% from 1 January 2017. Basel lll framework also introduced a
leverage ratio as a non-risk-based backstop limit, to supplement risk-
based capital requirements. It provides for a parallel run period from
January 2013 to January 2017 and such parallel run will be used to
assess whether the proposed minimum ratio of 3% is appropriate,
with a view to migrating to a Pillar 1 requirement from 1 January 2018.

The Group adopts the standardised approach of calculating market
risk in its trading portfolios and risk weightings for credit risk, and
the basic indicator approach for operational risk. Banking operations
are categorised as either trading or banking book, and risk-weighted
assets are determined according to specified requirements that seek
to reflect the varying levels of risk attached to assets and off-balance
sheet exposures.
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(d)

Financial risk management (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might otherwise be possible with greater gearing, and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions. In order to comply with the risk-based
supervisory framework of capital adequacy stipulated by the HKMA,
the Group conducts ICAAP, which assesses the capital requirement
for Pillar 2 risks and hence the capital requirement for Pillar 1 and 2
is derived. Moreover, as part of the capital management policy and
to ensure capital adequacy, the Group conducts capital planning
annually, which takes into account the strategic focus, future business
growth, risk appetite and regulatory requirement. The plan covers
the issuance of capital instruments, if required, to ensure the Group's
capital ratios are well above their respective internal monitoring levels
and regulatory requirement. Regular stress testing is performed to
ensure that the impact of extreme but plausible scenarios on the risk
profile and capital position is considered. Stress testing also gives an
insight into the potential impact of significant adverse events and
how these could be mitigated.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of the capital adequacy ratio. There have been
no material changes in the Group’s policy on the management of
capital during the year.

The capital adequacy ratios at 31 December 2016 were computed on
the consolidated basis of the Group and some subsidiaries as specified
by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes, and are in accordance with
the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied
with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the year
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, and the Group's capital ratios are
well above the minimum required ratios set by the HKMA.
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(e)

Financial risk management (continued)

Operational risk management

Definition of operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from external events.

Governance framework

The Group has established an Operational Risk Governance
Framework ("ORGF") to identify, assess, mitigate, control, monitor
and report operational risk. The ORGF encompasses every member
within the Group and is governed by policies and guidelines which
document the minimum requirements to ensure a consistent
approach to manage operational risks. Operational risk management
("ORM") relevant matters are under the oversight of the Credit & Risk
Management Committee (“CRMC"), a subcommittee of the Board
of Directors, and the Operational Risk Management Committee
("ORMC"), a committee led by management. Implementation of ORM
plans and tools is driven by the Group’s ORM department and senior
management of business and support units.

Management of operational risk

Day-to-day operational risk management lies with our business and
support units and the Operational Risk and Control Head ("ORCH") of
each unit assists the respective heads in this regard.

The ORM department assists management in meeting their
responsibility of understanding and managing operational risk and
ensuring the development and consistent application of operational
risk policies, processes and procedures throughout the Group.
Business and support units are responsible for monitoring operational
risks and tracking Key Risk Indicators in their areas. The ORM
department monitors the Group's overall operational risk exposures
and ensures that all material risks are promptly and appropriately
escalated to the ORMC, CRMC and senior management of the Group
for their attention.

The Audit department examines and evaluates the adequacy and
control effectiveness of the ORGF on an ongoing basis.
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35 Financial risk management (continued)

(e)

Operational risk management (continued)

Management of operational risk (continued)

A web-based learning programme on operational risks is required
for all new joiners and an annual refresher of ORGF is compulsory
for all staff. Training workshops led by the ORM department are
offered to business and support units with the objectives of raising
operational risk awareness, familiarizing with the ORM tools and
enriching employees’ understanding of the ORGF along with their
roles, responsibilities and accountabilities. This is further reinforced
by strong, visible management support which encourages staff to
embrace and pursue operational excellence.

Risk assessments are conducted on all outsourced activities and new
products.

Tools and methodologies
The Group identifies, assesses, monitors and reports on operational
risk through the ORM tools and systems as set out below:

- Operational Risk & Control Self-Assessment (“RCSA”) is a tool to
identify and assess the level of risk and effectiveness of control.
RCSA has been rolled out across the business and major support
units under the guidance of the ORM department. RCSA
leaders are nominated by the management of each business
and support unit to conduct self-assessments and identify key
risk factors in their daily business and support functions. Each
key risk factor is assessed and quantified for financial impact,
in terms of the estimated loss impact of each occurrence and
estimated number of occurrences. In addition to the financial
impact assessment, non-financial impacts including customer,
regulatory and reputation impacts are also assessed taking into
considerations of both likelihood of the risk materializing and
severity of the impact.

- Key Risk Indicators ("KRIs") are statistical metrics that take various
risk factors into consideration and serve to provide early warning
signals for management’s monitoring and action. Through
regular monitoring of these KRIs, areas of potential operational
control weaknesses can be identified at an early stage and
addressed promptly. KRIs are developed at two levels, namely
the group and the unit level. Unit level KRIs are developed by
the respective units, and are monitored and tracked for progress
towards completion of applicable mitigation plans. Thresholds
are established for each business unit/service support unit KRl
by reference to the business’ acceptable risk level for each risk
factor.

—~ER
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(e)

Financial risk management (continued)

Operational risk management (continued)

Tools and methodologies (continued)

- Operational risk incidents are reported into a centralized
operational loss database called the Incident Reporting
System (“IRS"). Through the IRS, the ORM department ensures
all material operational risk incidents are registered, properly
investigated, with corrective and preventive actions promptly
executed according to agreed timelines. The IRS data serves
as a centralized database to produce regular reports for senior
management, ORMC and CRMC review of impact of significant
incidents and monitoring of the operational risk trends. An
escalation protocol is in place to ensure that operational risk
incidents with significant impact are reported to the regulatory
authorities, if deemed necessary. Lesser impact operational risk
events are also collected to assist trend analysis and provide a
more forward looking perspective of potential risk issues that
warrant for closer attention.

- Operational Risk Dashboard ("ORD") provides management with
an overview of the key operational risk issues including but not
limited to the progress of the RCSA reviews and KRI evaluation
results. This information is submitted to the ORMC monthly
and relevant summarized information is submitted to the
CRMC quarterly as part of the Group-wide Risk Status Update
Report. The Group-wide Risk Status Update Report captures
the implementation status of ORM initiatives, contains analyses
on the trend of operational losses, highlights operational risk
incidents that have a material impact on the Group, and lists
incident details during the reporting period.

The Group will continuously fine-tune and enhance its operational risk
management framework in line with industrial developments.

The Group’s long-term goal is to cultivate a proactive, responsible
and accountable culture on ORM, and achieve operational excellence
through robust and continuous operational risk management.
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(f)

(9)

Financial risk management (continued)

Legal risk management

The Group remains abreast of all legal and regulatory requirements
applicable to its governance and operations, and continuously
seeks to develop its people, enhance its systems and processes, and
implement changes as necessary to meet the demands and create
awareness of such requirements. Regular reviews are conducted with
respect to the Group's policies and procedures to ensure the same
reflect the latest legal and regulatory requirements. Issuance of new or
substantially revised policies and procedures are often accompanied
by relevant training. There is a strong process in place to ensure legal
and regulatory risks are identified, monitored and mitigated. Any
significant matters that arise relating to such risks are reported as
appropriate by either the Legal or Compliance function to the Group's
Audit Committee, the CRMC or senior management.

The Legal Department (“Legal”) and Compliance Department
("Compliance”) have been key partners in the business, providing
legal and compliance advice and support to all parts of the Group and
working with business and support units to ensure relevant controls
are in place. In 2016, Legal and Compliance were actively involved
in new product launches and new business initiatives, strategically
important transactions and commercial agreements, outsourcing
arrangements as well as day-to-day matters arising from the Group's
business. Legal and Compliance will remain heavily involved in
monitoring and ensuring compliance with changing regulatory
requirements in various areas impacting the Group, and will continue
to advise and support the Group in meeting the legal and regulatory
challenges that lay ahead.

Strategic and reputation risk management

Strategic risk management refers to the Group's efforts to develop,
uphold and implement strategic decisions related to its long-term
growth and development. Reputation risk management refers to
the Group's efforts to protect its brand name and business franchise
from any potential damages arising from negative publicity and
information about its business practices, conduct or financial
condition.

The CRMC of the Group meets regularly to monitor and oversee the
Group's strategic and reputation risks. Senior management places
high priority on ensuring that the Group’s business and operational
strategies are appropriately defined and are executed professionally
and promptly. Such strategies are reviewed regularly to enable
the Group to respond efficiently to changes in its operating and
regulatory environment. Business priorities, set on a bank-wide basis,
as well as for individual business and functional units, are aligned to
support the Group's strategies, and measurable targets are assigned
to ensure execution excellence. Great care is also taken to protect the
Group's reputation and to maximise its brand equity. This includes
ongoing efforts to monitor and ensure high standards of customer
satisfaction, operational efficiency, legal and regulatory compliance,
public communication and issues management.

—E-XFR
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(a)
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Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Financial instruments carried at fair value

(i

Fair value hierarchy

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are

made at a specific point in time based on the characteristics

of the financial instruments and relevant market information.

Fair value is determined according to the following fair value

hierarchy:
R2016512831 B A A BEHE
Fair value measurements at 31 December 2016 using
HREER TEM
EZ128318 ERMZHRE HtE  FTEENHE
MEE (E18) TRRNEE (%38)
(#%)  Quoted pricesin ($280) Significant
Fair value active market for Significant other unobservable
at 31 December identical assets ~ observable input input
(Total) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BETT BETT BETT BETT
BERAREBENE Recurring fair value measurements HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
RHBREE Trading assets
-EBES - Debt securities 1,321,751 649,073 672,678 -
-REHS - Investment funds 1,078 - - 1,078
—TETENERAEE ~ Positive fair value of derivatives 4,258,891 494 4,258,397 -
5,581,720 649,567 4,931,075 1,078
ARMERS Available-for-sale securities
-BENETE - Certificates of deposit held 15,922,277 28,065 15,894,212 -
—AEA(AENERS - Treasury bills (including
Z§) Exchange Fund Bills) 13,111,688 13,111,688 - -
-EEES - Debt securities 29,074,574 24,822,266 4,248,308 4,000
-BaEs - Equity securities 95,732 72,236 - 23,496
58,204,271 38,034,255 20,142,520 27,496
63,785,991 38,683,822 25,073,595 28,574
=L Liabilities
RFRRER Trading liabilities
~fTETEMEDNRER - Negative fair value of derivatives 3,996,444 - 3,996,444 -

170] PERTT (EE) BRAH
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36 AAEBETENERIA (&) 36 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)
(@) LUAREEIERNSEMIA (&) (@) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
() EBRFTELIEE (E) () Fairvalue hierarchy (continued)

0151231 B AL BEE

Fair value measurements at 31 December 2015 using

RAEER TEM
HENARYIA ERTHRE EFE  FUBRNEE
“rfEE (E18) ABRMEE (£38)
(%) Quoted pricesin (F28) Significant
Fair value at active market for Significant other unobservable
31 December identical assets observable input input
(Total) (Level 1) (Level2) (Level3)
BETT BETT BETT BETT
BEMAAEETR Recurring fair value measurements HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
EE Assets
RHBREE Trading assets
-EBES - Debt securities 212827 212827 - -
-REES - Investment funds 1,489 - - 1489
—fTETANEALER - Positive fair value of derivatives 4,063,223 20311 4042912 -
4277539 233,138 4042912 1,489
MHHEES Available-for-sale securities
-BENERE - Certificates of deposit held 12,375,180 398,108 11,977,072 -
-EEF(BEMNERS - Treasury bills (including
Z5) Exchange Fund Bills) 18420,015 18420015 - -
-EBES - Debt securities 22261330 21,350,010 907,320 4,000
~EREH - Equity securities 94,962 71447 - 23515
53,151,487 40,239,580 12,884,392 27515
57,429,026 40472718 16,927,304 29,004
& Liabilities
RFRRER Trading liabilities
—{TETANALNAEE - Negative fair value of derivatives 3,555,614 607 3,555,007 -

#H E20165F12 8318 &20155F12831H

HHE 2R BEEBMRE

AMME2H 2

IR EEANT R T ANER -

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, there were

no significant transfers of financial instruments between level 1

and level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

S
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36

(a)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

(ii)

Determination of fair value
The Group measures fair value using the following fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making the measurements:

Level T — Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for
identical instruments at the measurement date.

Level 2 -

(i) Quoted market price for identical or similar instruments
that are not active;

(i) Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either
directly or indirectly, where all significant inputs are
observable from market data. This category includes
financial instruments with quoted prices in active markets
for similar instruments; or quoted prices in markets that
are considered less than active for identical or similar
instruments.

Level 3 — Valuation technigues using significant unobservable
inputs where the valuation techniques include one or more
significant inputs that are unobservable. This category includes
financial instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for
similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments
or assumptions are required to reflect the differences between
the instruments.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices
or dealer price quotations. For all other financial instruments,
the Group determines fair value using valuation techniques.
Valuation techniques include net present value, discounted
cash flow models and other valuation models. Assumptions
and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free and
benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and other parameters
used in estimating discount rates, bond price and foreign
currency exchange rates.
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(a)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

(ii)

(i)

IERMFABENHE

Significant unobservable inputs

Determination of fair value (continued)

The most common valuation techniques applied by the Group
to determine the fair value of financial instruments are from
interest rates and currency swaps, which are observable market
data with high reliability, and do not require the significant
involvement of management’s judgement and estimation.
Observable prices and model inputs are usually available in the
market for listed debt and equity securities, exchange-traded
derivatives and simple over-the-counter ("OTC") derivatives
like interest rate swaps. However, the availability of observable
market prices and inputs varies depending on the products and
markets, and is prone to changes based on specific events and
general conditions in the financial markets.

Certain financial instruments need to be employed with
valuation techniques where one or more significant market
inputs involved are not observable. Examples of these financial
instruments are structured investments, OTC structured
derivatives and certain securities for which there is no active
market. For valuation models involving significant unobservable
inputs, a high degree of management judgement or estimation
is required to select the appropriate valuation model, determine
the expected future cash flows on the financial instruments
being valued, determine the probability of counterparty default
and prepayments, and select the appropriate discount rates.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

FABENBEMN
ARABEFEZHBE
Fair value measurement sensitivity
to unobservable inputs

REEE

Investment funds

Broker quote

BT S

Debt securities Discounted

cash flow model

R
Equity securities

(%)

REERAARBEFENERT S K
BRAMHNERS  BYIFNERTS
EITEE - HIRREIRFENTIS - B
AR BENHERRBRE SR B
Mo FEREMEZRODN - Bt 27
BEEMIFTEROBBRLTERE o

REenEFRRLY

See note below

TERTIR &7 R (A R A &L fg )
Forecasted cash flows and
estimated risk-free rate

Not applicable

See note below

NEmMm N

Not applicable

mERFREE L
SIBEREMNAREE
Significant increase in the
estimated risk-free rate
would result in a lower fair value

(35) TEA
Not applicable

Note:

Equity securities under level 3 fair value measurements are generally
classified as available-for-sale and are not traded in the active market.
In the absence of an active market, the fair value is estimated on the
basis of an analysis of the investee's financial position, results and other
factors. Accordingly, it is not practical to quote significant unobservable
inputs.

—E-XFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
FIBRBIAT BB EER () (iif)
TRETEIBEH AR BEERY

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening to
the closing balance for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy:

RaRREE ALEES am
BE Assets Trading assets Available-for-sale securities Total
REES EEEF ERES
Investment funds Debt securities  Equity securities
BRI BRI BRI BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2016%1818 At 1 January 2016 1,489 4,000 23,515 29,004
EH Sales (253) - - (253)
RERF AN ER Gains or losses recognised in the
income statement (158) - (19) (177)
R2016%12831H At 31 December 2016 1,078 4,000 23,496 28,574
REERTEBNEE Total gains or losses for the year included
REREBERT in the income statement for assets held
BRMEREE: atthe end of the reporting period recorded in:
-BENBURAEE - Gains less losses from dealing in
foreign currencies - - (19) (19)
-BERGRREENERER - Gains less losses from trading securities (158) - - (158)
RHRBEE ARMERS ek
BE Assets Trading assets Available-for-sale securities Total
REER EBES ERES
Investment funds Debt securities Equity securities
BETT BETT BT BETFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#015E1 A18 At January 2015 2204 4000 3572 29776
B Sales (463) - - (463)
RERRBANER Gains or losses recognised in the
income statement (252) - (57) (309)
R2015%12A318 At 31 December 2015 1,489 4,000 23515 29,004
REERNBENEE Total gains orlosses for the year included
REREBERT in the income statement for assets held
ERNERES atthe end of the reporting period recorded in:
-BENENEREE - Gains less losses from dealing in
foreign currencies - - (57) (57)
-BER SRR EANEHEE - Gains less losses from trading securities (252) - - (252)

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(@) UDXAEBEYENERMIA (&) (a)
HEZ I BRI RN EREFE

(iv)
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Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

(iv)

Effects of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to
reasonable possible alternative assumptions

The fair value of Level 3 financial instruments is measured using
valuation models that incorporate assumptions that are not
based on observable market data. The following table shows
the sensitivity of Level 3 fair value measurements due to the

ﬁ—fﬁ SHEBRMEENAREE parallel movement of plus or minus 10% of change in fair value
IF ~ B10%89ITEE) - to reasonably possible alternative assumptions.
2016%F12A31H
31 December 2016
il EE LTS REM2EKERBR
Effect on Effect on other
income statement comprehensive income
B () = ()
Favourable (Unfavourable) Favourable (Unfavourable)
BETT BETT BETT BETT
EE Assets HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RHABEE Trading assets
—REES - Investment funds 107 (107) - -
A EE Available-for-sale securities
—ERES - Debt securities - - 400 (400)
—EREH - Equity securities - - 2,350 (2,350)
2015% 128318
31 December 2015
PEs A R E At 2 T i e Bt
Effect on Effect on other
income statement comprehensive income
AH (1 F) AH (R F)
Favourable  (Unfavourable) Favourable  (Unfavourable)
BT BT BT BT
AE Assets HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RORGEE Trading assets
KBRS - Investment funds 149 (149) - -
AfHEES Available-for-sale securities
—E%EE - Debt securities - - 400 (400)
—EREH - Equity securities - - 2351 (2,351)
HARNEBEE LSBT ENAR The Group believe that their estimates of fair value for the
%TEME‘I‘%ZE% 8 BRI K above financial instruments are appropriate but the use of
REEATREEBH TR AR EBERE different methodologies or assumptions could lead to different

measurements of fair value.
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36 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

(b)

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair

value

All financial instruments are stated at fair value or carried at amounts

not materially different from their fair value at 31 December 2016 and

2015 unless otherwise stated.

0]

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets mainly include cash; placements
with banks, central banks and other financial institutions;
loans and advances to customers; investments; and financial
derivative instruments.

The fair value of placements with banks, central banks and other
financial institutions is mainly priced at market interest rates,
and mature within one year. Accordingly, the carrying value
approximate the fair value.

The fair value of loans and advances to customers, taking into
account the relevant market interest rates and being mostly
priced at floating rates close to the market interest rate which is
mainly repriced within 3 months, approximately equal to their
carrying amounts.

Trading assets, securities designated at fair value through profit
or loss and available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value in
the financial statements.
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Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(i) Financial liabilities

36 AABENENESRMIA (&) 36
(continued)
(b) HUAABEUIMIBRNESHMIANAAER (b)
(&) value (continued)
(i) ZREE
BRTMEIN FTEeEREEHINUNAR

BEZ25k%

IR B H & 220165124
318 M2015F12A31HN AR BED

RIAKHEREEAR

December 2016 and 2015, except as follows:

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair

All financial liabilities are stated at fair value or carried at
amounts not materially different from their fair value at 31

2016
IRESE
Carrying AREE ERE F2 38,
amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
BT BET T BETT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
cRaE Financial liabilities
B BITIF G Certificates of deposit issued
—¥ERXFHE - Non-trading 10,593,445 10,538,350 - 10,538,350 -
BBAENR Loan capital 8,705,837 9,066,351 9,066,351 - -
19,299,282 19,604,701 9,066,351 10,538,350 -
2015
RE®RE
Carrying RREE B F2R EE34%
amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
BETT BT BETFT BT BT
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
ot y=R Financial liabilities
BB 1717 5K Certificates of deposit issued
— IR FRE - Non-trading 10,388,272 10,390,538 - 10,390,538 -
BEEEAR Loan capital 8,766,217 9,088,390 9,088,390 - -
19,154,489 19,478,928 9,088,390 10,390,538 -
ZE—RNEFER
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37

(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements

PTEI A 37 Derivatives
@ﬁﬁ@fil EBEBEBEMEETEFER The use of derivatives for proprietary trading and sales to customers as
BEREMEARELEEBN—REE risk management products is an integral part of the Group's business
a‘W’ﬁ EREEHABREEMEN IR B activities. These instruments are also used to manage the Group’s own
T A eREEREAEBARSAERNT exposure to market risk as part of its asset and liability management
Rk -  AEBMANEETET A RET process. The principal derivative instruments used by the Group
EMEXRBPHRESL - FERBINIFHHNT are interest and foreign exchange rate-related contracts, which are
ATH - AEEOEFRISNEENITEL primarily OTC derivatives. The Group also participates in exchange-
HEH - REBKRZ AFEEPHERNE traded derivatives. Most of the Group's derivative positions have
HHhREEREMBENMETASR - ?jif‘;“‘ been entered into to meet customer demand and to hedge these
ATEMmME  STETAHEIHAISEESES and other trading positions. For accounting purposes, derivatives are
FRESEH o classified as either held for trading or held for hedging.
PTETANERSH (@) Notional amounts of derivatives
PTHETHARERE B ZEEBEEESRIE Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends on
HHEERETEBENVEELH - BLT the value of one or more underlying assets or indices. The notional
ENEBHERKKRTHHNZZE » TR amounts of these investments indicate the volume of outstanding
FEREEE o transactions and do not represent amounts at risk.
NWTRASEESBEFEZMMATANEREH The following is a summary of the notional amounts of each
M - significant type of derivative entered into by the Group:
2016 2015
B Bifh
e Hi(es BB Hf(RE
Heldfor  #EEE) Fokc) Heldfor ~ H{EEE) ek
hedging Others Total hedging Others Total
BETT BETT BETT BT oL BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
ER{TETA Currency derivatives
EHRS Forwards - 61417578 61,417,578 - 103314066 103,314,066
BHR5 Swaps - 206,534,675 206,534,675 - 303,121,333 303,121,333
EPN-il=1 Options purchased - 21,199,511 21,199,511 - 18,142,414 18,142,414
kil Options written - 19,191,456 19,191,456 - 12081406 12,281,406
FETETR Interest rate derivatives
BEHRHERS Forwards/Futures - 38,774 38,774 - - -
BEZ5 Swaps 15,698,972 26,714,391 42,413,363 13300077 21,113,130 34,413,207
EPN:iY Options purchased - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - -
B HE Options written - 1,077,549 1,077,549 - 77,501 77,501
15,698,972 337,173,934 352,872,906 13,300,077 458,049,850 471,349,927

XHEREFEENSMTAGEEEAR -
MHTEENR B R FEREDME
SRR - AR BT EMSE
mAE -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Trading includes the Group's proprietary positions in financial
instruments, positions which arise from the execution of trade orders
from customers and market making, and positions taken in order to
hedge other elements of the trading book.
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37 fT4£IA (&) 37 Derivatives (continued)
(b) FTETIEMNAABEREERSMESE (b) Fair value and credit risk-weighted amounts of derivatives
2016 2015

MER DAREE EERRK PREE AR EE EERR
g 8% IAERE BE BfE miEgE
Credit risk- Credit risk-
Fair value Fair value weighted Fair value Fair value weighted
assets liabilities amount assets liabilities amount
BETT BETT BETT BETT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
MESTETE Interest rate derivatives 271,369 49,898 196,481 297,187 48,692 184,471
ERTETA Currency derivatives 3,987,522 3,946,546 4,447,257 3,766,036 3,506,922 4,695,947
4,258,891 3,996,444 4,643,738 4,063,223 3,555,614 4,880,418

(Ff&E18) (KHsE25) (Fizt18) (BisE2s)

(note 18) (note 25) (note 18) (note 25)
EERBINESERIERR (RITE (BX) The credit risk-weighted amount is the amount which has been
RADBREARTENENR - WEURRR 5 calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules on capital
HFNP B LB BAER T E © 5 adequacy, and depends on the status of the counterparty and the
BB ERAE RS INEHE150%T%F maturity characteristics. The risk weights used range from 0% to 150%
(20154 : 0% 150%) * 1M XK « R &K K H (2015: 0% to 150%) for contingent liabilities and commitments, and
HETAE T EA 48 H0%ZE150%T & (2015 from 0% to 150% (2015: 0% to 150%) for exchange rate, interest rate

F 1 0%ZE150%) ° and other derivatives contracts.
REESREEFNE L EMEEFRLEEL The Group did not enter into any bilateral netting arrangements
PE o AL - EMEEE R AERRYIR - during the year, and accordingly, these amounts are shown on a gross
basis.

—ZT—XER 179
Annual Report 2016



180

B TSR MY

37 {TEIHE (&)

(0 EEARHHIIANTETIANAIAEE
AN R SR B RS R a1 A TRIRE
mBRIE DN AR EBEME

Notes to the Financial Statements

37

(c)

Derivatives (continued)

Fair value of derivatives designated as hedging instruments
The following is a summary of the fair value of derivatives held for
hedging purposes by product type entered into by the Group:

2016 2015
AREE AREE ~REE “RrEE
BE a& BE afE
Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value
assets liabilities assets liabilities
BET T BT T BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000

FEEL Interest rate contracts

— AR BEELH — Fair value hedge 223,306 25,520 283,213 45,501
—BEmELH — Cash flow hedge 1,441 _ _ _
224,747 25,520 283,213 45,501

DA BELE EREAERES TETH
FEESBEH DA BERTENERDT
BB I s

RenSEPEEZRENEREL - BEMR
Bz a2 FIRTENIERSHGEE U
PRARKFERAERESRELREEHME
ARk - B BF U E A ®,279,0007T (2015
F 8\ B AREEZBEANESREY
BN R2016FR - —IHRREME
HHRTAMEECERAIG KRB
162,0007T (2015%F : &) Bt ARKE/MIK

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Fair value hedges principally consist of interest rate swaps that are used
to protect against changes in the fair value of certain fixed rate assets
or liabilities due to movements in the market interest rates.

Cash flow hedges principally consist of interest rate swaps that are
used to protect against exposures to variability in future interest and
principal cash flows on non-trading liabilities which bear interest at
variable rates. Net gains recognised in equity, in the cash flow hedging
reserve, was HK$1,279,000 (2015: HKSNil) and a gain of HK$162,000
(2015: HKSNIl) of ineffectiveness recognised in the Group's income
statement which arising from cash flow hedge during 2016.
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d) FfTETENSTER
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HSAMBK T EEMEE) BoMITETA

ZETEIN -

Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Derivatives (continued)

(d) Remaining life of derivatives

The following tables provide an analysis of the notional amounts of
derivatives of the Group by relevant maturity grouping, based on the

remaining periods to settlement at the end of the reporting period:

2016
BRTFHNERSE
Notional amounts with remaining life of
158 E

#zE 1E5H T ZE55 5L E
1 year Over 1 year Over
Total or less to 5 years 5years
BT T BT T BETT BET T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
MESTHETE Interest rate derivatives 44,529,686 24,307,839 18,041,043 2,180,804
ER/TAT A Currency derivatives 308,343,220 292,085,731 15,873,128 384,361
352,872,906 316,393,570 33,914,171 2,565,165

2015

BRTFHNEERSRE
Notional amounts with remaining life of
1A F

ek TEHAT E54F SEM L
1 year Over 1 year Over
Total or less to 5 years 5 years
BETIT BETT BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MEHTET A Interest rate derivatives 34,490,708 18,206,145 15,014,457 1,270,106
EXTETEA Currency derivatives 436,859,219 421,542,081 15,317,138 -
471,349,927 439,748,226 30,331,595 1,270,106
—E-REFR
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(a)

REEE  AENEAE

RHFENRBEEERERE
UTRBRETERRABENRAENANEHE
B -

Notes to the Financial Statements

Contingent assets, liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities and commitments to extend credit
The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments:

2016 2015
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEEEERR R Direct credit substitutes 4,368,584 2,711,185
B 5Bk EEE Transaction-related contingencies 535,590 606,593
HE S EREEE Trade-related contingencies 2,767,669 1,770,553
RAIE HTF R Forward forward deposits placed - 387,507
H b HE Other commitments:
— SRAT AR AR BUH — which are unconditionally cancellable
SEERARN or automatically cancellable
EEAR e due to deterioration in the
Al B HHEUH creditworthiness of the borrower 105,242,666 91,804,970
—REEBBEIFRAT - with an original maturity of not more than 1 year 5,232,137 1,317,952
—REEFREIF U E — with an original maturity of more than 1 year 3,761,125 2,217,391
121,907,771 100,816,151
EERBINESRE Credit risk-weighted amounts 5,205,562 2,889,596

FERENMAEREEEHEBENTA 81
ERFH - ERAETIREEENERIA
P2 o BRHERER EEAFTPREEERE
BRSPS AMEERRER - AN EEIEE
BRZBRERREETPHEXRMEARZRR
MERE - HREBERAEEIHRKIDARS
A BENSRLIFERARRRDRE

PR ETE 1= & R\ B hn#E S5E /9 [ B2 b4 A
0%Z150% (20155 © 0%ZE150%) 75 o

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Contingent liabilities and commitments are credit-related instruments
which include forward deposits placed, letters of credit, guarantees
and commitments to extend credit. The risk involved is essentially
the same as the credit risk involved in extending loan facilities to
customers. The contractual amounts represent the amounts at risk
should the contract be fully drawn upon and the client default. As the
facilities may expire without being drawn upon, the contract amounts
do not represent expected future cash flows.

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk-weighted
amounts range from 0% to 150% (2015: 0% to 150%).
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(c)

(d)

REEE - BENEE (B)

BAEIE

R20165F 128318 » EEAWENRERE
R X AR TSR R NI B R B AR IE
I

Notes to the Financial Statements

38

(b)

Contingent assets, liabilities and commitments
(continued)

Capital commitments

Capital commitments for the purchase of properties and equipment
outstanding at 31 December 2016 not provided for in the financial
statements are as follows:

2016 2015

BET T BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

ERERETA Authorised and contracted for 166,037 168,035
AEAE () Lease commitments

R20165F 12318  BIB ARG EEE
JERRARRFER S LN ¢

At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

2016 2015
BT BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
WEBER T BB Property leases expiring:

1R Within 1 year 252,477 251,393
1FE5F After 1 year but within 5 years 593,418 606,765
SR After 5 years 105,493 136,723
951,388 994,881

HREHERT HEER Equipment leases expiring:
148 4 Within 1 year 5,118 4,658
1FE5F After 1 year but within 5 years 13,175 16,091
18,293 20,749
969,681 1,015,630

AEEBEEKLEHENTAEEZRYER
&l - BEMELRENSNEER KRR
1295 - AINE IR ERTREE AT K o A
FHEGISRIARE °

EBLERRNSEEE
7201652015512 8318 » NEBIRAE
AT ] R BT BAR R B E A E R
SR

(d)

The Group leases a number of properties and items of equipment
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of
one to nine years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

Contingent liability in respect of legal claim
The Group is not involved in any legal action that would be significant
to the financial position of the Group at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

—E-XFR
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40

11

EREEH

AEBERFREEIZEARAEMETEAS
o RRMEBIAL ~ 55 - BB EI &
HitEERBERTREE - HRELEEYN
FAREENEE  WELEERHEEENK
AN BREARR BEHREA ©

BEERRARARGREER

BEeRA AEBER2016F12A31HNE
B AR AEEBFMERIATEEE SR
ZERBRAA - ﬁ$$lﬁﬂ?%ﬁﬁﬁ
hE A RKEMBEGFMAZAPETEEER
Ejo

SRHhE R H

EEERUVBERERE - FERMBHREXA
MEE;BBENERBBELAEEELAE

E‘Jﬁ?é » AR 2R YA N ST H HBE #R 2K
FEH A RBR - RREE LS L E

EAUE““E@F‘?E’Jﬁﬁi‘&&%%ﬁkik%% ° FEFR
R LA R NEBEATNRNRRIG A E

BAKENERBEZR - AREREMER
REEE  BUBEBRESENTEYRA

o 2RI AN K 4B o

EEECRHEEZLZ B mAREEIE S
BER R ABETAOBIE « BERERA - AR

BEEBR M ER o

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

39

40

11

Trust activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf
of individuals, trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institutions.
These assets and income arising therefrom are excluded from these
financial statements as they are not assets of the Group.

Immediate parent and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2016, the Directors considered the immediate
parent of the Group to be CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong, and the ultimate
controlling party of the Group to be CITIC Group Corporation, which is
incorporated in mainland China.

Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires that management
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities; the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of these financial statements; and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Changes in
assumptions can have a significant impact on the financial statements
in the periods when the assumptions are changed. The application
of assumptions and estimates means that any selection of different
assumptions could cause the Group's reporting to differ. The Group
believes that the assumptions that have been made are appropriate,
and that the financial statements therefore present the financial
position and results fairly, in all material respects.

Management held a discussion with the Audit Committee about
the development, selection and disclosure of the Group’s significant
accounting policies and estimates, and the application of these
policies and estimates.
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41

Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 38 contain information about the assumptions and their risk

factors relating to the fair value of financial instruments respectively.

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

0]

Impairment losses

Loans and advances

Loan portfolios are reviewed periodically to assess whether
impairment losses exist. The Group makes judgements as to
whether there is any objective evidence that a loan portfolio
is impaired, i.e. whether there is a decrease in estimated future
cash flows. Objective evidence for impairment is described in
the accounting policy note 2(l). If management determines,
based on their judgement, that objective evidence of
impairment exists, expected future cash flows are estimated
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those of the Group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of the current observable
data. Management regularly reviews the methodology and
assumptions used in estimating future cash flows to reduce any
difference between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Available-for-sale securities

The Group determines that available-for-sale equity securities
are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below cost. The determination of when
a decline in fair value below cost is not recoverable within a
reasonable time period is judgement-based by nature, so profit
and loss could be affected by differences in this judgement.

—E-XFR
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SEHEET R A ()

AP ARERENEBERR (&)

(ii)

CRTALTIEE
ARBEMAT—RBEIEHUEE 2R
BEX—SFrHETFeRITANEE
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FEBRKEEREEFELR - NE

— B MABER o
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KI5 R A R R AT RER K PR
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LfAET RFFEENRAAEE - FIEA
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FREIRT (B BRAH
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Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made at a specific point in time based on the characteristics
of the financial instruments and relevant market information.
Where available, quoted market prices are used. If a quoted
price is not available on a recognised stock exchange, is not
from a broker or dealer for non-exchange traded financial
instruments or from a readily available latest trading price, the
fair value on level 3 financial instruments is estimated using
the present value or other valuation techniques using current
market parameters.

All valuation models are validated before they are used as a
basis for financial reporting. Wherever possible, the Group
compares valuations derived from models with quoted prices
of similar financial instruments, and with actual values when
realised, in order to further validate and calibrate the models.

These techniques involve uncertainties and are materially
affected by the assumptions used and judgements made
regarding the risk characteristics of various financial instruments,
discount rates, estimates of future cash flows, future expected
loss experience and other factors. Changes in assumptions
could materially affect these estimates and the resulting fair
values. Derived fair value estimates cannot necessarily be
substantiated by comparison to independent markets and,
in many cases, could be realised in an immediate sale of the
instruments.



B TSR MY

Notes

to the Financial Statements

42 FITZMBMRRRREERS 42 Statement of financial position and reserve movement
of the Bank
(@ ZFITHMBMRRER (a) Statement of financial position of the Bank
R2016512A31H At 31 December 2016
(ABEE B5E47) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2016 2015
M5 BET T BT T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
Re RAERTT » PRIBITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks

Hih S RIsIENETF and other financial institutions 25,830,962 20,817,264
ERTT ~ PRIBITR Placements with and advances to banks,

H o plEnTaRRaR central banks and other financial institutions 21,931,411 29,175,150
THRBEE Trading assets 5,550,317 4,266,920
BEEFEREBZ R EMERE Loans and advances to customers and other accounts 176,268,864 159,295,802
AHEERES Available-for-sale securities 57,303,459 51,618,890
e B A mIFRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 7,843,080 7,156,104
MEBARIRE Investments in subsidiaries 1,245,418 1245418
LEYE ] Property and equipment

—REYE - Investment properties 109,517 155,261

—HibE - Other premises 369,479 326,300

— 5t - Equipments 379,016 318,076
AU B F TE Tax recoverable - 31,655
BETIBE E Deferred tax assets 12,250 34,830
EEAE Total assets 296,843,773 274,441,670
BERES LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
afE Liabilities
RIT R E A& B TER Deposits and balances of banks and

ERNEF other financial institutions 3,919,496 2,482,052
BEE#R Deposits from customers 229,285,512 215,262,570
RHABEBE Trading liabilities 3,988,231 3,543,084
DT IE Certificates of deposit issued 10,593,445 10,388,272
REAFR A Current taxation 192,807 52,945
EMaE Other liabilities 8,825,108 8,627,288
FET B B A RIFIA Amounts due to subsidiaries 330,023 2,579,782
BEER Loan capital 8,705,837 8,766,217
BEAE Total liabilities 265,840,459 251,702,210
Em EQUITY
% 7 Share capital 29(a) 9,366,271 7,566,271
E] Reserves 42(b) 15,463,791 12,863,021
BIMEm T A Additional equity instruments 30 6,173,252 2,310,168
EREE Total Equity 31,003,314 22,739,460
EERABEE Total Equity and Liabilities 296,843,773 274,441,670
BEER2017F3821 BROEL RIERAM -

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2017.
RNME B4
ZHANG Xiaowei Margaret MAN
HITEFE  ITRFETHABH HITEFFETTEAAZ
Executive Director, President and Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer Deputy Chief Executive Officer
ZE—RNEFER
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(b) ATREZSARIDNEEH

Notes to the Financial Statements

42

of the Bank (continued)

(b) Movement in components of equity of the Bank

Statement of financial position and reserve movement

RATHMER AR R D N B F R Details of the changes in the Bank's individual components of equity
EFFYIT ¢ between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
Af
The Bank
BiMER
ng  ReNE k& I8
Efffie  WMBE  EfEE Additional
BE EABE -REE Popety  Cashflow  Investment  REER  HELE equity
Share Capital General  revaluation hedging  revaluation Retained Total ~instruments ERAE
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits reserves  (Hfi/note30)  Total equity
AeTn  AMTr  A¥Tn B¥Tn B%Tn A%Tn AMTn RBMTR BBt AMTR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2016%1 718 At1January 2016 7,566,271 2,903 100,000 55 - (28,075) 12,788,138 12,863,021 2,310,168 22,739,460
BZ2016EMEREH : Changesin equity for 2016:
ERHE Profitfor the year - - - - - - 2794979 2,794,979 - 2794979
AfrERELE Other comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 1,068 (26,542) - (25,474) - (25,474)
KEEREBHEEE  Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 1,068 (26,542) 2,794,979 2,769,505 - 2,769,505
ERRERD Issue and allotment of shares 1,800,000 - - - - - - - - 1,800,000
BOBN—MERES  Issue of AT Capital Securites - - - - - - - - 3,863,084 3,863,084
TREIN-RER Distribution payment for
EHZ28 AT Capital Securities - - - - - - - - (168735)  (168,735)
BAREET Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - (168,735)  (168,735) 168,735 -
20165128318 At 31 December 2016 9,366,271 2,903 100,000 55 1,068 (54,617) 15414382 15,463,791 6,173,252 31,003,314
R015E1 18 At T January 2015 7,566,271 2,903 100,000 b3 - 79493 10,995,141 11137592 2,310,168 21014031
HZWISFREREE:  Changesin equity for 2015
FEFE Profit for the year - - - - - - 2,001,564 2,001,564 - 2,001,564
A2 ENREE Other comprehensive
income for the year - - - - - (107,568) - (107,568) - (107,568)
TERRENEEE  Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - - (107,568) 2,001,564 1893,9% - 1893,9%
TAEH-HER Distribution payment for
FEES AT1 Capital Securities - - - - - - - - (168567) (168567)
EBRBER Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - (168,567) (168,567) 168567 -
R2015E12831H At 31 December 2015 7,566,271 2,903 100,000 5% - (28075) 12788138 12,863,021 2,310,168 22,739,460
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43 Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by

the Board of Directors on 21 March 2017.



RIEEZM T EER  Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(BR¥FRIFIBASN - BB R L) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(A) SRITRMRHNERERIEE (A) Capital information available on the Bank’s website
REEIRITE (BFE) HE - AEBERA For the purposes of compliance with Banking (Disclosure)
TERERNFERREE AN KNER Rules, information relating to the Group’s regulatory capital and
WEEEARATARHEMBEERES - HEKE other disclosures are published by using standard disclosure
A] DA 38 A8 17 #9 48 Ihwww.cnebinternational. templates as specified by the HKMA and they can be viewed in the
comN [EBEBEEAREE | —8hEE - Regulatory Disclosures section of our Bank's corporate website at

www.cncbinternational.com.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(B) Capital adequacy

(i) Capital base

Capital adequacy ratios ("“CARs") are complied in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the HKMA. The CARs are computed
on a consolidated basis covering the Bank and some of its subsidiaries
as required by the HKMA. The Bank has adopted the “standardised
approach” for calculating the risk-weighted amount for credit risk

and market risk and the “basic indicator approach” for calculating

operational risk.

2016 2015
BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
ZERE-RELATARRE Common Equity Tier 1 (“CET1”) capital
instruments and reserves
BERRTAERN L EmRE Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital instruments
*i&ﬁﬁlﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬂx@m@i plus any related share premium 9,366,271 7,566,271
REBEF Retained earnings 16,259,623 13,878,124
WERE Disclosed reserves 154,870 299,644
NREEREN S ERE—RER CET1 capital before regulatory deductions 25,780,764 21,744,039
TERE-—RER  EERE CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
RIEHIAEERBELHIES EF5E Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities 18,217 36,312
WE TS M EEE Cash flow hedging reserve 1,068 -
ARERAREBETHNAER Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk
FERRECMEELNER on fair valued liabilities - (264,986)
FEEE T REEY T EER Cumulative fair value gains arising from
2R EERT the revaluation of land and buildings
(own use and investment properties) 87,873 111,327
—RIRITRREE EE Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 2,805,429 2,571,972
HEAE Valuation adjustments 7,013 -
EBATHETEANMNERESMGEHE  Debt valuation adjustments in respect of derivative contracts 1,878 3,127
ZERE-—REX LT RIEAATE Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital 2,921,478 2,457,752
EERE-REX CET1 capital 22,859,286 19,286,287
B —REX Additional Tier 1 (“AT1") capital
BN -—RELBE Total AT1 capital 6,177,015 2,313,467
—REX Tier 1 capital 29,036,301 21,599,754
“HRERTAREE Tier 2 capital instruments and provisions
GER_RERREERDRE Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments plus
any related share premium 6,044,744 6,657,912
AEEEMFE T LEEYM Reserve attributable to fair value gains on
EENARBERNNELRE revaluation of holdings of land and buildings 39,543 50,097
%EA WER—RRIBITER Collective impairment allowances and
BAREEBENEERE regulatory reserve for general banking risks eligible for
inclusion in Tier 2 capital 2,431,093 2,110,287
HBRIER N R E R Tier 2 capital base before deductions 8,515,380 8,818,296
ZHREX EERE Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
ZHRERRATERIBEE Total requlatory deductions to Tier 2 capital - -
“HREX Tier 2 capital 8,515,380 8,818,296
BB Total capital 37,551,681 30,418,050

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

EXRRE (#) (B) Capital adequacy (continued)
B InEEE (i) Risk-weighted assets
2016 2015
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EERAR — Credit risk 195,100,156 169,230,743
— T I5E R — Market risk 5,050,513 4,659,900
— B E R — Operational risk 11,405,438 10,364,613
211,556,107 184,255,256
BAR7 LR (iii) Capital adequacy ratios
2016 2015
— LR —REARLLE — CET1 capital ratio 10.8% 10.5%
——RERLE — Tier 1 capital ratio 13.7% 11.7%
— BB & - Total capital ratio 17.8% 16.5%
FEEFEALRURFAREFER LR (iv) Capital conservation buffer ratio and countercyclical capital

buffer ratio

H2016F 1A HREMUTHERE KL With effect from 1 January 2016, the capital buffer ratios applicable to

- MAKERGEEEFTENT ¢ the Group on a consolidated basis are as follows:
2016
PrrgEE & At & Capital conservation buffer ratio 0.625%
WRBREEE AR X Countercyclical capital buffer (“CCyB") ratio 0.334%
0.959%

AEBERBEERBERZBEHARENS
BRI 0 4 2 FL AR (S R R A R RO R
@R E M EE R FLAE B R ATER M T
BHEGEALRARAITREAN [EEE
AEFE] —HhEE -

The detail relevant disclosure of the CCyB ratio for each jurisdiction
and the geographical breakdown of risk-weighted assets in relation
to private sector credit exposures using the standard templates as
specified by the HKMA can be viewed in the Regulatory Disclosure
section of our Bank’s website.

2015 F A8 A A HAE & E AL RAAE
BERIEE  HAE2016F1 81808 0 B
MIEBB R EEBENFAREEE R X
MiEARICCBLE R (AEEEAKERA
HEREEERMEE I FIRERERHE
& MeCCyBHY B B AHH) /0% °

For 2015, there was no information disclosed relating to the CCyB
ratio for this period because the applicable JCCyB ratios (meaning the
capital buffer levels as announced by regulatory authorities of relevant
jurisdictions for the purpose of implementing the CCyB under Basel
Ill) for Hong Kong and jurisdictions outside Hong Kong are 0% before
1 January 2016.

—E-XFR
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(B) Capital adequacy (continued)

(v) Capital instruments

The following is a summary of the Group's CET1, Additional Tier 1

Capital Securities and Tier 2 capital instruments.

2016 2015
BT T BETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FOIBRTHNEERE-—RELTA CET 1 capital instruments issued by the Bank
LR Ordinary shares:
BT R 9,083,341,176 issued and fully paid
LMN%9,083,341,176 1% ordinary shares 9,366,271 7,566,271
2016 2015
BT T BETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
B —REXES Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities
M {E300,000,0003 JTHY Undated non-cumulative subordinated
KEFIIERIEREERFES capital securities with US$300 million 2,310,168 2,310,168
M 18500,000,0003 TTHY Undated non-cumulative subordinated
XERIERBRBREELRES capital securities with US$500 million 3,863,084 -
6,173,252 2,310,168
2016 2015
BT T BEETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
“HREXRTEH Tier 2 capital instruments
RITEELT Issued by the Bank
—R2020F | BR 1 (B 22 & — Subordinated note due 2020
(BRME : 500,000,0003 L) (nominal value: US$500 million) 4,063,457 4,132,209
—R2022F B Bf1 B R — Subordinated note due 2022
(BREIA : 300,000,000%7T) (nominal value: US$300 million) 2,318,117 2,306,392
— 2024 F R BR1E (B2 — Subordinated note due 2024
(BRE{E : 300,000,000%7T) (nominal value: US$300 million) 2,324,263 2,327,616
8,705,837 8,766,217

192] HERIT (B BRAF
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(B)

(vi)

Capital adequacy (continued)

Leverage ratio
The Bank is required to disclose its leverage ratio calculated on a
consolidated basis covering the Bank and some of its subsidiaries.

2016 2015

EUE RS

Leverage ratio

9.1% 7.3%

RALE BRTENRERRNESRERR
BAPERMAE A EARITHER [EEEARRK
B EMETTEE -

mEEw

BREFRIZIBASN - ANF R HS 3R E RO P B 75
BRAUR G SR ERER - 4
AWM et s BREEMsNEE 0 RIE

RATEREAITRAITRENBAR - Mig
ERIRBEATRAITETHEAR  #F16

e

S ERBIEATIRE (RITE (A5) A
AI) £280)@0 + BT SIMBARIAE 4
AR EAITOEATRILE - BRI
R

(vii)

The detail relevant disclosure of the leverage exposure using the
standard templates as specified by the HKMA can be viewed in the
Regulatory Disclosure section of our Bank’s website.

Basis of consolidation

Unless otherwise stated, all financial information contained in the
annual financial report is prepared according to the consolidation
basis for accounting purposes. The main difference between the
consolidation basis for accounting and regulatory purposes is that
the former includes the Bank and all its subsidiaries whereas the latter
includes the Bank and only some of the Group's subsidiaries, which
are discussed as follows:

The HKMA has granted approval under section 28(2)(a) of the Banking
(Capital) Rules for the Bank to calculate its CAR on a solo consolidated
basis instead of on a solo basis in respect of the following subsidiary:

2016F12H31H
At 31 December 2016

BERE BEREE

Total assets Total equity

BETR BT

MEARER Names of subsidiary TEER Principal activities HK$'000 HK$'000
EBREEBRAT Viewcon Hong Kong Limited —ZBEE - Mortgage financing 1,389 1,338
S
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B) BEXZRE (&) (B) Capital adequacy (continued)
(vii) FREER (&) (vii) Basis of consolidation (continued)
S—FHE - ATABEGERTE (BEX) K On the other hand, the Bank is required under section 3C(1) of the
By EE3CE - BT B A RILALR & £ b Banking (Capital) Rules to calculate its total capital on a consolidated
STEHBENR basis in respect of the following subsidiaries:
2016512318
At 31 December 2016
BELE BREE
Total assets Total equity
BT BRI
WEBARAZE Names of subsidiaries TEER Principal activities HK$'000 HK$'000
ERERERAT Carford International Limited -NERE - Property holding 33,874 11,308
thEF{TERE (RE)BRAR  CMICBank International (China) Limited —#47 - Banking 11,740,227 1,584,390
RERREEERAT CITIC Insurance Brokers Limited —RiagL - Insurance broker 122,825 52,862
CKWB-SN Limited CKWB-SN Limited —PTER - Issue of structured notes
ZEMZE  andinvestments - -
CKWH-UT2 Limited CKWH-UT2 Limited —%{TEBEZE - Issue of subordinated notes - -
EAEABBERAT HKCB Finance Limited —BERE - Consumer financing 6,306,631 519,868
SEERBBERAF Ka Wah International Merchant Finance Limited —387 %7 - Inactive 3,907 3,781
RERT(ETL)ARLA The Ka Wah Bank (Trustee) Limited — 55t - Trustee services 5,496 5,481
BEEEBRAA Viewcon Hong Kong Limited —RIBRE - Mortgage financing 1,389 1,338

REREARBOMBARIEHE FITED
EERBHAREER MiEEERHAR
(R1TE (BX) KA BEB ERITEEDD
M BRER TR ERNAIFER EB 2 5
BIARAT - Bt - AR CIRTTE (BA) A1)
3B AITURER A ER T EHAE LR
I ABRERATHERR :

Subsidiaries not included in consolidation for regulatory purposes
are mainly nominee services companies that are authorised and
supervised by a regulator and are subject to supervisory arrangements
regarding the maintenance of adequate capital to support business
activities comparable to those prescribed for authorised institutions
under the Banking (Capital) Rules and the Banking Ordinance. The
following subsidiaries are deducted from the Bank’s capital base
under Part 3 of the Banking (Capital) Rules:

2016512A318

At 31 December 2016
BEAH ERAE
Total assets Total equity
BETT BT
WEAREHE Names of subsidiaries EL-E S Principal activities HK$'000 HK$'000
BEBEARIT(REA)BRAF The Hongkong Chinese Bank —RIEARHE - Nominee services 4 4

(Nominees) Limited

SEFT(RB)ABAR The Ka Wah Bank (Nominees) Limited ~ —f32 ABRTS - Nominee services 3,082 -
Security Nominees Limited Security Nominees Limited - REARE - Nominee services - -
REBSERARAT Sino-Allied Development Limited —RBEK - Inactive 10 10

194] HIERTT (EIR) BRA R
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(B) Capital adequacy (continued)

(vii) Basis of consolidation (continued)
At 31 December 2016, no subsidiaries were included within both
the accounting scope of consolidation and the regulatory scope of
consolidation but for which the method of consolidation differs.

There are also no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory
scope of consolidation but not included within the accounting scope
of consolidation.

FIIRENME AR L R (C) Average liquidity maintenance ratio
2016 2015
HENHANHLEFE Average liquidity maintenance ratio
AR ED I A b R for the year ended 31 December* 60.8% 61.8%
* RITERER2016F1 1B AEZRE * The average value of liquidity maintenance ratio ("LMR") is being

MR (TLMR]) WF19E - FHRE
TS L R EE R AR E P HF Y
BARMEMAR L RNHEFHE - AR
BeERERRET ANIRATIEMNE

=4 =15
NAERAEMEETH -

calculated based on the arithmetic mean of the average value of LMR
for each month during the reporting period, which is also computed on
the consolidated basis covering the Bank and certain of its subsidiaries as
required by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority ("HKMA").

—E-XFR
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Further analysis on loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers analysed by the coverage of
collateral, overdue amount and the impairment allowance is as
follows. The economic sector analysis is based on the categories and

£ o definitions used by the HKMA.
2016 2015
AN [ =giiwiilsol
EFERR EFPEFR
BNEH BREH
EFERR BRE BEFERK BN
BUEH % of gross BB % of gross
Gross loans loans and Gross loans loans and
and advances advancesto  and advances advances to
to customers customers to customers customers
BETT covered by BT covered by
HK$’000 collateral HK$'000 collateral
IHEew Industrial, commercial and financial
-DRER - Property development 13,578,793 54 13,160,361 66
—MEKRE - Property investment 25,060,936 67 19,535,863 69
—SEE - Financial concerns 9,171,320 24 6,742,829 40
—-BERER - Stockbrokers 3,131,047 49 3,511,763 45
—HBRTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 17,002,524 70 17,915,876 79
—RlEE - Manufacturing 10,063,497 29 7,493,445 35
— Bl B RE ~Transport and transport equipment 2,946,243 28 3,492,239 22
—IREETE) - Recreational activities 1,205,638 72 954,102 95
— &R - Information technology 3,451,364 91 14,755 100
—Hfh - Others 9,831,651 51 7,987,067 50
A Individuals
—BEE[EEBEREE] - - Loans for the purchase of flats under the
[FLABREL2EER Home Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
e R MEEHER Participation Scheme and Tenants
2 NEFEX Purchase Scheme 11,464 100 8,760 100
- BEHMEEMENER - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 13,407,510 100 12,404,811 100
—{ZAEER - Credit card advances 445,821 - 426,795 -
—Hfth - Others 8,304,307 87 7,850,685 85
HREBFERNETR Gross loans and advances for
BRBeE use in Hong Kong 117,612,115 62 101,499,351 67
Bo5mE Trade finance 10,644,560 28 11,061,512 24
EEBIMEBMERR  Grossloans and advances for
BB use outside Hong Kong 55,507,566 32 57,308,875 43
BEETR MBS Gross loans and advances to customers 183,764,241 51 169,869,738 56

196] PEIRTT (BIE) BRAH
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(D) Further analysis on loans and advances to customers

(continued)

The analysis of impaired loans and advances to customers of the

individual loan usage category, which accounted for 10% or more of

the gross loans and advances to customers, is as follows:

2016

FrEhE

(B8 B

WHEEE

HEEF Impairment loss

ANEE BERRBH 185! BA charged to/

ERRER Impaired HEERE MEEHE  (written back)

Overdue loans loans and Individual Collective onincome

and advances advances to impairment impairment statement

to customers customers allowances allowances  during the year

BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

MERE Property investment 64,725 26,095 304 1,858 (728)
EBBLIME AR Gross loans and advances for

ERRBpes use outside Hong Kong 661,137 647,766 152,342 112,808 74,176

725,862 673,861 152,646 114,666 73,448

2015

FRERER

HERP BREOREESR

BERR ERRER &) A Impairment

R kBT Impaired REERE REER loss charged

Overdue loans loans and Individual Collective to income

and advances advances to impairment impairment statement

to customers customers allowances allowances  during the year

BETT BETT BETT BT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

NERE Property investment 33,267 30,297 - 2755 805

HERTELS Wholesale and retail trade 183,784 162,104 47931 89,632 147,575
EEBNUINME AN Gross loans and advances for

ERREpes use outside Hong Kong 471315 425472 65451 162,470 42676

688,366 617,873 113,382 254,857 191,056

—E—XEFR
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(D) E—HoMBEFERRBN (&)

(D) Further analysis on loans and advances to customers

(continued)
R ihE D AT By geographical areas
2016
EFEX AHEF HEEF &5 )
REX ARBH ERREX HEEE REEE
Loansand Overdue loans Impaired loans Individual Collective
advancesto  and advances  and advances impairment impairment
customers  to customers  to customers allowances allowances
BETT BT BT T BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
N Hong Kong 93,832,960 755,026 1,185,045 482,324 159,342
R A Mainland China 66,771,703 493,342 479,970 103,513 111,132
XE United States 5,807,229 - - - 6,526
R Singapore 5,504,082 - - - 13,386
Hit Others 11,848,267 101,651 101,651 41,661 32,478
183,764,241 1,350,019 1,766,666 627,498 322,864
2015
XPER BHREP REZP {5l Fa
RBR ERRBR ERRBH REEE HEERE
Loansand  Overdue loans  Impaired loans Individual Collective
advancesto  andadvances  and advances impairment impairment
customers to customers to customers allowances allowances
BETT BB BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
BE Hong Kong 86,650,263 237,088 1,068,869 214,739 169,66
HEl A Mainland China 54,285,267 445,044 229,450 55,424 132,566
ESE United States 2,506,895 67,850 68,722 24,011 2123
g Singapore 12,325,345 - - - 69,809
Hith Others 14,101,968 29,238 139,644 2,558 25,217
169,869,738 779,420 1,506,685 296,732 399,376

bR A B IR 5 E F TR E S -
VEEBRKER - HEXS5EFENTH
BRM— T EREROEERRGEEER

TTHBERARIAS

B ER LB RIS EANERK -

BEER KB REEREREELIRETER
BEREMH ERIFHEHER -

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The above geographical analysis is classified by the location of the

counterparties after taking into account the transfer of risk. For a

claim guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the

counterparty, risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.

Overdue loans and advances are loans that have been overdue for

more than three months.

Impaired loans and advances are individually assessed loans which

exhibit objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.
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(E) BHEE (E) Overdue assets
BHEFERREN Overdue loans and advances to customers
2016 2015
HEFEXN HEFPEMR
RBREE RE e
BOE BAE
% of total % of total
loans and loans and
BETIT  advancesto BETIT  advancesto
HK$’000 customers HK$'000 customers
Bk BR4AEE The gross amount of loans and advances has
= 0 HAE been overdue for periods of:
—3fE A LA E=6fEA - 6 months or less but over 3 months 190,035 0.10 300,763 0.18
—6M AR EZ= 14 — 1 year or less but over 6 months 275,830 0.15 155,289 0.09
—1FNE — over 1 year 884,154 0.48 323,368 0.19
1,350,019 0.73 779,420 0.46
BEPBEAEF LK Secured overdue loans and advances 683,672 503,026
B EAE R E N Unsecured overdue loans and advances 666,347 276,394
1,350,019 779,420
BHEARMAEEREY  Market value of collateral held against the
SR EEETE secured overdue loans and advances 1,331,375 895,993
BRI EEE Individual impairment allowances made 369,998 120,281
EPRBEERBZERRIR AEASHF Loans and advances with specific repayment dates are classified as
BE@ai WHRFELEHMDAER  AFIE overdue when the principal or interest is overdue and remains unpaid
BHRIE - AIRFH BN - EEMERA at the year end. Loans repayable on demand are classified as overdue
REEFRA  BERANKRRETRER either when a demand for repayment has been served on the
K/ SEREBEERABBNAOIER borrower but repayment has not been made in accordance with the
5B MULIE RIS ERIE s ERER - 55 demand notice, and/or when the loans have remained continuously
{EE BRRR IR o outside the approved limit advised to the borrower for more than the

overdue period in question.

—E—XEH 99
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() BHEE (&) (E) Overdue assets (continued)
BHEFERRER () Overdue loans and advances to customers (continued)
HRBBMERRBER  NMITHANESRESR Eligible collateral, which is held in respect of the overdue loans and
ERREEEREMEDE - a8 ERmEA advances, is ‘Eligible Physical Collateral’ which mainly comprises real
e TyEE - estate properties. The eligible collateral should generally satisfy the
following:
@ ZEENMERVUARRESITSE (@)  The market value of the asset is readily determinable or can be
iEERBE o reasonably established and verified.
(b) ZEEFRMBEERE _FmiHA (b) The asset is marketable and there exists a readily available
AR EELE - secondary market for disposal of the asset.
© ATHEBAEEERRNBELTIRE (©)  The Bank's right to repossess the asset is legally enforceable and
BITFEWREEER R - without impediment.
d ATEBEFERAIHZEETFEES (d)  The Bankis able to secure control over the asset if necessary.
B o
20165 K% 20155F 124310 - ARE BN m There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions
HARBIE3(E A YR T R H M S BB EA K o which were overdue for over three months at 31 December 2016 and
2015.

200 RERAT (BBR) AR AR
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(F) Rescheduled loans

2016 2015
HEFER ERPER
RBMEE RBshiazs
BAE [EpE
% of total loans % of total loans
BT T and advances BT and advances
HK$'000 to customers HKS$'000 to customers
KEHER Rescheduled loans 3,218 0.002 12,390 0.01

REBHENZIEERAR R BIN 2k
NINEESR MR E T R R ERKERERGTE
HVEATR - B LEERTESIRI B AR EE M
S IE—MEEGER - EPEAERCHK
HigmHE 8308 A 3 2 R EE ERNE
HAEATK o

R20165F K2015F12H31H » REBWER
EEMRITREM S BB -

Rescheduled loans are those advances which have been restructured
or renegotiated because of a deterioration in the financial position
of the borrower, or the inability of the borrower to meet the original
repayment schedule and for which the revised repayment terms are
non-commercial to the Group. Rescheduled loans to customers are
stated net of any advances that have subsequently become overdue
for over three months and are reported as overdue advances in note

B).

There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions
which were rescheduled at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

(G) BMEEE (G) Repossessed assets
2016 2015
BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
P ABPER MBI N H A BRIES Included in loans and advances to customers and
other accounts 175,768 136,267

I EEE AR 2016512 A31 HELE B E /5T
DIEER

The amount represents the estimated market value of the repossessed
assets at 31 December 2016.

—E-XFR
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(H) International claims

International claim refers to the sum of cross-border claims in all

currencies and local claims in foreign currencies determined as based
on the calculation methodology specified in the HKMA's Return of
International Banking Statistics. International claims are on-balance

sheet exposures of counterparties which attributable to the country or

segment, after taking into account risk recognised transfer, constitute

™~ to not less than 10% of the aggregate claims are disclosed as follows.
2016
FESRITFAA MRS
Non-bank private sector
FERAT
SRKE FEr
Non-bank FAABEE
R1T BEHEE financial Non-financial b
Banks Official Sector institutions private sector Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Bl AL Offshore centres 2,896,204 833  6,615856 39,691,963 49,204,856
HApHE of which Hong Kong 2,478,854 5 5,808,429 26,081,589 34,368,877
EEPIDKE Developing Asia-Pacific 50,674,888 208,914 4,236,338 51,715,487 106,835,627
Heh s B A of which mainland China 47,455,788 60,345 4,236,338 49,388,847 101,141,318
2015
FEERITRLAMERE
Non-bank private sector
JERTT
TRIME FeR
Non-bank FLAMERE
$R1T B financial ~ Non-financial ke
Banks  Official Sector institutions  private sector Total
BT T BT BT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BERERBXK Developed countries 9,182,883 7,470,058 481,653 3,171,510 20,306,104
BEEP O Offshore centres 9,036,668 723 5,669,452 50,694,275 65,401,118
HAPEHES of which Hong Kong 6,603,086 156 5189936 26955846 38,749,024
EEPIANE Developing Asia-Pacific 54,758,834 243,011 7,810,185 30,989,466 93,801,496
Hehrh B i of which mainland China 49,280,348 90,394 7,810,185 29,342,270 86,523,197
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() AR () Mainland Activities
Wi EKEEAEBEHIERITIHEFHH Mainland Activities are mainland China exposures to non-bank
Wi R R ASE o L HIRIBERE B (A E counterparties and their categories and the type of direct exposures
BWER) IRz R R EER R 28 defined by the HKMA's Return of Mainland Activities.

BIED %8 -

2016

MEMRREA  MBRRRHN
B R R B B BB A

On-statement Off-statement

of financial of financial
position position #HEE
exposure exposure Total
BT T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
() RRBT - FREFFHERE  Central government, central government-
1 I EL P A RIAN owned entities and their subsidiaries and
BENE joint ventures ("JVs”) 20,700,996 2,155,791 22,856,787
Q) H T AT ~ s BFIERRE)  Local governments, local government-owned
s I EL T/ 2 BN entities and their subsidiaries and JVs
BELE 14,706,685 517,541 15,224,226
B)EANPEARSEATEANM  PRC national residing in Mainland China or other
P ST ) H o e K2 entities incorporated in Mainland China and
HBARMEERE their subsidiaries and JVs 58,513,060 11,931,580 70,444,640
@) e EE1TER Other entities of central government not
B RS T reported in item 1 above 4,153,460 325,487 4,478,947
(5) MEIE Ll B 28R Other entities of local governments not reported
Hofth 3t 77 TR AT M1 in item 2 above 250,903 17,920 268,823
(6) EEFERANF RN PRC national residing outside Mainland China or
BINP RN RS entities incorporated outside Mainland China
HBLIR INIK ST RO where the credit is granted for use in
Mainland China 11,699,470 3,280,734 14,980,204
(7) B A1 AR IER B Other counterparties where the exposures are
FERHIERITR S¥F 2 considered by the reporting institution to be
[ A non-bank Mainland China exposures 23,411,016 3,348,508 26,759,524
Mz Total 133,435,590 21,577,561 155,013,151
EHREEENEERTE Total assets after provision 306,416,955
EESBERAEBRAERN On-balance sheet exposures as
HEERDE percentage of total assets 43.6%
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()  Mainland Activities (continued)

2015
BB R A B RS AIR R 2R AN
E) B A B 2\ B AR
On-statement Off-statement
of financial of financial k]
position exposure position exposure Total
BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
() RREAT - PREFFHERE  Central government, central government-
s I EL T A BN owned entities and their subsidiaries and
GELE joint ventures (JVs) 14,129,810 316,538 14,446,348
(2) # T BURF ~ Hb 75 BT B A Local governments, local government-owned
s K BB A FAn entities and their subsidiaries and JVs
RERE 12,481,333 448,074 12,929,407
B)EANPEARSAETEANM  PRC national residing in Mainland China or other
P ST ) HL o e Ko LB B entities incorporated in Mainland China and
NEIMEELE their subsidiaries and JVs 52,634,229 6,568,815 59,203,044
@) e EEI1TER Other entities of central government not
Hofth o R IR A reported in item 1 above 2,429,786 191,868 2,621,654
(5) MEIE Ll B 28R Other entities of local governments not reported
HAb 77 BT HEE in item 2 above 444,713 - 444,713
(6) EEFERNF R R PRC national residing outside Mainland China or
BANRBI A R 5 8 entities incorporated outside Mainland China
H B3R INIK ST RO where the credit is granted for use in
Mainland China 13,213,268 2,343,688 15,556,956
(7) E 4 R SRR R Other counterparties where the exposures are
RN IERITR S EF 2 considered by the reporting institution to be
[ i A non-bank Mainland China exposures 26,567,839 2,165,634 28,733,473
Rk Total 121,900,978 12,034,617 133,935,595
EREEENEELRE Total assets after provision 282,534,968
BEABRARRBRESG On-balance sheet exposures as
BEERDE percentage of total assets 43.1%

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(i) Capital charge for credit risk

Capital charges for credit, market and operational risks

The capital charge for different classes of exposures of the Group
calculated under the standardised (credit risk) approach at the end of

™~ the reporting period are analysed as follows:
2016 2015
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000

EBEAIERER Classes of exposure:

BT 1 Sovereign 45,114 157,833
NV T Public sector entity 39,235 18,889
R1T Bank 2,689,394 2,858,714
BH AT Securities firm 167,749 187,311
=S Corporate 10,254,662 8,197,444
SRIREHE Collective investment scheme 86 19
HEIER Cash items 15,871 149,780
BEETE Regulatory retail 442,305 408,453
FERBEX Residential mortgage loans 546,705 534,621
H b I8 HA R b Other exposures which are not past due 381,439 270,055
B Past due 96,518 53,837
BISRR R AR A IENEE R TE Total capital charge for on-balance sheet exposures 14,679,078 12,837,056
BEEEEARER Direct credit substitutes 123,711 65,786
W SEBNABIAE Transaction-related contingencies 18,038 21,086
HE S EBENNAER Trade-related contingencies 134,582 73,654
REEHER Forward forward deposits placed - 15,500
HoAth Other commitments 232,019 101,650
EXNEEAH Exchange rate and gold contracts 355,781 375,676
SN Interest rate contracts 15,718 14,758
BEBEBFEHOREMERE L Debt security contracts and other commodity contracts 70 -
BHRBMERS) Securities financing transactions 16 669
ERHEEMHBERAR A Standardised credit valuation adjustment method 108,223 105,815
BTSRRI R A IER B E R TE Total capital charge for off-balance sheet exposures 988,158 774,594
EERBEERRE Total capital charge for credit risk 15,667,236 13,611,650
—E-REFR
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(J) Capital charges for credit, market and operational risks
(continued)

(ii) Capital charge for market risk
The Group uses the standardised approach for the calculation of
market risk.

2016 2015

BET T BEET T

HKS$'000 HKS$'000

I == [ P AR (B 4R HAAE) Interest rate exposures (including options) 252,064 128,206

NERGAE(RIEES LR oreign exchange exposures

HNEE AR (BIEES R EARE) Forei h

(including gold and options) 151,977 244,586

TIERERAE RNRESK Capital charge for market risk 404,041 372,792

(i) HEBRERMBRNERER
AEBENGEE AMERERERAEEAE
EGRIEERNEARERS -

(iii) Capital charge for operational risk
The capital charge for operational risk of the Group calculated in
accordance with the basic indicator approach at the end of the
reporting period is:

2016 2015

BT T BT IT

HK$'000 HKS'000

EBIRIER BN EAREK Capital charge for operational risk 912,435 829,169

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(K) Additional disclosures on credit risk

(i)  Creditrisk exposure

Credit ratings such as from Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services and

Moody's Investors Service are used for all classes of credit exposures

mentioned below. The Group follows the process prescribed in Part

4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules to map the ratings to the exposures

booked in the Group's banking book.

An analysis of the credit risk of the Group by class of exposures at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

2016
BHREREH
AfEEHE
IRGHEE
ZBRRE
E Total exposure
BRAREEERR ﬁ%gg covepred by
ZHECERE aER BERE recognised
Exposures after recognised BRmEHE MEHE  Total exposure guarantees
credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts Total risk- coveredby  orrecognised
REAE IR REIR BB REFHR weighted  recognised credit derivative
Total Exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated amounts collateral contracts
BETn  A¥Tn A% B¥Tn BETx BT BT BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A BERRRA On-balance sheet
1 BR Sovereign 28,843,615 28,986,233 - 563,926 - 563,926 - 142,618
LRERE Public sector entity 2361616 2,452,196 - 490,439 - 490,439 - 54,525
3817 Bank 59,102,772 84,204,645 2,839,747 32,836,340 781,081 33,617,421 - 26,753,715
4 EHRF Securities firm 4,038,049 - 4193714 - 209857 2,096,857 1,014,264 -
5.0% Corporate 165,206,568 19,045,648 115115253  13,030252 115153,022 128,183,274 3,734,473 828,929
6 EBREHE Collective investment scheme 1,078 - 1,078 - 1,078 1,078 - -
7 H2EE Cashitems 343,806 - 3,407,709 - 198,385 198,385 3,063,903 -
8 EETE Regulatory retail 7,536,493 - 13N7R2 - 5528814 5528814 133,130 -
9. FERIEEH Residential mortgage loans 19,368,526 - 19332472 - 6833811 6,833,811 - -
10 £ kaSER Other exposures which are not past due
exposures 4,915,898 - 4761975 - 4767998  4,767998 24,721 -
1. BlEE Past due exposures 969,219 1,580 967,639 - 1,206,479 1,206,479 310,321 1,580
B. BB RN Off-balance sheet
LEMIETERZREE Off-balance sheet exposures other than
fTETERLMIMY OTC derivative transactions or credit
BB RN ER derivative contracts 128,530,687 86,469 128,444,218 15096 6,339,270 6,354,366 4,384,218 77,524
LEIMIETERS OTC derivative transactions 330,545,207 265218464 65326833 2208968 2,435,644 4,644,612 4,193,531 -
BREMABABEEEBRAE  Exposures deducted from capital base -
TE—XFER
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(K) EERBROEMNIE (&) (K) Additional disclosures on credit risk (continued)
(i) FEERRRE(E) (i)  Credit risk exposure (continued)
2015
BRERAY
SfEENTE
TAAWRE
LBRERE
— BZER  Total exposure
FEIRRSRE R EEG mEEL covered by
Rz Bl ek Rk recognised
Exposures after recognised ERie IEHE  Tote exposure quarantees
credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts Total risk- covered by orrecognised
RERE B REER B OREER weighted recognised  credit derivative
Total Exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated amounts collateral contracts
BETT  ABTn  BETn  BETn BETn BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS1000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A BIBHRRRA On-balance sheet
1 BER Sovereign 31639666 31730461 - 1972915 - 1972915 - 90,795
LRERE Public sector entity 1,122,154 1180588 - 236,118 - 236,118 - 78,548
38847 Bank 60585504 85023850 3138849 34876727 857192 35733919 - 26,065,246
4 BHRF Securities firm 4,682,785 97051 4585734 4855 2292868 2341393 947,137 -
50% Corporate 145651679 15169655 89267521 13175731 89292318 102468049 1,140,843 1025811
6 SBREHE Collective investment scheme 1489 - 1489 - 1489 1489 - -
7 H2EE Cashitems 230690 - 13085021 - 1872256 1,872,256 12,854,331 -
8 EETE Regulatory retail 6,942,340 - 6807542 - 5105657 5,105,657 161,552 -
0. FEREER Residential mortgage loans 18916639 - 18888420 - 6682767 6,682,767 - -
10 KteFasEk Other exposures which are not past due
eXPOSUres 3478918 S 3375683 - 3375706 3,375,706 30828 -
1. aHER Past due exposures 663388 61,900 601488 3023 642,736 672968 154548 62035
B. BB MRS Off-balance sheet
1LEMIETERSREE Off-balance sheet exposures other than
fTETERKLIMY OTC derivative transactions or
BBHARNER credit derivative contracts 103,839,703 80122 103,759,581 17314 3453632 3470946 2,092,598 68590
LEMIETER S OTC derivative transactions 397940373 290491925 107448448 1973360 2,907,058 4880418 4155544 -
BRRERS Securities Financing Transactions 1690716 1690716 - 8358 - 8358 69,307 -

ERERREBREREE  Exposures deducted from capital base

2016 (5 B[R hN4E A1250%0) 8058 A8 1
07T (20154 : B¥or)

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The amount of credit risk exposures weighted at 1250% is nil for 2016

and 2015
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(K) Additional disclosures on credit risk (continued)

(ii) Counterparty credit risk exposures

The following tables summarise the Group’s main default risk
exposures arising from OTC derivative transactions, which are

calculated using the current exposure method:

(1) Below is an analysis of the counterparty credit risk exposures.

2016 2015
BIMTETARS BIMTETERS
OTC derivative OTC derivative
transactions transactions
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
IBFRMERS Gross total positive fair value which is not
FERAREERT securities financing transactions 4,311,593 3,763,784
EHRFAENERD Recognised collateral held:
— BB H LAGN — Other than debt securities 71,470 130,044
MR EEREFREBEED Default risk exposures net of
FIE AR B oA I recognised collateral held 7,810,918 7,990,909
[ B N B R Risk-weighted amounts 4,644,612 4,880,418
Q BXSEFEEMptERRAENE (2) Below is an analysis of the major classes of exposures by
ERFIN DT - counterparty type.
2016 2015
BIMTETAERS BIMTETARS
OTC derivative OTC derivative
transactions transactions
BT T BT IT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
HEER Notional amounts:
—iR7T7 ~ Banks 254,923,445 313,011,182
— — Corporates 71,565,026 81,581,296
—H b - Others 4,056,826 3,347,895
330,545,297 397,940,373
BB B AdE Default risk exposures:
—iR7T - Banks 5,119,742 5,161,223
—1% — Corporates 2,507,477 2,752,227
—H A - Others 183,699 77,459
7,810,918 7,990,909
[R\B hkE B RE - Risk-weighted amounts:
—iR7T - Banks 2,113,469 2,312,108
—1% — Corporates 2,299,650 2,499,808
—HAty - Others 231,493 68,502
4,644,612 4,880,418
ZE-XNER
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(iii)
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FERRNVEINME (B)

REEERRR
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BevweE - AREEERR -

AEE-REINEVERARBRE L &
HOEE - RRHE MM - HERRARLD - B MM
AHENRE S - EREERFRER - TR
R gs|ARNERRME - ARETERX
BIZER S - PN BUFHER - S|RITHER
e RERMEALELR -

SR1T R P Y AR R L B R IR

AREBFROBRERERAEARRGE DB D
NOAF IR RERE - AEERAAHE
SRS BT BERF AN RER P T
2(e)(i) - B BIEBITIRM AR RHE - RNF
R R EEFARN EHRERE A
NABEARK  RFEETEERNABR
ENMHZRHE - MRZ AR IHRERIK
RS REAAREBEMUAISEE - #UA
RASRERERER (108) BARK -

F2016%F 2015 AR EW S8 A HE FMAR
BRE  BREAMNRFIERKBESE
BERTEREKT c £2016F12H318 * K
FIR B S A7 #783,0007T (20156 © B
10,802,0007T) MR ARITH B A TR
BiBBBERAR -

EER

AEBHANRESERE KT - EARF
EAREMBEZNFRLANALE BE
A EEBRFMA [ AR A AR
EEER] R IBRHEMIEZES] ERN
BE - AMTEFBERUNTLZEGBESR
“ZELZEE REZEE  FMEREENEER
LEBERZEE - %FZBESNBRANRE
ERHEFEN [EREAREMER] LB
REASEZ ERIARENA -
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(K)

(i)

(L)

(M)

Additional disclosures on credit risk (continued)

Credit risk mitigation

The Group mitigates credit risk by means of taking collateral and
entering into offsetting or netting agreements with borrowers
and counterparties, as the case may be, should such clauses and
agreements be legally established and enforceable.

Common types of tangible collateral acceptable to the Group include
land, real estate, equipment & machinery, equity shares, bonds and
other marketable securities. In determining the loan advancing level,
respective haircuts will be applied on the current market value of
the collateral. The Group also accepts intangible collateral such as
government guarantees, bank guarantees, corporate guarantees and
personal guarantees.

Equity exposures in banking book

Equity investments held by the Group are for capital gain purposes
and intended to be on a continuing basis. The Group applies the
same accounting policies as detailed in the note 2(e)(ii) of the financial
statements for all available-for-sale securities, including equity
exposures in banking book. At the statement of financial position
date, equity investments under available-for-sale securities are stated
at fair value which is determined by reference to prices quoted in the
respective stock markets, while unquoted equity investments with no
active market and whose fair value cannot be measured reliably, are
carried at cost less impairment losses, if any.

There was no sales of equity investments in 2016 and 2015 and so no
cumulative realised gain or loss recognised in the income statement.
At 31 December 2016, the total unrealised gains of HK$783,000 (2015:
HK$10,802,000) was recognised in the Bank's reserves but not through
the income statement.

Corporate governance

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance
and has complied, in all material respects, throughout the year with the
modules on ‘Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorised
Institutions” and ‘Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by
the HKMA. The Board of Directors of the Bank has established a number
of committees including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Credit & Risk Management Committee.
Their composition and functions are explained in detail in ‘Corporate
governance and other information’, which will be included in the
printed version of the Group's annual report.
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Corporate Governance and
Other Information

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance and has

complied, in all material respects, throughout the year with the modules on

“Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorised Institutions” and

“Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by the HKMA.

Board Committees

The Board of Directors of the Bank has established the following

committees:

U]

(ii)

Audit Committee

The committee, being an independent body, assists the Board
of Directors of the Bank in providing independent review of, and
monitoring, the effectiveness of the Bank's financial reporting process
and internal control systems. The committee comprises three
Directors of the Bank, including two Independent Non-executive
Directors.

Credit & Risk Management Committee

The committee oversees the Bank’s risk management strategy,
appetite/tolerance, profile and capital adequacy. It has to ensure that
the risk management function of the Bank has adequate authority,
stature, independence, management support and resources to
perform its duties. The risks concerned primarily include credit, market,
interest rate, liquidity, operational, reputation, legal and strategic risks.
It is also responsible for approving matters relating to Internal Capital
Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP), the Reverse Stress Testing (RST)
methodology, and endorsing the recovery planning document before
reporting to the Board for approval on an annual basis. The committee
carries out its oversight function on the Bank’s risk management
through various committees at the Bank’s management level,
including the Credit Committee, Non-Performing Loans Committee,
Investment Review Committee, Asset and Liability Committee and
Operational Risk Management Committee. The committee comprises
six Directors of the Bank, including three Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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Board Committees (continued)

(iii) Nomination Committee

The committee assists the Board of Directors of the Bank to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and to make
recommendations on any proposed changes if necessary. It also assists
in identifying suitable candidates qualified to become Directors,
Chief Executive Officer, Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Alternate
Chief Executive Officer, and making recommendations to the Board
on succession planning for Directors, Chairman of the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Bank. The committee comprises four
Directors of the Bank, including three Independent Non-executive
Directors.

(iv) Remuneration Committee

The committee is responsible for reviewing and approving the
remuneration-related policies and structure of the Bank, and also
the bonus pool proposed pursuant to the prevailing variable
compensation schemes. It is also responsible for approving the
remuneration packages of the Chairman, senior management and
key personnel as defined in the Master Remuneration Policy, and
compensation arrangements relating to the dismissal or removal
of Directors. The committee has to ensure that an annual review of
the Bank’s remuneration system and its operations, which includes
an assessment of consistency with the relevant regulatory rules
or guidelines, is conducted independently of management. The
committee comprises four Directors of the Bank, including three
Independent Non-executive Directors.

Remuneration Matters

The Bank seeks to reward staff for their contribution to the success and
sustainable growth of the Bank. To this end, the Bank has put in place the
Master Remuneration Policy and a structured reward system that enables
the Bank to attract and retain appropriate people in the highly competitive
manpower market, promote effective risk management, and support the
Bank's business objectives. The policy is applicable to the Bank, its overseas
offices and its subsidiaries.
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Remuneration Matters (continued)

During the year 2016, in executing its role and responsibilities in supervising

the Bank's remuneration policies and structure, the major work performed

by the Remuneration Committee included:

(i

reviewed the remuneration policy and systems as well as the
adequacy and effectiveness of its implementation;

updated the Master Remuneration Policy to further strengthen
the Bank's governance, particularly on the deferral provisions, sales
incentive scheme design, and also the special award handling
to attract new-hired, in response to the tightened regulatory
requirements;

reviewed and approved the proposed variable pay for 2015 and the
pay review proposal for 2016;

determined the remuneration packages of the senior management
and key personnel of the Bank;

discussed and reviewed the fees payable to the directors and made
its recommendation to the Board;

reviewed the Remuneration Committee’s effectiveness in discharging
its roles and responsibilities, and its terms of reference.

Reward System

The reward system is designed based on the Total Compensation
Framework (“TCF"). Total Compensation comprises a fixed component
(Guaranteed Cash), a variable component, and benefits.

The Bank's variable remuneration includes Performance Bonus,
Medium-term Reward (“MTR"), and Retention Award (“RA") which
mainly take the form of cash bonus, while Long-term Incentive ("LTI")
is a form of phantom share scheme (Book Value Appreciation Rights
Scheme).

Performance Bonus Scheme is intended to reward performance in
the preceding year. In determination of the Performance Bonus pool
of the Bank, the Remuneration Committee would consider both
financial factors (including Operating Profit and other financial ratios
against the market) and non-financial factors (including compliance
with external regulatory requirements and internal audit findings).
Unsatisfactory performance in non-financial factors will lead to
reduction of Performance Bonus pool.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Remuneration Matters (continued)

U]

Reward System (continued)

Allocations of Performance Bonus to individual employees are based
on assessment on the achievement against key measures including
financial, risk management, regulatory and compliance, growth, as
well as people and team. Such variable remuneration is subject to
a deferral provision, under which if the variable remuneration of an
employee exceeds the prescribed threshold, a portion of the variable
remuneration will be deferred in order to align remuneration with
the time horizon of risk and to allow their performance, including
the associated risks, be validated over a period of time. The unvested
deferred remuneration will be forfeited where it is later established
that there has been fraud or other malfeasance on the part of the
employee or violations by the employee of internal control policies.

The MTR and RA are granted for retention of high-performing staff
or those in key job roles. Both the MTR and RA have a vesting period
and will be discounted or forfeited in case the employees have any
material adverse findings before the MTR or RA is vested.

As part of the result after engaging external consultant Willis Towers
Watson for a comprehensive review on our TCF, the MTR was
cancelled in 2016 and replaced by the RA.

The LTl is aimed to motivate executives towards increasing
shareholders’ wealth while balancing long-term risk management.
Under the LTI Scheme, payment of incentive is determined by the
appreciation in the Bank’s net asset value over a 3-year period and
is made at the end of the performance period. Payment is deferred
until performance results create the economic value that triggers an
award. It is designed to align employees’ reward with long-term value
creation.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Remuneration Matters (continued)

(ii)

Methodologies and Approaches

Methodologies and approaches applied to remuneration arrangement
include but not limited to the followings:

Total Compensation Framework to ensure optimal level of
remuneration and to deliver balanced solution.

Market Benchmarking to take into account market relativities,
having regard to the need to attract, motivate and retain talents.

Job evaluation to determine relative size of different position
and therefore corresponding level of reward.

Performance Management System linked with reward system
to support performance-oriented culture.

Talent Identification and Classification Method taking into
account performance and potential for differentiation when
granting variable rewards.

Human Resources Management Committee approves
recommendations on promotion of staff at designated ranks.
For certain senior positions, approval by President & Chief
Executive Officer is required.

Remuneration Committee assists the Board in the design and
operation of the remuneration system. The Committee held one
meeting in 2016. Members of the Remuneration Committee are
Non-executive Directors of the Bank and are paid Directors’ fee.

Engagement of external consulting firm in verification of
incentive scheme to ensure effectiveness (to be commissioned
by the Chairman of the Board), when necessary.
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FM=ER (©2) Remuneration Matters (continued)
(i) SREEAERBEES THHMH (iii) Remuneration of Senior Management and Key Personnel
SR EBAERTASETEREENEE - Senior Management (“SM") is defined as heads of major functional
ARETIRTEREE P RAESEKAREREA units and Key Personnel ("KP") is defined as those whose activities
KPNTEEBERRERNES - involve the assumption of material risk or the taking on of material
exposures on behalf of the Bank.
EA 16 AORBIHWEEASREEA There were 9 employees being classified as SM and 5 employees
SEREIWBRARBEEET - MRAS being classified as KP during the financial year of 2016 and aggregate
.14% HEBAEREAREE THFHMER quantitative information on remuneration for the 14 SM and KP is set
@WEW N - out below:
@) 2016$ 20154 Bf EZ FENFME @  Amounts of remuneration for the financial years 2016 and 2015,
DB TE BN - o] 2 N 1T & split into fixed and variable remuneration:
paNE,
77 .
2016 2015
FET 413 FHET BT
Non-deferred Deferred Non-deferred Deferred
BEASE BEET EEAE BEEI FEAS BHEEI £BAS BRET
SM KP SM KP SM KP SM KP
BETT BETn B%Tn B%Tx A¥Tr AT BT BET
HK$'000  HK$’'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(&I 5E Er Fixed remuneration
54 K2 ~ Salary and allowance 26,375 7,681 - - 22,674 7,654 - -
A Variable remuneration
— BRIt ~ Performance Bonus (*PB’) 23,220 3,002 8,658 772 18,300 4,197 6,475 1155
-Br & - Retention Award (‘RA") - - - - 6,970 1,446 - -
—REVBENFEN - Long-term incentive (‘LTI") - - 6,739 150 - - 7617 725

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
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¥FMEE (&)

(iii)

EREBABRBESTNHH (&)

(b)

PUBRIEF B A Al S5 - 2515
FR20165%12 8318 K&2015912A318()
EIER - R(iyHAREIER - BIEMT -
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Remuneration Matters (continued)

(iii) Remuneration of Senior Management and Key Personnel

(continued)

(b)

Amounts and form of outstanding deferred variable
remuneration, split into (i) vested, and (i) unvested as at 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are set out below:

2016 2015
BREBAE MEET =HEEAR BARET
SM KP SM Kp
BETR BETT BB BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i EIE (i) Vested
— AL -PB 3,986 613 2943 315
— B S B ST A - MTR 5,743 1,000 4,453 1,000
— R BB - LTl 5,226/ - 7,710 -
(i) HAZIE (i) Unvested
—BRAEAL -PB 14,880 1,524 11,036 1,968
— R H B - MTR 6,664 1,379 13,343 2837
) i —LTl 21,021 827 21,310 1,499

A TE20164F EIHE » WASAE201 7 21+ ©

WI6FEETEREEABERBARE
T HRENNAIEEHHESESE RS
#15,397,0007T & 8 #922,0007T ° it
T ET N A IR A 4B AL AN R B
B BN o M &= B ED = B A 2 IS ER
RRE=FERNFEANEZNER
£ _E X (@) K (b)) AT B = B B
Bk 2 B BB 22 B R 2R B AR AT EE I
BiZ&8 -

RENWAE - R2016FRNERE
MBELEHM TFaRhEEAE RBER
8 T 5 Bll & 7 #14,955,0007T & /5 &
1,613,0007T © £ i@ 4 57 {d - 702016
FFEELRBEELEH N ETAR -

A Vested in 2016 and will be paid in 2017

Amounts of deferred variable remuneration for the financial
year 2016 for SM and KP was HK$15,397,000 and HK$922,000
respectively. The aforesaid are the Deferred Performance Bonus
and LTI. For the LTI scheme, payment will be determined by
achievement of the long-term goals set for the performance
period of 3 years. The variable remuneration in form of LTI
reported in (a) and (b) (i) above are the target cash value at
maturity upon achieving the long-term goals.

From a 2016 payment perspective, deferred variable
remuneration for SM and KP amounted to HK$14,955,000 and
HK$1,613,000 respectively was vested. No discount of deferred
variable remuneration was made for performance adjustment.
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FM=ERE (©2) Remuneration Matters (continued)
(i) SREBEAEBRBRBEINGMH () (i) Remuneration of Senior Management and Key Personnel
(continued)

) M2016FFE  BI2BERETESR (e)  Guaranteed bonuses amounted to HK$750,000 was granted to
FTIEAL - &8 R /B8750,0007T I & K 1 KP during the financial year of 2016, and will be paid in April
2017F E N A EE R - R2016FFE - 2017.No SM and KP has been awarded with severance payment
WEREMESREBEASERFARETE during financial year of 2016

RS

H FBEEE ﬁ?ﬁ@ | - BETHEMAESKE () Quantitative information about employee’s exposure to implicit
BRAENS and explicit adjustments of deferred remuneration:

2016 2015

BETT BEETIT

HK$’000 HK$'000

pESENNEEAEE R Total amount of outstanding
2 70 8 B 3 A 5 M deferred remuneration and
retained remuneration exposed
to ex post explicit/implicit SRETEAE/SM 21,021 21,310
adjustment Rk B T/KP 827 1,499
RAYEBREE - HRBIZE  Total amount of reductions during

S 38 B /B 3R the financial year due to ex post &R EIEA B/SM - -
8

pa i E-T Fek explicit/implicit adjustments Rk B T/KP - -
(iv) EpsEHIREEST (iv) Staff within risk control function

THIBEE TRIERRER  AE & Staff within Risk Control Function includes risk management, legal,

%E ?ﬁff? N 2P ES T N B 75 IR B RE o compliance, audit, internal control, and financial management
function.

J0 B 12 1) Bk B A B B9 S BIIE ST A SE AT S The remuneration of Risk Control Function staff is determined by their
EBEMRRIR - HHIETE EREHZOR functional job responsibilities and achievements against key measures
BE M B BEFEIZEM SRR IE R o ATEIRE I H specific to the functional role they undertake, which are independent
BREABFMEZHEERKT - ZBEEAR from the performance of the business they oversee. Remuneration of
& 2XBHISKERASEFEET - Risk Control Function staff is carefully benchmarked with the market

and internally to ensure that it is set at an appropriate level.

218 RFIRAT (R BIRA R
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